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IMPORTANT NOTICE

s

The board of directors (the “Board”), supervisory committee,
and the directors, supervisors and senior management officers of
the Company confirmed that there are no false representations,
misleading statements or material omissions in this interim
report and accept joint and several responsibilities for the
truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the contents of
the report.

NAESESHEEES2R BN - 2. Directors’ attendance of the Board meeting
RHEFEESEHK RHFEESHS RHEFESHNRERSA WETALS
Positions of Name of

directors who did directors who Reasons for

not attend the did not attend not attending

board meeting the board meeting the board meeting Appointee
BUES 15 1 B EIT{ERE fRE &
Independent director Yang Xiongsheng Office duty Chen Fusheng
BUES Eh=L! EIT{ERE fRE &
Independent director Xiao Jianming Office duty Chen Fusheng
5= B R EIT{ERE T

Director Guan Xin Office duty Wang Xing
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RAIBBEATHE TESFITFEEAF
B R et EEBRERA(EHEEAR)F
MERY: REAFFERSPHBERS
MWEE - B TR

REFSFANBEHNEOEBERIAQ
BeBRERAESR &

RNERVIBFELEBZEA  2EWAI0E
JC FMES008 T - iR IEZ AR R TR
BEEEBIZ  THEXARYHKREENED
i BREETERERR

ERFERIEBRBR R E T2
HRETBER?
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EEFERRBERRRERFHIMEH-ER
BB ?

I~
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APHREDHAR  ERBEEZSRE
MEXEBELRBEELNRER - UPX
RRAE -

The financial statements of the interim report of the Company
were unaudited, but were reviewed by the Audit Committee
of the Board of the Company.

Wang Xing, Chairman, Li Shunzhen, the person in charge
of accounting affairs, and Li Hongning, head of accounting
department (Accounting Supervisor), have declared that they
assured for the truthfulness and completeness of the financial
statements in the Interim Report.

Proposal on profit distribution or capitalization of capital reserve
to increase share capital for the reporting period approved by
the Board: Nil

Operating target of the Company of 2013: operating income: 1
billion, net profit: 5 million. The aforementioned indicators are
just the target set by the management of the Company which
do not constitute real commitments to investors. Investors are
advised to pay attention to the investment risks.

Any appropriation of non-operating fund by the controlling
shareholder and its related parties?
No

Any external guarantee provided not in compliance with the
required decision-making procedures?
No

This interim report is prepared in both Chinese and English,
in the event that different interpretation occurs, the Chinese
version shall prevail.
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In this report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions have the

FRAREER

Definition

ARR - AT BAF
“The Company”, “Company”,
“Parent”

7%

“Industry”

EAgE

“Horizontal machine”
& 3 8%

“Floor-type machine”

IS
“Machining center”

BEFTN

“Gantry machine”

THEERARKERODERAA

Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited

oK 1T 3R
the machine tool industry in the PRC

EAS 82 8K

horizontal boring and milling machine tool

&R

floor-type boring and milling machine tool

EAZL I A O

horizontal products machining center

BEPTEE IR

gantry boring and milling machine tool

CREDERD (hEARLMBERDEE)

“Company Law” the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China

(EFHIE) B (FEARANMBEZESFE)

“Securities Law” the Securities Law of the People’s Republic of China

(gat%) B (FEARAFMESE)

“Accounting Law” the Accounting Law of the People’s Republic of China

TFr & B AR®BIT ARETT ARBET

“RMB"”, “RMB'000" and RMB, RMB thousand and RMB ten thousand
“RMB0’000"
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COMPANY PROFILE

COMPANY INFORMATION
Name of the Company (Chinese)
LS E R RAKRRNBRA A

Abbreviated Name of the Company (Chinese)
B2 BA M R

Name of the Company (English)
SHENJI GROUP KUNMING MACHINE TOOL COMPANY LIMITED

Abbreviated Name of the Company (English) kmtcl
kmtcl

Legal Representative

Wang Xing

CONTACT PERSON AND CONTACT INFORMATION
Secretary to the Board

Name

Luo Tao

Correspondence address
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City, Yunnan Province

Telephone number
86-871-66166612

Facsimile number
86-871-66166288

E-mail

luotao@kmtcl.com.cn

Securities Affairs Representative
Name

Wang Bihui

Correspondence address
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City, Yunnan Province

Telephone number
86-871-66166623

Facsimile number
86-871-66166288

E-mail
wangbh@kmtcl.com.cn
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650203
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www.kmtcl.com.cn
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dsh@kmtcl.com.cn
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& TE A9k /9 A9 HE
WWW.Sse.com.cn
www.hkex.com.hk
kmtcl.com.cn
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600806

Registered address .
23 Ciba Road, Kunming Clty, Yunnan Pro

Post code of registered address
650203

Business address
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City, Yunnan Province

Post code of business address
650203

Website
www.kmtcl.com.cn

E-mail
dsh@kmtcl.com.cn

PLACE OF INFORMATION DISCLOSURE AND
DOCUMENT INSPECTION

Designated newspapers for publishing
China Securities Daily, Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

Designated internet websites by CSRC for
publishing interim report
WWW.sse.com.cn

www. hkex.com.hk

kmtcl.com.cn

Interim report available at
Office Building, 23 Ciba Road, Kunming City,
Yunnan Province

SHARE LISTING

Particulars of the Company’s Shares

Class of Shares
A Shares

Stock Exchange
Shanghai Stock Exchange

Short Name
Kunming Machine

Stock Code
600806
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Class of Shares

HAZ H Shares
IRE TR ST Stock Exchange
BEBERXZMERAA The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
[i% 5 75 18 Short Name
AR IR Kunming Machine
& RS Stock Code
0300 0300
A ARBREHANEMBERR VI. CHANGES IN REGISTRATION OF THE COMPANY
DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD
NEREPRTIMBEARESE o There was no change in registration of the Company during
the reporting period.
= SR HBNMKEERE IIl. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING DATA AND
FINANCIAL INDICATORS
— s AAFESHHENGEEE I. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING DATA AND FINANCIAL
INDICATORS
(—)ETESFHEE (1) PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING DATA

REEH
(1-6A)

For the six
months ended

By T KE:ARK

Unit: RMB

AREML EF

LERH & R(%)
For the six

months ended

TEETEE Principal accounting data 30 June 2013 30 June 2012 Change (%)
EEBA Operating income 353,217,038.61  631,677,302.95 -44.08
HEREMARRREF Net (losses)/profit attributable to equity
(B1]),/FE shareholders of the Company -43,609,779.31 3,592,495.24 -1,313.91
BERLMARIRRAMRIE Net losses (excluding extraordinary gains
BEMERNFER and losses) attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company -43,814,921.90 -8,219,751.60 433.04
BERSEANHSREFE Net cash flow from operating activities -40,319,227.20 -3,244,626.50 1,142.65
EHEHRL LF
EHERHR LFER ERIEH(%)
As at As at
30 June 2013 31 December 2012 Change (%)
FERLTARRRNFEE Net assets attributable to equity 1,274,686,776.52 1,318,296,555.83 -3.31
shareholders of the Company
BEE Total assets 2,693,593,581.87 2,548,752,225.10 5.68

I
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For the six For the six
months ended months ended

TERBREE Principal financial indicator 30 June 2013 30 June 2012 Change (%)
EAXAER(EE) /MW=L &) Basic (losses)/earnings per share (RMB/share) -0.0821 0.0068 -1,307.58
HESR(BEB),/WEr/B)  Diluted (losses)earnings per share (RMB/share) -0.0821 0.0068 -1,307.58
MRFELRHBREENER Basic losses per share excluding
FRER(T/B]) extraordinary gains and losses (RMB/share) -0.0825 -0.0155 432.27
METLHFEERZR(%) Return on net assets (weighted average) (%) -3.36 0.26 -3.62
MBI Bk 0 AN Return on net assets based on net profit
THFEERRZE(%) excluding extraordinary gains and losses
(weighted average) (%) -3.38 -0.59 -2.79
CEREMEREENESESE II. EXTRAORDINARY GAINS AND LOSSES AND
AMOUNTS
Bl BE:ARK
Unit: RMB
£
FREMBHEER Extraordinary gains and losses Amount
FNBDEERERH Disposal of non-current assets -49,534.58
SAEHBROBTES  BE  Government grants recognized through profit and loss
RAERREXBENEA (excluding those having close relationship with the Group's
HEBERHERATE BR—E operation and enjoyed in fixed amount or quantity according
CETRUTEREZTN to uniform national standard)
B 8RR S 405,000.00
Br B IE 2 SOt & Other non-operating income and expenses besides items above
AR I -88,131.78
PERREERYEE Effect of minority interests (after tax) -22,091.00
Ry E% Effect of income tax -40,100.05
&t Total 205,142.59

Interim Report 2013 Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

THE BOARD’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ON
THE OPERATION OF THE COMPANY DURING THE
REPORTING PERIOD

In the first half of 2013, the domestic operating environment
of the machine tool industry was in line with the overall trend
in 2012, with substantial decrease in domestic demand for
low-end products as well as declining per unit price of medium-
end products, while the import of high-end CNC products
maintained the upward momentum. As a result, disequilibrium
between product structure and market demand worsened and
competition among similar products intensified.

Despite the significant deterioration in operating results from
the year 2012 to the first half of 2013, the Company, however,
remained competitive in specific industry segments and in
terms of its own condition. Most enterprises in the industry
experienced excessive overcapacity due to their unchecked
scale and piling-up inventory; besides, the rampant expansion
at the earlier stage led to enormous receivable amount which
increased the enterprises’ exposure to bad debts. The overall
market condition bodes ill for the machine tool industry
which forms part of the machinery and equipment industry.
However, a wide spectrum of downstream sectors under the
machine tool industry bonding closely with manufacturing
related industries has created a broad downstream market
that protects the machine tool market from major crises
caused by one or more particular industries. The recent
proposal by the State Council to advance a new type of
urbanization, the Twelfth Five-Year Plan for rail transportation
including railways, and the development planning in industries
concerning telecommunications, electronics, network media
and consumption have spawned new growth engines which
are certain to bolster the development and upgrade of the
machine tool industry.

In light of the market condition and the Company’s strategic
development, the Board of the Company adjusted the annual
operation target. Seeking development through innovation,
the operation management team of the Company explored
novel operational and management approaches in respect
of marketing, production and R&D. And the team is making
efforts in various aspects under the operating guideline focusing
on “seizing contracts and orders and ensuring collection of
accounts receivable”.

I -
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Marketing:

To consolidate and strengthen the efforts in market
expansion, the Company enhanced the capability of the
marketing team and stepped up the establishment of
regional sales platforms, particularly integrating sales,
services, training and channel management into the four
major marketing platforms of companies in Shandong,
Henan, Zhejiang and South China, which pushed the
market management to the sales frontline. Meanwhile,
the Company continued to expand overseas markets by
fully leveraging on the regional advantages. It is expected
that 30 franchise shops will be set up and 50 premier
agents will be licensed by the end of 2013. The Company
will also devise a VIP customer feedback mechanism with
relevant service procedures and standards formulated,
so that individual customers will enjoy truly customized
services provided by designated account managers. With
sales-oriented technical solutions and technicians in place,
the Company will enhance the capability of regional
workforce, so as to render supreme technical services and
support throughout the sales process. And the Company
will also embolden the first-class brand of domestically
manufactured machine tools through marketing channels
in a bid to boost the market share of each series of
products.

Production:

Based on the ERP system, the Company will refine the
management of production through overall budget
management. Breaking down the production plan of
each type of products, the ERP system is able to execute
plans of manufacturing and assembly, select appropriate
components and parts, manage blanks and preparations
and apply for external procurement. The cost calculation
module embedded in the ERP system is capable of level-
by-level recursive cost calculation of blanks, components
and parts as well as finished products, thus, realizing
integrated management and control of the flow of
products, information and capital, which will enhance
production with more compatible components and parts
provided in a timely and up to standard manner. The
deepening of the refined production process lowered the
inventory scale of external procurement, and utilized less
capital of the Company as a result.

Interim Report 2013 Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited
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R&D:

With breakthroughs realized in the XK28 series, the gantry
boring and milling machine tools are now renowned as
advanced machine tools both at home and abroad. The
THM46100 high precision horizontal products machining
center, the THB110 and KHC63-5A series will be put into
market as soon as possible. By analysing the features
of rival products and users’ needs, the R&D team listed
out the unique selling points of several major product
series. Overcoming the pressure from market competition,
a research team on user-specific technologies has been
established to provide customized services and optimize
the overall performance of products, so as to satisfy
individual requirements of users. The team will also
provide satisfactory and reliable technical supports
and services to complement the marketing team. With
growing technical research strength, the Company
realized the transformation towards an “industrial service
provider”.

(1) ANALYSIS OF PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Table of analysis of changes in relevant items of
financial statements

By BE:ARK

Unit: RMB

AHEREER LA

ENEES LEBRE  HREHLH(%)

Closing balance at Closing balance at

BHA® Item 30 June 2013 31 December 2012 Change (%)
BRES Cash at bank and on hand 118,714,862.61 98,887,040.73 20.05%
FEURE Bills receivable 91,495,287.49 74,194,825.88 23.32%
FEERR Accounts receivable 287,730,391.71  296,885,249.95 -3.08%
FE Inventories 1,072,384,215.21 1,011,927,770.40 5.97%
EEIR Construction in progress 247,997,950.35 182,359,702.75 35.99%
AR Short-term borrowings 200,000,000.00  105,000,000.00 90.48%
ENZEE Bills payable 12,873,820.96 28,693,005.00 -55.13%
JERTRR R Accounts payable 525,892,042.04  506,762,578.19 3.77%
A BEEESENMEAHENTHES The increase in cash at bank and on hand was due to

B the increase in working capital, borrowings and major

AREBABIARIAR BB

e

B RUZBEMEAASAHHELGERK
BB RITALES

C BRERMAERS  RARNE T H

D RAEIINAY M IMEE mBAKT
SEERTR - FEEM

E HERIREMEER/ARAHESE
HEERNGEEBNERARBES
H TR B

projects capital;

The increase in bills receivable was due to receiving more
bank acceptance notes for sales;

The slight decrease in accounts receivable was due to
the collection of some arrears;

The increase in inventories was due to the Company
increasing investment in high value-added products, as a
result, the production cycle extended and the inventories
increased;

The increase in construction in progress was due to the
Company continuing to promote the construction of
heavy and casting base and purchasing the prototype
machine from Schiess;

0
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inputs;

The decrease in bills payable was due to reducing the
settlement of bank acceptances;

The slight increase in accounts payable was due to
extending the payment period of purchasing materials.

Table of analysis of changes in relevant items of

R income statement and cash flow statement
By
Unit: RMB
FEE LEREBE BEILLB(%)
BB Items As at 30 June 2013 As at 30 June 2012 Change (%)
EEWA Operating income 353,217,038.61 631,677,302.95 -44.08
EEKAE Operating costs 292,319,064.12  478,647,251.40 -38.93
HEER Selling and distribution expenses 26,949,849.92 53,281,426.80 -49.42
EEER General and administrative expenses 63,785,516.47 80,700,493.14 -20.96
HBER Financial expenses 2,302,930.33 4,101,623.86 -43.85
BERHEANRSREFE Net cash flow from operating activities -40,319,227.20 -3,244,626.50 1142.65
BRERHEEAMNRSREFE Net cash flow from investing activities -25,537,770.81  -58,117,345.29 -56.06
BERYEANRSREFE Net cash flow from financing activities 90,348,220.00 13,505,824.22 568.96
FREZ R&D expenditure 10,617,150.34 17,599,120.40 -39.67
A TMHEFEBEERKEFEEWARD & The market continuing gloom led to the operating income

SRR WEBRR  EEEAGE
B

MBERARLRAR/RABREHRAEN
EFE

REBRPELENRSREFFRL R
RREmI ENRE - BFERD

KRERPHELENRSREF L HRD
ERARBRAH TIZFR D

SERPELMNASREFFRIEME
REPEIRENE & BT

ft 8% 32 R A = A R AN 4F TR BT B AT 3
T B R D B R HY R B A e BT 3 ST
o OAERHNEREAEREAR -
2R B B A A A S B R

decreased and, therefore, the operating costs, selling
and distribution expenses and general and administrative
expenses decreased,

The decrease in financial expenses was due to interest
capitalization during the reporting period;

The decrease in net cash flow from operating activities
was due to insufficient orders and therefore the cash
collection decreased;

The decrease in net cash flow from investing activities
was due to the payment of projects decreased;

The increase in net cash flow from financing activities
was due to working capital loans increased;

The decrease in R&D expenditure was due to the number
of R&D projects decreased and the the R&D expenditure
incurred during the period were used in the early national
major projects and the projects were in the technical
debugging phase during this period.
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Table of analysis of changes in assets and
profits

Bfy T
Unit: RMB
HAY BO8(LERH) ERE EREE%
As at
As at 31 December 2012 Increase/
BH Items 30 June 2013 (30 June 2012) decrease Change (%)
BEE Total assets 2,693,593,581.87 2,548,752,225.10  144,841,356.77 5.68
EXEE Operating losses -50,855,460.55  -9,499,034.00  -41,356,426.55 43538
FERRAFMEENT Net (losses)/profit attributable to equity
(BR) /5 shareholders of the Company -43,609,779.31  3,592,495.24  -47,202,274.55 -1,313.91
DT Analysis:

MEERNNTERARARAEZTEE
i65,638F 7T © A A AN K = M hn1E &
miIRARMAEERRER  FEEM: &
XNBRORARTSHERY  ERH
EWARD - BEE 7 E fm & (B KB ER
R - HERER ABEXNERE
EEYTHRBRERARMEENFENBER

oo

(1) GTEDH

2013F P FEARARTERES
40718 - IMERERBRFHAEN
HE FEEREFHREBMTE
BB BB EFEHTE -

(2) AR 2| RH A
HEA2013F LXFRRIITENTS
BITER RAHAET2013FE K
LHIEZRAEEE S  2ERAI0E
7T ¢ FEFE5008 T ©

2013F LAZR » A Al E T Bk
i BREARSTEERNFMENS
SKEIBR ISR - BBEAREE
FIEIE  BEAMGIELHEEAER
EEY EHRELNERESR LR
INAEIE IR R -« BRASIE I A -
BRE  FABERSKE - thRE
TRHEREBTHER -

The increase in total assets was due to the increase of
RMB65,638,000 in the construction in progress. The Company
increased investment in high value-added products, as a result,
the production cycle extended and the inventories increased.
The decrease in operating profit was due to the market
continuing gloom led to operating revenue decreased, and
the decreased price of some products also led to the profit
decreased and incurred loss. The operating profit decreased
directly led to the net profit attributing to equity shareholders
of the Company decreased.

Others
(1) Analysis of orders

The total contract amount of orders signed in the first
half of 2013 amounted to RMB407 million. Affected
by the market and the competition, the orders amount
decrease compared to the same period of last year, while
the orders proportion for over a year also declined.

(2) Explanation of the operating plan

Combined with the operation of the Company in the
first half of 2013 and the information of the industry
and the market, the Company adjusted the operation
target of 2013: operating income: 1 billion, and the net
profit: 5 million.

In 2013, the Company has taken positive measures
which will be able to have results in the year to ensure
the healthy and stable development later, including:
developing new markets for CNC products and seeking
new breakthroughs in the international market, actively
working on destocking, surrounding effective orders to
arrange production activities, controlling the inventories
limit of flow-type products and cleaning up accounts
receivable, and strictly controlling costs and expenses
etc.

Bl 2 vessEessmeERaT 2003 FHEE
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(2) ANALYSIS OF SEGMENT, PRODUCT AND REGI
OPERATION

1. Analysis of principal activities by segment and
products

By - BE ARK

Unit: RMB
TEEHATERR Analysis of principal activities by segments
BERAL  EEAAL %L
BEHA BEHA EAE%) LEER%)  LEEHEC)  LEER%)
Gross  Changein  Changein  Changein
Operating Operating profit operating operating  gross profit
PTE Business segments income costs  margin (%)  income (%) costs (%) margin (%)
BR Machine tools 277.856,434.48 232,827,799.10 16.21 -47.98 -41.35 -9.46
LRGN Turbo machines 75,360,604.13  59,491,265.02 21.06 27 2113 47
IEERDERER Analysis of principal activities by products
BEpAL  EEAAL ERELY
ELON BRMA  EAE(%)  LESECY)  LEEEC)  LEEE%)
Gross  Changein ~ Changein  Changein
Operating ~ Operating profit operating operating  gross profit
PER Business segments income costs  margin (%)  income (%) costs (%) margin (%)
BstREER Horizontal boring and milling machine tools 89,719,09.52  83,319918.10 713 -48.82 3932 1454
e R Floor-type boring and milling machine tools 94,580,518.79  72,438,249.62 2341 4569 -39.33 803
Bas R Table-type boring and miling machine tools 23,042,93847  18,326,857.90 2047 7547 7384 495
AT Horizontal products machining centre 29,574,648.63  21,996,625.11 2562 - - -
EdRteiiin Gantry boring and milling machine tools 24.376,068.38  20,706,474.45 15.05 -69.45 -65.71 -9.28
it Others 16,563,163.69  16,039,673.92 316 51.58 6242 -6.47
it Notes:
1. In the first half of 2013, total sales of top five customers

1 203F L ¥ FHSHERFHE SR
73,265F 70 - G 8HE 25 (IR 3B 5
26.37% :

2 2013F E¥FRISHREEPRBEAEA
33,754F 7T - (G RTEM25.24% ©

amounted to RMB73,265,000, accounting for 26.37% of total
sales of the Company (machine tools segment).

2. In the first half of 2013, total purchases of top five suppliers
amounted to RMB33,754,000, accounting for 25.24% of the
purchase amount for the first half of the year.
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RABRLBEFHRAFRAMNBENIRR
RERABAKREROBANRE - BEERD A
MATFENER  BEAMAEROBEFEN
RARRHBRENEHTIHEZ— -

2 TREBREANEE TR 2. Analysis of changes of operating costs of principal
activities
Bfy . Fir
Unit: RMB’000
4 R LA % LERH BRLLA% SRR %
For the six For the six
months ended months ended
ER Items 30 June 2013 Proportion (%) 30 June 2012 Proportion (%) Change (%)
Ri# Raw materials 172,326.68 58.95 247,053.48 51.61 -30.25
ERTA Direct labour costs 21,791.98 7.46 44,133.06 922 -50.62
SREERHE Benefit expenses 18,300.59 6.26 23,733.41 4.96 -22.89
HEEH Manufacturing costs 64,628.03 22.11 83,603.45 17.47 -22.10
HHMIE External processing expenses 15,271.78 5.2 80,123.85 16.74 -80.94
Aif Total 292,319.06 100 478,647.25 100 -38.93
DT Analysis:
AREPLEERAR - F R B H D During the reporting period, the operating costs decreased
186,328 F T © 18 A38.93% * JH P M by RMB186,328,000 or 38.93% over that in the same period
TRARYZEREBETE  RaAHHE last year, mainly affected by the macro-economy. During the
WAGR D+ BN BE 2 8 D BT o reporting period, sales decreased and therefore, costs decreased
accordingly.
(Z)BROHmBAHDH (3) ANALYSIS OF CORE COMPETITIVENESS

Core competitiveness is the source of the long-term profit
of the Company and is the fundamental guarantee of the
future development of the Company. To ensure the Company’s
continuing development, cultivating and enriching the core
competitiveness is one of the long standing priorities of the
Company.

I
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1.

According to the basic conditions, the Comp ny
already has the following core competitiveness

1.1

1.2

-

Technical advantages of products: horizontal boring and
milling machine tool and CNC floor- type boring and
milling machine tool series products are the main flagship
and core products of the Company. Horizontal boring
and milling machine tools, being complicated in structure
and difficult to manufacture, represent the Company’s
traditional strengths. CNC floor-type boring and milling
machine tool series products are heavy machine tools
successfully developed by the Company, which are the first
in China to apply home-made simple numerical control
system to control the coordinates of motion of machine
tools. The technology was commercialized soon after its
successful R&D. Through years of continuous improvement
to enhance the technical level and technology content of
the products, especially the breakthrough in simultaneous
motion of five axes, the overall level of this series ranked
top in China. Meanwhile, the continuous diversification
of specifications and varieties of this series made it
one of the most competitive leading products of the
Company. The Company is the only manufacturer in the
PRC that has the capability to design and manufacture
the jig boring machine tools, targeting at the high-end
customers, which represented the Company’s special
status and influence in the machine tool industry.

Strength in technology platform: the Company has a
national level enterprise technology center, representing
the Company’s competitive strength and important
position in the precision machine tools area in China,
which will play an important role in further enhancement
of the Company’s technological innovation, improvement
of R&D capability and market competitiveness of products,
and achieving sustainable development. The Company'’s
applications for listing the “THM-p series precision
horizontal products machining center” and “technology
innovation platform for precision horizontal and vertical
products machining center” as major national special
science and technology projects on technology of “high-
end CNC machine tool and fundamental manufacturing
machinery”, the "key technology in designing and
manufacturing precision CNC jig boring machine tools”
as a project under the National High-tech Research and
Development Program (863 Program), and the “research
and development of XK2850 CNC gantry boring and
milling machine tools” as a project under the development
program of key and new products of Yunnan Province
were all approved.
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1.3 Strength in precision manufacturing: the Company

carried forward its tradition of precision manufacturing
in recent years, researched and developed multiple
precision products. The Company undertook 2009
special project of “THM series 46100/65160 precision
horizontal products machining center” and 2010 special
project of “TGK46100 high precision CNC horizontal jig
boring machine tools” among the major national special
science and technology projects on technology of “high-
end CNC machine tool and fundamental manufacturing
machinery”. For example, the THM46100 high precision
horizontal products machining center is a latest researched
and developed product with high torque, high precision
and high speed, which is highly automatic and enjoys
fully independent intellectual property rights. Most of
the precision parameters of this product have reached
the advanced world levels, while some were close to
those. The product is capable to process high precision
products at high speed in the case of heavy load and
high torque. The latest research results of the generic
technology such as structure optimization, heat distortion,
vibration control etc. obtained through the collaboration
among enterprises, colleges and research institutes
provide powerful technology support to the outstanding
performance indicators and high reliability of the machine
tools.

2. Core competitiveness to be established for future
development

2.1

Advantages in Strategy Management: The Company aims
to improve its resource allocation through improvements
in organisational transformation, business models,
technology development, human resources strategy,
process reengineering, industrial layout and incentive
system. Capitalising on its strengths in product technology,
corporate management, talent development and capital
operation, the Company will boost its competencies
in innovation-oriented development, execution, market
development, product profitability and comprehensive
competitiveness, thus achieving breakthroughs in
international cooperation, significant technology R&D
and market development and ultimately fulfilling the
targets in its future strategic development plan.

.
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2.2

2.3

Advantages in Technological Innovations: The Col
sustainability advantage lies in its consolldated anc
improving technological innovation capability in the
current context of economic restructuring. By learning
from and integrating the advanced technologies in
the industry at home and aboard, the Company has
established a R&D system centering on the National
Technology Center under the Machine Tools Research
Institute to integrate the strengths in production and
sales, academic and research fields. The technology
practice processes incorporating R&D, design, production
and sales will be continuously improved, in order to meet
the business objectives including stable product quality,
lean manufacturing processes and steadily improving
market share of products. Furthermore, leveraging on its
well-established incentive system, the Company expects to
inspire the innovation enthusiasm of technical personnel
effectively on an ongoing basis, aiming to maintain its
advantages in industrial technological innovations in the
long run.

Advantages in Human Resources Management: Human
resources are the most important strategic resources
which dictate our future, long-term and sustainable
growth trend and performance. In human resources
management practices, the Company will take efforts
in human resources planning, recruitment, design of
performance assessment and remuneration systems, and
career development planning for employees. To draw
upon its advantages in human resources management, the
Company will focus on organisational goals and corporate
strategy to develop the human resources management
system with reference to its actual conditions. Human
resources needs will be estimated according to the
changes in business environment and strategies for better
execution. The trinity of organisational structure, strategic
goals and human resources is expected to effectively fuel
the Company’s upgrades in core competitiveness.
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1.

2.4 Advantages in Information Management: The improving

information management tools are one of our fundamentals
for fast responses to market. Attaching great importance
to information management, the Company took the
opportunity of improving ERP management efficiency
to establish a cross-department integrated information
management platform based on production data and
centering on financial management. It is designed
to gradually achieve the whole-process integrated
information management throughout order information,
product development, process design, manufacturing, cost
accounting, logistics management, after-sales services
and other areas. Leveraging on information technology
tools, the Company will transform the traditional design,
manufacturing, marketing and billing management
models, building up a common platform integrating
whole-process information for product innovations and
business collaboration. It will allow the Company to
improve its responsiveness to market changes, shorten
product development cycle and reduce development costs
while exercising stricter control on product quality, thus
ultimately boosting the Company’s business management
capabilities.

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Entrusted Investment of Non-financial Entities
and Investment in Derivatives

(1)

(2)

Entrusted investment

There was no entrusted investment of the Company
during the year.

Entrusted loan

There was no entrusted loan of the Company during
the year.

Use of Proceeds from Raised Fund

During the reporting period, there were no proceeds from
new raised funds, nor any proceeds from previous raised funds
being utilized for the period.

.
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3 XEFRAEBRATSN 3. Information of major subsidiaries and inve
companies
NA%R ERME IZERARE HER(TR) EERE ERWA R
Major products Registered capital Business
Name Nature of business or services (thousand)  Assets scale income Net profit
BRRAEARRUEREERAT BiEF ER R T R 50,000 416,855,140.73 75,360,604.13  516,765.73
Xi'an Ser Turbo Machinery Manufacturing Energy-saving compressor
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. rotor and complete machine
("Xi'an Ser")
EXnERERET AT ERAT BiEE RRREREZNE 60,000 129,931756.48 14,:861,307.91 -3,281726.17

Xi'an Ruite Laser Prototyping Manufacturing
Manufacturing & Engineering
Research Co., Ltd. ("Xi'an Ruite")

EHENRRERAA Bz
Kunming TOS Machine Tool Manufacturing
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
("Kunming TOS")

ERRRBRREARAT Bz
Kunming Kunji General Manufacturing
Machine Co,, Ltd.

4 FEKESHBARR
HBEMA - RAEFSRESRERER -

ZoAEIRRELA NS EEAR

() HRERBEROFNBIESTRNATH

7o

= HESR

—EEE EEEHEHOEBEMER
EETTHRE INHA

v NEH

—~

Laser prototyping machine

BE it AENHERERRZDIERREN 5,000(BI7T) 13841630623 30,503,244.44  -84404227

Development, design, production 5,000 (Euro)
and sales of self-produced
machine tool series products
and accessories
BRREANOREE  ReiE 3000 25,139,109.60 - -2,00646

Development, design and sales of
machine tool products and accessories

4.

(1

.
(1

Use of Proceeds from Non-raised Fund
During the reporting period, there was no investment from

non-raised funds.

PROPOSAL ON PROFIT DISTRIBUTION OR
CAPITALIZATION OF CAPITAL RESERVE TO INCREASE
SHARE CAPITAL

IMPLEMENTATION OR ADJUSTMENT OF PROFIT
DISTRIBUTION PROPOSAL FOR THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Nil
OTHER DISCLOSURE ITEMS

EXPLANATION OF THEBOARD ON THE “NON-STANDARD
AUDIT REPORT” ISSUED BY THE AUDITOR

v Not applicable
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VI.

VII.

VIII.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Since there is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Articles of Association, the Company did not have
any arrangement for the pre-emptive rights scheme during
the reporting period.

WARRANTS AND OTHERS

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries issued any
warrants, convertible securities, options or other securities
with similar rights, nor did any person exercise any rights as
stated above.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any securities issued by the Company during
reporting period.

BANK LOANS,
BORROWINGS

OVERDRAFT AND OTHER

Details of bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings as
at 30 June 2013 are set out in the notes to the financial
statements.

MAJOR LITIGATION, ARBITRATION AND MATTERS
COMMONLY QUESTIONED BY MEDIA

The Company was not involved in any major litigation and
arbitration and did not have matters commonly questioned
by media during the reporting period.

BANKRUPTCY AND RESTRUCTURING RELATED
MATTERS

None

ASSETS TRANSACTIONS AND MERGER OF
COMPANIES

v Not applicable

EQUITY INCENTIVES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
EFFECT

v Not applicable

MAJOR CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
v Not applicable

R
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XI.
(1

MATERIAL
PERFORMANCE

ESCROW AGENCY, CONTRACTING AND LEASE MATTERS
v Not applicable

CONTRACTS

GUARANTEE
v Not applicable

OTHER MATERIAL CONTRACTS OR TRANSACTIONS

None

PERFORMANCE OF COMMITMENTS

COMMITMENTS OF THE COMPANY, SHAREHOLDERS
HOLDING OVER 5% SHARES OF THE COMPANY,

B EHANAESIE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER AND BENEFICIAL
CONTROLLER MADE OR SUBSISTING DURING THE
REPORTING PERIOD
NAEREE
TERRAT NAEREE
T RRERET RARR AEAWER FEHRT-
RHER FHERE &yl EIES RER BR BEET RRE LA
Specify
Specify further steps
Whether reasons for  in case of
Background Commitment Date of Istherea duly and failurein failure in
of Type of making commitment fulfillment timely  fulfillment in fulfillment in
commitment  commitment party Content of commitment and duration time limit  fulfilled time time
HRMAEY  Ef BHER(E ERML EBLAERLREISLALDER U4 & &
e E)EREL EREEZNRESENETMEMELN £aESK
A7 TR ZREAR LR ARBERNRANAAES
EBERATS  BERBREAREAR FHAEA
EXRRNEET S 2NXAARELTATSERR
¥R BNERHRR(EE)ARACAARALHAAR
BEEERAS  RETEEEERHNRE VAT
BAPEALTARL DREER -
Commitment ~ Other Shenyang It would provide full support to the business development No Yes
in relation Machine ~ of the Company in terms of technology, business and
to share Tool resources and would consolidate the relevant resources and
reform (Group) markets by leveraging on its own unique strengths based
Co., Ltd.  on the principles and models favorable to accelerating

the growth of the Company within two years after the
completion of the share transfer and share reform with a
view to developing Kunming Machine Tool as an important
platform for technological upgrade, business expansion
and sector growth to provide comprehensive support and
facilitate the sustainable and healthy development of the
Company. Currently, Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co.,
Ltd. has introduced production management officers to
the Company in order to facilitate the enhancement of
the production management capabilities and provide
convenience for the exports of the Company in terms
of market expansion.

21
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XII.

X,

XIV.

APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF AUDITORS

Currently engaged
KPMG Huazhen (Special General Partnership)

KPMG Huazhen (Special General Partnership) is a Mainland
audit firm approved by the Ministry of Finance and the CSRC
who is eligible to act as auditor for Mainland incorporated
companies listed in Hong Kong. Therefore, the board of
directors of the Company considered to re-appoint KPMG
Huazhen (Special General Partnership) as the Company’s auditor
and internal control auditor for the year 2013. The issue
regarding re-appointing auditor has been approved at the
annual general meeting of 2012.

PENALTIES ON THE COMPANY, ITS DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT OFFICERS,
SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING OVER 5% SHARES OF
THE COMPANY, BENEFICIAL CONTROLLER AND
ACQUIRER, AND RECTIFICATION ISSUES

During the reporting period, the Company, its Directors,
Supervisors, senior management officers, shareholders and
beneficial controller of the Company were not subject to any
audit, administrative punishments, disciplinary sanctions by
the CSRC and public censure by the stock exchange.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (“Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited with a view to enhancing the corporate governance
standard of the Company.

The Company has complied with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules issued by the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as the code for securities
transactions by the directors. Having made all enquiries, all
Directors and Supervisors of the Company confirm that all
Directors and Supervisors of the Company are in compliance
with the Mode Code and its own code on the standards for
securities transactions by directors.

-
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The Company has established the modern enter

continued to improve the corporate governance and regulate

the operation of the Company pursuant to Company Law of the
PRC, Securities Law of the PRC and other relevant regulations
issued by the CSRC and Shanghai Stock Exchange. The systems
of the Company are substantially in compliance with the
requirements under the Standard of Corporate Governance
for PRC Listed Companies jointly issued by CSRC and National
Development and Reform Commission. In the future, the
Company will continue to improve and strengthen the internal
control system in the normal course of operation with a view
to enhancing the standard of corporate governance.

OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

The Company is planning to issue the first phase five-year
medium-term notes of RMB300 million. The application has
been reported to the National Association of Financial Market
Institutional Investors by lead underwriter for approval.

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL AND
SHAREHOLDERS
CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL

TABLE OF CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

During the reporting period, there is no change in total number
of shares and share structure.

CHANGES IN SELLING RESTRICTED SHARES

During the reporting period, the Company did not have any
selling restricted shares.
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1. SHAREHOLDERS

(1) NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS AND SHARES HELD

BY THEM
Bz - ]
Unit: Share
RESRRFAH50707, 54  ARS0580FHR127F
Total number of shareholders as at the end of the reporting period: 50,707
(including 50,580 holders of A shares and 127 holders of H shares)
ATERRERER Shares held by the top ten shareholders
REERERK ERAREN
REA® REME BRILAI%) KRA% RERRER Rt &g Ri&g
Total Number of
Name of Nature of number of Increase/  selling restricted ~ Number of shares
shareholders shareholders Proportion (%) shares held decrease shares held  pledged or frozen
HKSCC Nominees Limited A 25.19 133,787,367 B A
HKSCC Nominees Limited unknown Nil unknown
BLBR(RE)ERALLT BREA 25.09 133,222,774 & &
Shenyang Machine Tool State-owned legal person Nil Nil
(Group) Co., Ltd.
EREIERENREN BREA 11.07 58,772,913 & B
EREMAT
Yunnan Industrial Investment State-owned legal person Nil Nil
Holding Group Co. Ltd.
Chan Kwok Tai Edde KA 053 2,800,000 & AA
Chan Kwok Tai Eddie unknown Nil unknown
Cai Qingshan AA 0.20 1,083,806 B A
Cai Qingshan unknown Nil unknown
ERRELT KA 0.14 750,000 B A
Kunming Jinghua Co. unknown Nil unknown
Lin Jianming KA 0.13 702,306 & A
Lin Jianming unknown Nil unknown
&l AA 0.13 696,994 & AA
Huang Jiang unknown Nil unknown
2R A 0.11 610,000 B A
Zeng Yi unknown Nil unknown
R KA 0.10 530,000 & AA
Zang Delan unknown Nil unknown
ATEERERERRERER Selling unrestricted shares held by the top ten shareholders
REEH BRERERHERONHUE ROBEERHE
Number of selling Type and
Name of shareholders unrestricted shares number of shares
HKSCC Nominees Limited 133,787,367 B EmINER
HKSCC Nominees Limited Overseas listed foreign shares
EEBA(KE)ARETAR 133,222,774 ARHEBR
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. RMB ordinary shares
EHEIXRERREBFREALRA 58,772,913 ARBEER
Yunnan Industrial Investment Holding Group Co. Ltd. RMB ordinary shares
Chan Kwok Tai Eddie 2,800,000 B EmINER
Chan Kwok Tai Eddie Overseas listed foreign shares
Cai Qingshan 1,083,806 BN EmINE R
Cai Qingshan Overseas listed foreign shares
RARBELA 750,000 ARBEBER
Kunming Jinghua Co. RMB ordinary shares
Lin Jianming 702,306 BN EmINE R
Lin Jianming Overseas listed foreign shares
= 696,994 ARHEBR
Huang Jiang RMB ordinary shares
2R 610,000 ARBEER
Zeng Vi RMB ordinary shares
R 530,000 ARBEER
Zang Delan RMB ordinary shares
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concert relationship among the above shareholders

The Company was not notified of any connected relationship
or acting in concert relationship regulated by “Information
Disclosure Management Procedure to Changes of Shareholding
of Listed Company” among the above shareholders.

Other than the substantial shareholders disclosed above, as
at 30 June, 2013, there were no other shareholders whose
shareholdings exceeded the amount required to be disclosed
under Article 60 of “Administration of the Issuing and Trading
of Shares Provisional Regulations” of the PRC and Issue no.2
of “The Content and Format of Disclosure of Information of
the Listed Companies” (amended in 2005); and under Section
16(1) of the Securities and Futures Ordinance under the Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, the Company was not
notified of any interests representing 10% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company.

Among top ten shareholders, there are three shareholders
holding 5% or more of the Company’s shares. They are
HKSCC Nominees Limited(hereinafter referred to as “HKSCC
Nominees Limited”), which holds the overseas listed foreign
shares; Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd., which holds
the state-owned legal person shares; and Yunnan Industrial
Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd., which holds state-owned
legal person shares. All of the shares held by these shareholders
are not pledged, frozen, mortgaged, nor designated.

Notes:

1).  HKSCC (Nominees) Limited holds shares on behalf of clients.
The Company did not receive any notification that any H
shareholder held more than 10% in total share capital of the
Company. H shareholder held more than 5% in total share
capital: nil.

2).  Save as disclosed above, the Directors were not notified by any
person (who is not a Director or a chief executive officer) who
owns the interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company and shall be disclosed to the Company
in compliance with the requirements contained in Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO"),
or the interest or short position that shall be included in the
prescribed register in accordance with section 336 of SFO.
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3). Asat 30 June 2013, none of the Directors and the Supervisors
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and/or debentures (as the case may be) of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which have been notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO, including interests or short positions
which the Directors or the Supervisors are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO, or which are required
to be and are recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

This issue was announced in accordance with the regulation
— Notice of Supervising the Shareholders of Listed Companies
Implementing the Rules on Lessening Terminated Selling
Restricted Shareholding issued by Shanghai Stock Exchange.

= ERBRAEBREZEFHARESR I1l. SHAREHOLDERS AND BENEFICIAL CONTROLLERS
$$&¢Hﬁﬁq A1 AR AR R B B R 4 AR There was no change in the controlling shareholders and

BREE

EE -EE - GHAEBABER VILI.

- BREFHER

BEMARFES &
FRE AL -

2
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>
il

ot

(- RERBEHARTIES - EBSNs (1)
REBEANEBEREHENR

RAFEE-EE SREEAREH 1.

beneficial controller during the reporting period.

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT OFFICERS

MOVEMENT IN
EMOLUMENTS

MOVEMENT IN SHAREHOLDING OF EXISTING AND
RESIGNED DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT OFFICERS DURING THE REPORTING
PERIOD

SHAREHOLDING AND

During the reporting period, there was no change of
shareholding held by directors, supervisors and senior
management officers.

CHANGE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR

155 MANAGEMENT OFFICERS DURING THE REPORTING
PERIOD

e EENEE SHER 2EERERE

Name Position Change Reasons for Change

2R BUESR BE(E EEER

Liu Minghui Independent Non-Executive Resignation Tenure of appointment expired
Director (“INED")

ol BUESR HeE

Yang Xiongsheng INED Appointment

FRM BUESR BE(E EEER

Li Dongru INED Resignation Tenure of appointment expired

FRE BUES HeE

Yu Chengting INED Appointment

RER b S B TERE

Zhang Xiaoyi General Manager Resignation Job transfer

BER b S B TERE

Chang Baogiang General Manager Appointment Job transfer

MEEEERARKEROERLE 2013 FHHE




N~ BB®E

VIII. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EHEEERBR(KKEET) CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET - Unaudited
20136 H30H As at 30 June 2013
TEE  ARKT
Unit: RMB
k=3 20136 H30R 20128128318
As at As at
1HH Items Note 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
REEE : CURRENT ASSETS:
EBES Cash at bank and on hand (H) (V)1 118,714,862.61 98,887,040.73
eSS Bills receivable (H) (V)2 91,495,287.49 74,194,825.88
& W BR 5K Accounts receivable (#) (V)3 287,730,391.71 296,885,249.95
B IA Prepayments (7) (V)5 37,786,083.20 38,170,658.92
Hofth & LR Other receivables () (V)4 22,848,736.50 13,678,852.21
lE3= Inventories (f) (V)6 1,072,384,215.21 1,011,927,770.40
HihRme & E Other current assets (H) (V)7 1,495,385.23 1,495,385.23
RBEES TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,632,454,961.95 1,535,239,783.32
*RBEE : NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
RERERE Long-term equity investments () (V)8 57,258,456.02 59,124,901.68
BTEE Fixed assets (#) (V)9 522,017,877.18 539,598,993.33
EREIR Construction in progress () (V)10 247,997,950.35 182,359,702.75
BEREE Intangible assets (7) (V)11 67,615,915.15 69,000,264.01
G Goodwill () (V) 12 7,296,277.00 7,296,277.00
REGHER Long-term deferred expenses () (V)13 1,744,427.07 1,926,385.55
EEFEREE Deferred tax assets (7) (V) 14 70,729,093.35 62,869,275.31
HihFEREEE Other non-current assets () (V)15 86,478,623.80 91,336,642.15
ERBEEAF TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,061,138,619.92 1,013,512,441.78
EEAG TOTAL ASSETS 2,693,593,581.87 2,548,752,225.10
REEE: CURRENT LIABILITIES:
MHIE R Short-term loans () (V)18 200,000,000.00 105,000,000.00
N EE Bills payable () (V) 19 12,873,820.96 28,693,005.00
FE TR 5K Accounts payable (7) (V) 20 525,892,042.04 506,762,578.19
TE R IE Advances from customers (7) (V) 21 386,283,316.21 339,341,062.27
R A<F B T 37 B Employee benefits payable () (V) 22 31,674,930.61 25,500,401.68
e T B Taxes payable () (V)23 9,789,114.05 12,322,840.16
& 155 B ) Dividends payable (F) (V) 24 135,898.49 135,898.49
HAth FE R Other payables (7) (V)25 101,073,946.42 73,419,209.14
—FNIBNERDEE Non-current liabilities due
within one year ()~ (v)27 418,509.00 418,509.00

RBAEAT

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

1,268,141,577.78

1,091,593,503.93
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EHEEEBER(REER) (&)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET - Unaudited (Continued)

201346 A30H As at 30 June 2013
TEEN c ARMT
Unit: RMB
et 20136 H30H 20125128318
As at As at
HAB Items Note 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
FRBEE: NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
KA Long-term payables (#) (V) 28 1,599,068.40 1,705,672.90
EHENR Special payables (#) (V) 29 15,167,565.87 15,167,565.87
EaE Provisions (#) (V) 26 5,640,920.94 9,921,145.94
Hip3EmeENaE Other non-current liabilities (7))~ (V) 30 82,779,591.49 66,773,920.91
FRBEBEA TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 105,187,146.70 93,568,305.62
BEE TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,373,328,724.48 1,185,161,809.55
RRfER ¢ Shareholders’ equity:
e Share capital ()~ (V) 31 531,081,103.00 531,081,103.00
BANE Capital reserve ()~ (V) 32 27,303,321.72 27,303,321.72
BHAE Surplus reserve () (V)33 116,508,002.60 116,508,002.60
RABFHE Retained earnings (F) (V) 34 599,794,349.20 643,404,128.51

BENERARBRERAR

BRI

RREZSF

BENRREDAG

Total equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company

Minority interests

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

W BHRRON2013F8 A9 EE=E ik -

EEREKA

TERHTHEEEA

BEIRBRAA

1,274,686,776.52
45,578,080.87

1,318,296,555.83
45,293,859.72

1,320,264,857.39

1,363,590,415.55

2,693,593,581.87

2,548,752,225.10

The financial statement was approved by the Board of Directors of
the Company on 29 August 2013.

Legal representative of the Company:
The person in charge of

accounting affairs:
The head of the accounting department: Li Hongning
(Seal of the Company)

Wang Xing

Li Shunzhen

s
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BEERER(KREHET)

BALANCE SHEET - Unaudited

201356 H30H As at 30 June 2013
2HEE - ARKT
Unit: RMB
HisF 20136 A30H 2012%12A31H
As at As at
1HH Items Note 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS:
EXEe Cash at bank and on hand 78,019,783.77 71,927,250.50
e Bills receivable 67,602,137.49 51,132,033.52
JRE 5 B 3R Accounts receivable (+)(x) 1 205,727,106.36 212,997,106.53
B IE Prepayments 35,738,118.58 11,023,576.86
JRE 5 A ) Dividend receivable 11,000,000.00 11,000,000.00
H IR Other receivables (+)(X)2 24,415,139.64 18,962,601.80
eSS Inventories 870,697,576.07 843,844,975.13
HEHMn#EE Other current assets 1,495,385.23 1,495,385.23
RBEEST TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,294,695,247.14 1,222,382,929.57
FRBEE : NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
RERERE Long-term equity investments 80,806,721.87 82,673,167.53
EEEE Fixed assets (+)(X)3 481,838,279.95 496,634,816.84
EETRE Construction in progress 247,695,903.35 182,094,281.75
BEEE Intangible assets 55,904,588.89 57,147,408.97
REGHER Long-term deferred expenses 1,599,987.07 1,727,777.55
BIEFEHEE Deferred tax assets 61,298,896.28 53,272,355.95
Hin3Ems & E Other non-current assets 86,478,623.80 91,336,642.15
FRBEEST TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,015,623,001.21 964,886,450.74
BEEHAG TOTAL ASSETS 2,310,318,248.35 2,187,269,380.31
REEE: CURRENT LIABILITIES:
RHIE R Short-term loans 185,000,000.00 90,000,000.00
JE1~ AR 3R Bills payable 386,527,323.47 394,827,490.92
FEU IR Accounts payable 243,348,658.78 205,275,982.82
JREA<F B T3 Employee benefits payable 29,472,837.78 23,937,684.85
JER T B Taxes payable 9,294,656.34 11,755,291.00
Hofth JE TR Other payables 98,604,101.64 71,088,145.09

—ERIPNFERBEE

RBAEAT

Non-current liabilities due
within one year

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

418,509.00

418,509.00

952,666,087.01

797,303,103.68
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EEEBR(REERN)(F)

BALANCE SHEET - Unaudited (Continued)

201346 A30H As at 30 June 2013
SRR ARKTT
Unit: RMB
et 20136 H30H 20125128318
As at As at
HEB Items Note 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
*RBEE: NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
REIEA R Long-term payables 1,599,068.40 1,705,672.90
HIHENK Special payables 15,167,565.87 15,167,565.87
B AaE Provisions 5,640,920.94 9,921,145.94
Hi3EReas Other non-current liabilities 82,779,591.49 66,773,920.91
FRBEBA TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 105,187,146.70 93,568,305.62
BEE TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,057,853,233.71 890,871,409.30
BRRES - Shareholders’ equity:
PN Share capital 531,081,103.00 531,081,103.00
BERRNIE Capital reserve 27,303,321.72 27,303,321.72
B#HAE Surplus reserve 116,508,002.60 116,508,002.60

RO EAE

BREZEE

BENRREZAG

W RRC N 2013F8A20BEE =S Ht f -

Retained earnings

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

577,572,587.32

621,505,543.69

1,252,465,014.64

1,296,397,971.01

2,310,318,248.35

2,187,269,380.31

the Company on 29 August 2013.

The financial statement was approved by the Board of Directors of

EEREA B
TEEHIFRAEA: FED

SRIEBRAEA FUE

Legal representative of the Company:
The person in charge of
accounting affairs:
The head of the accounting department: Li Hongning
(Seal of the Company)

Wang Xing
Li Shunzhen

R
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BOFFER(REER)

#HZE2013F6 A30H |L61E A HiR

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT - Unaudited

For the six months ended 30 June 2013

THEN - ARET

Unit: RMB
EZ6A30AL6EANE
For the six months ended 30 June
it 2013F 0128
EH Items Note 2013 2012
- EEWA 1. Operating income (&) (V) 35 353,217,038.61 631,677,302.95
ToH EERE 2. Less: Operating costs (B) (V)35 292,319,064.12 478,647,251.40
EELE N Business taxes and surcharges (%)~ (V)36 1,428,796.32 2,357,382.72
HEER Selling and distribution expenses 26,949,849.92 53,281,426.80
EEER General and administrative expenses 63,785,516.47 80,700,493.14
BHEA Financial expenses 2,302,930.33 4,101,623.86
BEAERX Impairment losses (7) (V)38 16,098,584.76 2464714814
M REWEBELA - J5ES)) Add: Investment income ("=" for loss) (%) (V)37 -1,187,757.24 2,558,989.11
i HBEARALE Including: Income from investment in
EORENE associates and jointly
controlled entities -1,187,757.24 617,934.94
= EERW (R - J5ET) 3. Operating profit (“-" for loss) -50,855,460.55 -9,499,034.00
m: EEMEA Add: non-operating income (&) (v)39 599,979.06 13,964,629.08
e BRIEH Less: non-operating expenses (7) (V)40 332,645.42 277,374.85
B ERBEEREEX Including: losses from disposal
of non-current assets 115,863.64 -
FIBAE(BRAEMU - [FE5) 4. Profit before income tax (“-" for total loss) -50,588,126.91 4,188,220.23
B BB (MG - 150ES]) Less: income tax expenses ("~" for tax credit) (#) (V) 41 -7,262,568.75 732,407.54
B FABFBRM - JR85) 5. Net profit ("-" for net loss) 4332555816 3,455,812.69
BRRERARRMFNE Net profit attributable to shareholders
(FBEA - 5 HE5) of the Company ("~" for net loss) -43,609,779.31 3,592,495.24
PERFRE Minority interests 284,221.15 -136,682.55
7~ BREE 6. Earnings per share:
(—)EREHYE (1) Basic earnings (“~" for loss)
(BREBBUI - 1531 (7)) 2 -0.0821 0.0068
(Z)RESRYE (2) Diluted earnings ("-" for loss)
(BREEIA - 135551) (&)~ (V) 42 -0.0821 0.0068
t Bt elE 7. Other comprehensive income - -
N GEREAE 8. Total comprehensive income
(REEBABIN - RES) ("-" for comprehensive loss) -43,325,558.16 3,455,812.69
FENILARENGANEESR Total comprehensive income attributable
(e BEBEN - 5RES) to shareholders of the Company
("-" for comprehensive loss) -43,609,779.31 3,592,495.24
FENVERANGAYEEE Total comprehensive income attributable
(RABRERN - 58T to minority shareholders
("-" for comprehensive loss) 284,221.15 -136,682.55

M EIRREN2013F8A29H EE =k -

EEREA : e
TESHIEARA:  ZED
BERBEEN s

Legal representative of the Company:

The person in charge of
accounting affairs:
The head of the accounting department: Li Hongning

The financial statement was approved by the Board of Directors of
the Company on 29 August 2013.

Wang Xing
Li Shunzhen

(Seal of the Company)
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FER(REER)
HZE2013F6A30H |L61E A HiR

INCOME STATEMENT - Unaudited
For the six months ended 30 June 2013

SHEE c ARKT
Unit: RMB
BZ6A30R L6MMAHE
For the six months ended 30 June
Wit 2013% 20126
EH Items Note 2013 2012
- BERA 1. Operating income (+)-(x) 4 277,856,434.48 533,080,596.01
W BERE Less: Operating costs (+)-(x) 4 232,827,799.10 396,054,285.03
2ERS RN Business taxes and surcharges 1,214,561 .44 2,032,102.00
HEER Selling and distribution expenses 23,694,887.08 50,022,570.31
EEER General and administrative expenses 53,184,611.45 69,069,595.54
HKER Financial expenses 1,348,670.99 3,144,787.50
BERBEL Impairment losses 16,098,584.76 23,517,148.14
me REWE BRI - I5RET) Add: Investment income ("=" for loss) (+)- (%5 -1,187,757.24 617,934.94
ﬁﬁF CHERAENRE Including: Income from investment in
RENRE WS associates and jointly
controlled entities -1,187,757.24 617,934.94
ZBERR(BBU - J5ED) 2. Operating profit ("-" for loss) -51,700,437.58 -10,141,957.57
e EEMIA Add: non-operating income 552,665.38 13,583,091.41
B BENTM Less: non-operating expenses 332,585.50 17,500.00
Ao ERBEERERX Including: losses from disposal
of non-current assets 115,863.64 -
= MBRE(BREEN - 3RE5) 3. Profit before income tax (“-" for total loss) -51,480,357.70 3,423,633.84
W PEHEBR(MEN - 15%ES) Less: income tax expenses ("~" for tax credit) -7,547,401.33 -3,605,358.08
EREORERI - J5RE5) 4. Net profit ("-" for total loss) -43,932,956.37 7,028,991.92
I EiRAlE 5. Other comprehensive income - -
A BENEBRE 6. Total comprehensive income
(FEBBAEI - BRED) ("-" for comprehensive loss) -43,932,956.37 7,028,991.92

SRR N 2013F8 A0 EE= S -

EERRA T #H
TEEHIFREA: FIEE
SITREBREA FHE

(REIEE)

Legal representative of the Company:

The person in charge of
accounting affairs:
The head of the accounting department: Li Hongning

The financial statement was approved by the Board of Directors of
the Company on 29 August 2013.

Wang Xing
Li Shunzhen

(Seal of the Company)

-
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AHBSHBRCGRESET) W S
H=2013%F6A30H |F61E A HR For the six months ended 30 June 201

HZ6A30A L6/ AHMH
For the six months ended 30 June
M 2013F 20128
ER Items Note 2013 2012
- REEBELNRLRE 1. Cash flows from operating activities:
HERM  REABRINRS Cash received from sale of goods and
rendering of services 354,738,265.29 624,424,901.39
WEHp RS2 ERERNSRS Other cash received relating to
operating activities (Z) (V) 44(1) 17,434,448 64 19,003,140.52
BERHBEMANG Sub-total of cash inflows from operating
activities 372,172,7113.93 643,428,041.91
BERm EXEBANRL Cash paid for goods and services 234,922,612 46 423,642,078.59
IRGEBINRARIZRSORS Cash paid to and for employees 123,769,757.68 164,870,188.66
INMEERE Cash paid for all types of taxes 37,165,599.94 34,245,894.63
XAEMELEEHEENRS Other cash paid relating to operating
activities (&) (v) 44(2) 16,633,971.05 23,914,506.53
BEEHREMM NG Sub-total of cash outflows from operating
activities 412,491,941.13 646,672,668.41
LeRBELANRSRETE Net cash flows from operating activities (Z) (V) 45(1) -40,319,227.20 -3,244,626.50
ZORETHELNELRE: 2. Cash flows from investing activities:
BEREREREINE Cash received from return on investments 678,688.42 5,000,000.00
REETEE EFEENEMRS Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,

BENENRSTFE intangible assets and other long-term assets - 39,930.77
RETAANINESFE Net cash received from disposal of a subsidiary - 943,758.31
WERELFR Cash received from security deposits 21,593,501.50 4,000,000.00
RERBESTANG Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 22,272,189.92 9,983,689.08
BEATEE EMEEMENRE Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets,

AEZffEE intangible assets and other long-term assets 30,749,013.29 61,300,594.15
EXRTRFATNEHEERNESHS  Decrease in cash from loss of control of a subsidiary - 5,970,608.35
IRREETR Cash paid for security deposits 17,060,947.44 829,831.87
RERBESRM/ G Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities 47,809,960.73 68,101,034.37
REGHEENTERETE Net cash flows from investing activities -25,537,770.81 -58,117,345.29
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EHRERER(REET)(E) CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT - Unaudited

(Continued)
#HZE2013F6 A30H IE6{E A HA R For the six months ended 30 June 2013
SHEEl c ARKT
Unit: RMB
#Z6A300 k618 A EM
For the six months ended 30 June
Hiit 2013 2012
EH Items Note 2013 2012
S EETBELNBERE ! 3. Cash flows from financing activities:
REEZRESNRE Cash received from borrowings 125,000,000.00 45,000,000.00
ELETHRETANG Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activites 12500000000 45,000,000.00
EEEBLANRS Cash repayments of borrowings 30,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
DERH - FERENFE Cash paid for distribution of dividends,
XRNRE profit or repayment of interest 4,651,780.00 11,494,175.78
EE Tl Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities 34,651,780.00 31,494,175.78
BEEDEENRTETE Net cash flows from financing activities 90,348,220.00 13,505,824.22
M EXLHHRERRLSENNTE 4. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
on cash and cash equivalents -130,846.05 -40,835.53
I RERBEZENTENE 5. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
(FHDUI - IS5 551) ("-"for net decrease) (&) (V) 45(1) 24,360,375.94 -47,896,983.10
m: BURERALZENHE Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the period 89,677,792.83 175,808,019.62
A BRBERBLEENHE 6. Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the period (&) (V) 4502) 114,038,168.77 127,911,036.52

BB HRERDN2013F8A290FEESE @ E - The financial statement was approved by the Board of Directors of
the Company on 29 August 2013.

EERRA T = Legal representative of the Company: ~ Wang Xing
TE@FIEEEA Fae The person in charge of Li Shunzhen
accounting affairs:
FIRBAREA T4 E The head of the accounting department: Li Hongning
(RAIEE) (Seal of the Company)
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#HE2013%6 A30H L6 A HAfHE

Unit
HZ6A30AL6EAHME
For the six months ended 30 June

st 2013% 0128
Items Note 2013 2012

- REEBELNRLNE 1. Cash flows from operating activities:

HERMm  REABRINRS Cash received from sale of goods and
rendering of services 267,243,981.70 523,493,121.18
WEHp R ERERANRS Other cash received relating to operating activities 16,698,320.88 18,111,450.82
EEEBRETANG Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 283,942,302.58 541,604,572.00
BEWm EXOBXIANERS Cash paid for goods and services 190,851,747.65 344,613,577.94
IRAABINREBRIZANES Cash paid to and for employees 108,317,454.01 150,183,591.48
TRANEERE Cash paid for all types of taxes 33,280,351.70 25,924,658.59
TREMBLCEEREENES Other cash paid relating to operating activities 6,551,370.95 18,091,847 41
EEEBRETH Gt Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities 339,000,924.31 538,813,675.42
e EHELNRERERE Net cash flows from operating activities ()6 -55,058,621.73 2,790,896.58
ZRETHELNEERE: 2. Cash flows from investing activities:

RETLARMENELFE Net cash received from disposal of a subsidiary - 1,000,000.00
BEREREREINE Cash received from return on investments 678,688.42 6,989,605.81
WEIREEER Cash received from security deposits - 4,000,000.00
REZBHEETAN Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 678,688.42 11,989,605.81

BERETEE BREENLR Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets,
RHEESRNES intangible assets and other long-term assets 30,290,907.37 60,652,227 81
REGEBRE R Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities 30,290,907.37 60,652,227.81
REGRHEENTERETE Net cash flows from investing activities -29,612,218.95 -48,662,622.00
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BEHREBR(REE:T) (&) CASH FLOW STATEMENT - Unaudited (Continued)

#HZE2013%F6 A30H 1L61E A HAE For the six months ended 30 June 2013
2HEE - ARKT
Unit: RMB
BZ6A30A L6fHA MM
For the six months ended 30 June
Hit 2013F 20128
EH Items Note 2013 2012
S BEEBELENRERE: 3. Cash flows from financing activities:

RERRKENRE Cash received from borrowings 125,000,000.00 30,000,000.00
ELTHRL TN Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activites 12500000000 30,000,000.00
EEEBLANAS Cash repayments of borrowings 30,000,000.00 -
AEIRF - FIERECHE Cash paid for distribution of dividends,

TS profit or repayment of interest 4,105,780.00 10,806,292.70
BEEDRSTM/ G Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities 34,105,780.00 10,806,292.70
EERDEANRERETE Net cash flows from financing activities 90,894,220.00 19,193,707.30

CERSBHURSRESSENNYE 4. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
on cash and cash equivalents -130,846.05 -40,835.53
I REeRRLSENFENE 5. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
(BRI - [ E51) ("-"for net decrease) ()6 6,092,533.27 -26,718,853.65
m: BORERRLEENHE Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the period 71,927,250.50 143,087,572.52
A BRASRBESENNE 6. Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the period 78,019,783.77 116,368,718.87

B HER D 2013F8H29HEEEZ @£ - The financial statement was approved by the Board of Directors of
the Company on 29 August 2013.

EEREA T # Legal representative of the Company: ~ Wang Xing
TEGHIIEEE A : =523 The person in charge of Li Shunzhen
accounting affairs:
BERIEEAREA 4 E The head of the accounting department: Li Hongning
(RAEIEE) (Seal of the Company)

- BRI I L




HZE2013%F6 A30H 1-61E A HAfE

HENBE6ANALOBREE HENNE6ANALOBREE
For the six months ended 30 June 2013 For the six months ended 30 June 2012
BERENTRRRE BERENTRRRE
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company Attributable to the shareholders of the Company
i3 iz &80 B0 AARAE  OURRER  BRERSH B& L9\ ] BBME  AREAR  JURRER  BRERST
Total Total
Share Capital Surplus Retained Minority ~ shareholders' Share Capital Surplus Retained Minority  shareholders’
BB Items Note cpitel resenve resenve eamings interests equity apitel reserve Tesenve eamings interests equity
- BiBE 1. Opening balance of
the curtent period S30B1A0300 2730332172 11650800260  GA3A0AM2851 4529385972 13635041555  S30BLA300 2730331172 11650800260 72724592210 5454644870 1456,684,798.12
S AAERRELE 2. Changes during the period
(BoW - 5 (" for decrease)
(e (1) Net pofit - - - 36097930 W15 4330555816 - - - 3NO4BA 136685 345581269
(Z)Epsese (2) Other comprehensie ncome - - - - - - - - - - -
Hi-=hs Subetotalof (1) and () - - - 36097930 W15 4330555816 - - - 3NO4BA 136685 345581269
(E)HEE (3) Appropriaon of ot (%) () 4
1 RHEHLE 1. Appropriaon of
supls resene - - - - - - - - - - -
L HRRAAR 2 Dirbuton
o shareholders - - - - - - - - - 1082162206 - 1062162200
(Mgt (#)Others
1 EATRTATN 1. Changes in minoity ntetests
[HEd S B5R fiom loss of control
i of asusiay - - - - - - - - AT666551 17666851
I BABE 3. Balance at the end of
the period S010300 2730332072 11650800260 5997943490 4557808087 132026485739 5308110300 2730331172 11650800260 72021679528 5423310064 144930231324

W EBRRON2013F8A29REEESH -

the Company on 29 August 2013.

accounting affairs:

EEREA F #=
FTESHIIEEEA: ZFEE
SHKEBEEEA A4

(RAIEE)

Legal representative of the Company:
The person in charge of

Wang Xing
Li Shunzhen

The head of the accounting department: Li Hongning

The financial statement was approved by the Board of Directors of

(Seal of the Company)
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BRERSHR(RLHFT) STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY - Unaudited

#HZE2013F6 A30H 1L61E A HAE For the six months ended 30 June 2013
BREE  ARKT
Unit: RMB
BEN13F6R30A LoEARE HEWNE6R0AL6BREE
For the six month ended 30 June 2013 For the six month ended 30 June 2012
g & B4R BEOR  RARAM  RmEsH & E40R BBME  AAEAE  BREESH
Total Total
Share Capital Surplus Retained  shareholders' Share Capital Surplus Retained  shareholders'
&R Items Note capital reserve reserve eamings equity capita reserve Teserve eamings equity
- BigE 1. Opening balance of the current period 5308110300 2730332072 11650800260 62150554369 12963979101 530110300 2730331172 116,508,00260  6%4712,499.07 136960492639

ZOREERREAE(RON - BET) 2. Changes during the perod (" fordecease)

(1) Net proft - - - BRI BRI - - - T8¥9 708919
(2) Other comprehensive income - - - - - - - - - _

Sub-total of (1) and (2 - - - 4393295637 439329537 - - - 0By 7089919
BLER (3) Appropriaton of profs
| RBERLE 1, Aporopriation of srpls fesie - - - - - - - - - -
1 HRRIAR 2. Distbuton to sharehalders - - - - - - - - 082162206 -1062162206
= BRuE 3, Balance at the end of the period 53108110300 2730332172 11650800260 57757258732 125246501464 53108110300 2730332172 11650800260  691,119868.93 1,366,012,296.25

W EHEREON2013FE8A29FEEE=EH M« The financial statement was approved by the Board of Directors of
the Company on 29 August 2013.

EERRA T # Legal representative of the Company: ~ Wang Xing
TESFIEEEA Fge The person in charge of Li Shunzhen
accounting affairs:
FIRBAREA =R The head of the accounting department: Li Hongning
(RAIEE) (Seal of the Company)

- BRI I L
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(=)~ RFEERER

o 5E B R BB IR AR (0 B PR 2 R (A T 578
[ARRGE])RMI1993F 10198 EH ZE A
RAMB(THRHEDKZBRDERDA -
AARMEFMiba AR BEEREEBETR
BEK235% o

N2 B) A2 A B BB M IR R A P B B SR AT 7 A8
Bl E L B g8k A[1993]1735F #t / -
EHARFIBRLHORMDERLDE - RUFEA
BEEAI EBEKKROERAR (AT
TRIE#]) - EREHIREIAER1993F6A4
30EMEEABIRALRRAR . FMLEER
B LSRN BAETT T EEFNE
FHEFEEERBARK17,925.878 7T ° It
HMEHTHBEREABEEEEERHE T
[1993] 42058 FZHttfE - BEBEFBEBEIREH
BEEEETIERHE® KE[1993]1145% -
FHCFEER B EEF i BT
HEERABARES 421718 7T BIEH
BiERFEEGIHEBARK14,504.16
BT ) 1%82.74% /) £ 51 #7 A120,007,400
B - SR mEEARKI00T B K
KRBREEHFEMAE ARBTIAKER
BENA D B A102,397,700/% M &
17,609,700 °

BRI ESZE B %% %[1993]505% #
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BREAFETE 16,5008 BHE » &%
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P by =1
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (ArFfa '
expressed in RMB unless otherwise specified)

(OF

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited (the
“Company”) was established in the People’s Republic of China
("the PRC") with limited liability on 19 October 1993. The place
of registration of the Company is 23 Ciba Road, Kunming City,
Yunnan Province, the PRC.

The Company is a stock company limited by restructuring from
Kunming Machine Tool Plant approved by [1993] no. 173 Ti
Gai Sheng issued by the State Economic Reform Commission.
The name at establishment was Kunming Machine Tool
Company Limited (“Kunji”). Kunming Machine Tool Plant
used its assets and liabilities at 30 June 1993 to invest in
the Company. The above assets and liabilities were assessed
by Shanghai Accounting Firm. The assessed net assets were
RMB179,258,700. The assessment was approved by [1993] no.
420 Guo Zi Ping issued by the National State-owned assets
Administration Commission. According to [1993] no. 114
Guo Zi Qi Han Fa issued by the National State-owned assets
Administration Commission, the assessed state-owned land
use rights included in the above net assets should be reduced
by RMB34,217,100, meanwhile, 82.74% of the adjusted net
assets (assessment value was RMB145,041,600) was discounted
to 120,007,400 shares with par value RMB1.00 per share. The
original investors of Kunming Machine Tool Plant, Yunnan
Provincial People’s Government and Kunming Jinghua Company
Ltd., held 102,397,700 and 17,609,700 shares respectively.

Approved by [1993] no. 50 Zheng Wei Fa issued by the
Security Commission of the State Council, Kunji issued and
listed 65,000,000 H shares with par value RMB1.00 per share
in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in December
1993. Then, it issued and listed 60,000,000 A shares with
par value RMB1.00 per share in Shanghai Stock Exchange in
January 1994.
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MR2000%F12 8258 AL XA KB E
(EE)BRARI(ATHEBI RARERX]) EHE
A ARBIFEIKRAE#EIH RO ER
NAREERGZ) JIAEFXEXEEZE
BEARBITFHENREEIZ?D71,052,146
fR o ZREEZED LP BT BBOATE
BB DCEARRIARHBIERO A
RARRRKREZFEMENILE) (F i
[2001]2835730)#t/fE - 7A2001F6HA5H -
BEBAFPFERNK  XRAEERBEEKN
F—RIRE -

7200238290 A TEHITHEE
BBEMPEEINE B ELES BB -
ERMEEEETIETHREERNETEAR
BIEZMTIEERTE  HEBAR AR
BIERFAFTABI X AEREERDBR
REJATEBIZRE#K]) -

M2005F9 A15H » X K B % 8% [5 # /K
(EBE)BRETAR([LHEER )RR
EEERE) O AMEEBRREBRIREE
BHHEHNRZRKEME7D71,052,1460% %%
REECHGERNEEEEEEELE S
(AR KERBHE R D AR AR EH A RKE
EEBBEMER) (BEZE#[2006]628
O E YETEELAEEETELZES
(ATl e | (EREREEIR (ER)
EREAQFNEBIAEREEHERMDAER
RAEEHENER) (FE QA F[2006]
25557 ) 2 AZAIB - N2006F12A18 © %
EBPFETR  LEEBNK AT KR H#
R — KARER °

On 25 December 2000, Xi‘an Jiaotong University Industrial
(Group) Incorporation (“Jiaotong Group”) entered into Shares
Transfer Agreement of Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Company Limited
with the People’s Government of Yunnan Province (“Yunnan
Government”) whereby Yunnan Government would transfer
71,052,146 state-owned shares of the Company to Jiaotong
Group. The transaction was approved by [2001] no. 283 Cai Qi
— the Approval of State-owned Shares Transfer of Jiaoda Kunji
High-tech Company Limited issued by the Ministry of Finance
of the PRC. Upon completion of share transfer procedure on
5 June 2001, Jiaotong Group became the largest shareholder
of the Company.

With effective from 29 March 2002, the Company used the
name “Jiaoda Kunji High Tech Company Limited” (“Jiaoda
Kunji”) jointly approved by the State Administration for Industry
and Commerce of the PRC and the Ministry of Foreign Trade
and Economic Cooperation of the PRC after completing the
business registration for change of company name in Yunnan
Commercial and Industrial Administration Bureau.

On 15 September 2005, Jiaotong Group and Shenyang
Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Shenji Group”) entered into
a Share Transfer Agreement. Shenji Group agreed to purchase
71,052,146 shares of Jiaoda Kunji held by Jiaotong Group.
The share transfer was approved pursuant to the “Written
Reply Regarding the Transfer of State-owned Shares of Jiaoda
Kunji High-tech Co., Ltd.” (Guo Zi Chan Quan [2006] No. 628)
issued by State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Committee of the State Council and the Opinion on Information
Disclosure of the Acquisition of Jiaoda Kunji High-tech Co., Ltd.
by Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. (Zheng Jian Gong
Si[2006] No. 255) by China Securities Regulation Committee.
On 1 December 2006, the register of equity transfer was
completed and Shenji Group became the largest shareholder
of the Company.

I <o
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MR2006F4H4H8 » KEBEEAARBIKE
MAARBFERIAER#EEHERMDER
ARRESESERENHEIRNERER
FEEEBREEZE N EmEHNEZH
REEEEERNEEELEERETAR
HRXAE#B D AER QB ITERE#E
FIRE R - EmEARBBEEN
TAREMAR 131,345,554 EEEBHRE
MERBEEELEBRETARI(ATERE
[EEEARERQA L) BIBEE%HB2005
F12831H - ZBREIEBECHBHREEEE
EEBEREZ B (BRI AREBHERD
BRAGHSEEREEEEBEANILE)
(BB ERE[2006]141258 ) #E/f - 20074
1198 - RiEBFEFERTK -

20071 H258 - R E % 2B R A
ERABRKEERNDBRAGREEZER
WERHLE ) (78 & #E[2007]1335% ) #t &
TRAEBBRESEREFR - RAR
LB KA FE 4 FA2007F2A268 & 52
EMHEERE S0/ #1.5606k% -
48 5t 8 18 §% 438,235,855/ © H AR
48 5t B 1% A% K28,091,9550% © HAX 42 &t
3 A% ZK10,143,9000% - 200743 A
5H RAlIERBIRBREUMFTR KR #
A% 17 £ 5118,728,3550% A it @ AR AR BX
HATEHIOR L BREHE2.70 - #FA
f% £ ™ B A200793878 - HE - L
£ E 411,088,398 0 EMAEBRE R
Al 44,891,7878% - ERHEE QR I
2,748,170 - It P B L H T E
% RABEARBRKREREHNIER BRI
DENER EIRBAE -

Government of Yunnan Province Regarding the Transfer of Title
of Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Co., Ltd.” issued by the People’s
Government of Yunnan Province and the “Written Reply of
Yunnan State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Committee regarding the Grant of Authorization to Yunnan
State-owned Assets Operation Co., Ltd. to Exercise the
Shareholders’ Right of Jiaoda Kunji High-tech Co., Ltd.” issued
by Yunnan State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Committee, 31,345,554 state-owned shares held by the People’s
Government of Yunnan were transferred to Yunnan State-
owned Assets Operation Co., Ltd. (“Yunnan State-owned Assets
Operation Co., Ltd.”) at nil consideration on 31 December
2005. The share transfer was approved by the State— owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Committee of the State
Council pursuant to the “Written Reply regarding the Transfer
of Part of the State-owned Shares of Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech
Co., Ltd.” (Guo Zi Chan Quan [2006] No. 1412). The transfer
was completed on 19 January 2007.

On 25 January 2007, the “Written Reply regarding the Transfer
of Shares and Increase in Share of Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Co.,
Ltd.” (Shang Zi Pi [2007] No. 133) was issued by the Ministry
of Commerce of the PRC to approve the share reform proposal
of the Company, pursuant to which a total of 38,235,855
shares (as to 28,091,955 A Shares and 10,143,900 H Shares
respectively) were transferred from the capital reserve to all
the shareholders whose names appeared on the Company’s
register of members on 26 February 2007 on the basis of 1.5606
shares for every 10 shares held. On 5 March 2007, the holders
of non-circulating shares of the Company made the payment
with a total of 18,728,355 shares held as consideration to
the holders of circulating A Shares on the basis of 2.7 shares
for every 10 shares held. The new A Shares were listed on
7 March 2007. Of 18,728,355 shares, Shenji Group, Yunnan
State-owned Assets Operation Co., Ltd. and Jinghua Company
contributed as to 11,088,398 shares, 4,891,787 shares and
2,748,170 shares respectively. After implementation of the
consideration arrangement, non-circulating shares held by
the holders of non-circulating shares of the Company became
tradable and listed.
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MR2007F3A23H KX AEHEBEEREAS
RF - RAERMAFBBERALKES
ERREKRKRHBERAR -

200768290 ' KA RB R R RN E
R AR QAR 48 IR A283,243,255
BE A& & S0 & #opg - H i &=
#141,621,628/% + 8 L 12 B IR KN A
424,864,883 - FMEARTTEE BAAR
#5424,864,8837C - R B E K EEH
HCRARRERRE#RBER D BR AR
BFANMEBINBRAOME) (BHEILHEHR
[2007]139058 ) #tf -

2009 10H22H » KEIKEE B EERE
EEEZEe(EREEECRMHAERAR
LR EMARIRNOBEAZETE BB EDN
HE) (A EHRE2009]11825% ) /£ - =
HERERABRENARRFAL7,018,331
BITHREEAERA TERETERERS
RETRAR(EEEATERENDEE  H
HBETHBEEELE ARE -

MR2010F6 23 EARABRR KRS
RiE - AR QAR 4B IR AR424,864,883
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BN EEE[2010]1305% ) &9 HLAE -

RRARREFRA(ATERBIAER ] X
R E IR K5I 2 an K BC 1 DA K &0 BE BY B
DB RDIE MR KRB - RET
HEMHE o

On 23 March 2007, approved by the shareholders’ meeting of
Jiaoda Kunji, Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Company changed its name
to Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited.

Approved by the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 29 June 2007, based on total share capital of 283,243,255
shares of the Company, increased shares on the basis of 5
shares for every 10 shares held to all the shareholders by
capitalization of capital reserve, totally increased 141,621,628
shares. After share increase, total issued shares of the Company
was 424,864,883 shares, and total registered capital of the
Company was RMB424,864,883. The resolution was approved
by the “Written Reply Regarding the Change of Name and
Increase in Share Capital of Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Co., Ltd.”
(Shang Zi Pi [2007] No. 1390) issued by the Ministry of
Commerce of the PRC.

Pursuant to the “Written Reply on the Change in Shareholders
of the Six Listed Companies including Yunnan Salt & Chemical
Industry Co., Ltd.” (Guo Zi Chan Quan [2009] No. 1182) issued
by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council on 22 October 2009,
47,018,331 shares of the Company held by Yunnan State
Owned Assets Operation Co. Ltd. were transferred to Yunnan
Industrial Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. ("Yunnan
Industrial Investment”) to perform the obligations as the
contributor of state-owned assets.

Approved by the shareholders’ meetings held on 23 June
2010, based on total share capital of 424,864,883 shares of
the Company, increased shares on the basis of 2.5 shares for
every 10 shares held to all the shareholders by capitalization
of capital reserve, totally increased 106,216,220 shares. After
share increase, total issued shares of the Company would
be 531,081,103 shares, and total registered capital of the
Company would be RMB531,081,103. The resolution was
approved by the “Written Reply from the Department of
Commerce of Yunnan Province Concerning its Consent to
the Increase in Share Capital by Capitalization of the Capital
Reserve by Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company
Limited” (Yun Shang Zi [2010] No. 130).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
mainly engage in development, design, production and sales
of machine tool series products and accessories, and turbo
machine and sintering fans series products and accessories.
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(I1). SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES::’-‘.

COMPANY AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared
on a going concern basis.

Statement of compliance with the corporate
accounting standards

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of “Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises — Basic Standard” and 38 Specific Standards issued
by the Ministry of Finance on 15 February 2006, and application
guidelines, explanations to corporate accounting standards
and other relevant regulations issued subsequently (collectively
referred to as “corporate accounting standards”). These financial
statements provide a true and complete presentation of the
consolidated financial position and financial position as at 30
June 2013, the consolidated results of operations and results
of operations and the consolidated cash flows and cash flows
of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2013.

These financial statements also comply with the disclosure
requirements of “Regulation on the Preparation of Information
Disclosures of Companies Issuing Public Shares, No. 15: General
Requirements for Financial Reports” as revised by the CSRC in
2010 in relation to the disclosure requirements of the financial
statements and their accompanying notes.

Accounting period

The accounting period commences on 1 January and ends on
31 December each year.

Functional currency

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB").
The Company presents the financial statements in RMB. The
functional currency is determined by the Company and its
subsidiaries on the basis of the currency in which major income
and costs are denominated and settled.
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Accounting treatment for business combination
under common control and not under common
control

(1)

(2)

Business combination under common control

A business combination under common control is a
business combination in which all of the combining entities
are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both
before and after the combination, and that control is not
transitory. Assets and liabilities that are obtained by the
acquirer in a business combination shall be measured
at their carrying amounts at the combination date as
recorded by the party being acquired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the net assets obtained
and the carrying amount of the consideration paid for the
combination (or the aggregate face value of shares issued
as consideration) shall be adjusted to share premium under
capital reserve (or capital premium). If the share premium
under capital reserve (or capital premium) is not sufficient
to absorb the difference, any excess shall be adjusted
against retained earnings. Expenses that are directly
attributable to business combination are expense in the
profit and loss at the period incurred. The combination
date is the date on which the acquiring party effectively
obtains control of the party being acquired.

Business combinations not under common control

A business combination not under common control is
a business combination in which all of the combining
entities are not ultimately controlled by the same party
or parties both before and after the combination. The
sum of the assets paid (including the equity interest of
acquiree held before the date of acquisition) and liabilities
incurred or committed and the equity securities issued by
the Group who as an acquirer for obtaining the controlling
interests of the acquire measured at fair value on the
date of acquisition minus the fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets in the combination, if the difference
is positive, it should be recognized as goodwill (please
refer to note Il. 17), or if the difference is negative, it
shall be included in the profit or loss for the period. The
transaction expenses of issuing equity securities or liability
securities as consideration for combination are included
as the initial measurement amount of equity securities
or liability securities. The direct expenses incurred in
business combination shall be included in the profit or loss
for the period. The difference between the fair value of
assets paid and its book value should be included in the
profit or loss for the period. The Group shall recognize
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired in the business combination at their
fair values on the acquisition date that meet the criteria
for recognition. Acquisition date is the date on which the
acquirer effectively obtains control of the acquiree.
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Preparation of consolidated financial stater

The consolidated financial statements are based on control for
the scope of consolidation, and comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries. Control is the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its operating activities. The financial position, financial
performance and cash flow of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting period,
through a business combination involving entities under
common control, the financial statements of the subsidiary
are included in the consolidated financial statements as if the
combination had occurred at the date that common control
was established. Therefore, the opening balances and the
comparative figures of the consolidated financial statements
are restated. In the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, the subsidiary’s assets, liabilities and results of
operations are included in the consolidated balance sheet and
the consolidated income statement, respectively, based on
their carrying amounts, from the date that common control
was established.

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting period,
through a business combination involving entities not under
common control, the acquired subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date,
and based on the fair value of those identifiable assets and
liabilities at the acquisition date.

For a business combination not involving enterprises under
common control and achieved in stages, the Group remeasured
its previously-held equity interest in the acquiree to its fair
value at the acquisition date. The difference between the fair
value and the carrying amount is recognized as investment
income for the current period; the amount recognized in other
comprehensive income relating to the previously-held equity
interest in the acquiree is reclassified as investment income
for the current period.
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Where the Company acquires a minority interest from a
subsidiary’s minority shareholders or disposes of a portion of
an interest in a subsidiary without a change in control, the
difference between the investment cost of newly acquired
long-term equity investment and the Company’s share of its
subsidiary’s identifiable net assets and the difference between
the consideration received for disposal of long-term equity
investment and the Company’s share of subsidiary’s identifiable
net assets are adjusted to the capital reserve (share premium)
in the consolidated balance sheet. If the credit balance of
capital reserve (share premium) is insufficient, any excess is
adjusted to retained earnings.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary due to the
disposal of a portion of an equity investment, the Group ceases
to recognize the assets, liabilities, minority interests and other
related items of the interests related to the subsidiary. The
remaining equity investment is remeasured at its fair value at
the date when control is lost. Any profit or loss incurred is
recognized as investment income for the current period when
control is lost.

Minority interest is presented separately in the consolidated
balance sheet within shareholders’ equity. Net profit or loss and
comprehensive income attributable to minority shareholders
are presented separately in the consolidated income statement
below the net profit and total comprehensive income line
items.

When the amount of loss for the current period attributable to
the minority shareholders of a subsidiary exceeds the minority
shareholders’ portion of the opening balance of shareholders’
equity of the subsidiary, the excess is allocated against the
minority interests.

When the accounting period or accounting policies of a
subsidiary are different from those of the Company, the
Company makes necessary adjustments to the financial
statements of the subsidiary based on the Company’s own
accounting period or accounting policies. Intra-group balances
and transactions, and any unrealized profit or loss arising
from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealized losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealized gains but only to the extent that there is
evidence of impairment.

Determination of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand
deposits, and short-term, highly liquid investments, which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject
to an insignificant risk of change in value.
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Foreign currency transactions 1

When the Group receives capital in foreign currencies from
investors, the capital is translated to Renminbi at the spot
exchange rate at the date of the receipt. Other foreign currency
transactions are, on initial recognition, translated to Renminbi
at the spot exchange rates on the dates of the transactions.

A spot exchange rate is an exchange rate quoted by the
People’s Bank of China or a cross rate determined based on
quoted exchange rates.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated
to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet
date. The resulting exchange differences are recognized in profit
or loss, except those arising from the principals and interests
on foreign currency borrowings specifically for the purpose of
acquisition, construction of qualifying assets for capitalization
(see Note II. 15). Non-monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies that are measured at historical cost are translated
using the foreign exchange rate resulting from transactions.
Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are
measured at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange
rate at the date the fair value is determined; the resulting
exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments of the Group comprise cash at bank and
on hand, receivables, payables, loans, and share capital, etc.

(1) Recognition and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities

A financial asset or financial liability is recognized in the
balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of a financial instrument.

The Group classifies financial assets and liabilities into
different categories at initial recognition, based on the
purpose of acquiring assets or assuming liabilities: loans
and receivables and other financial liabilities.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured
initially at fair value and any attributable transaction costs
are included in their initial costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition financial assets and liabilities are measured
as follows:
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- Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market.

Subsequent to initial recognition, receivables are
stated at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

- Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities other than the financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are classified as
other financial liabilities.

Subsequent to initial recognition, other financial
liabilities are stated at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

Presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented
separately in the balance sheet and shall not be offset.
However, a financial asset and a financial liability shall be
offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when both of the following conditions are satisfied:

- the Group has a legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and the legal right is currently
enforceable;

- the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realize the financial asset and settle the financial
liability simultaneously.

Determination of fair values

If there is an active market for a financial asset or financial
liability, the quoted price in the active market is used to
establish the fair value.

If no active market exists for a financial instrument, a
valuation technique is used to establish the fair value.
Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length
market transactions between knowledgeable, willing
parties; reference to the current fair value of another
instrument that is substantially the same and discounted
cash flow analysis. The Group calibrates the valuation
technique and tests it for validity periodically.
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A financial asset is derecognized if the Group's contractua
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire
or if the Group transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset to another

party.

Where a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety meets
the criteria of the derecognition, the difference between
the two amounts below is recognized in profit or loss:

- carrying amount of the financial asset transferred;

- the sum of the consideration received from the
transfer and any cumulative gains or loss that has
been recognized directly in equity.

The Group derecognizes a financial liability (or part of
it) only when the underlying present obligation (or part
of it) is discharged.

Impairment of financial assets

The carrying amounts of financial assets are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, impairment loss is provided.

Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired
includes, but is not limited to the following:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract by the borrower, such as
a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

(c) strong probability that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or go through another type of financial
reorganisation;

(d) the disappearance of an active market for the
financial asset due to serious financial difficulties
on the part of the issuer;

(e) significant adverse changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment in which
the issuer operates, indicating that the cost of the
investment in the equity instrument may not be
recovered by the investor;
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10.

(f)  asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an equity instrument investment to below cost.

For the measurement of impairment of receivables, refer
to Note Il. 10.
(6)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is a contract that proves the residual
interest of the assets after deducting all liabilities in the
Company.

The consideration received from the issuance of equity
instruments net of transaction costs is recognized in
shareholders’ equity.

Impairment of receivables

Receivables are assessed for impairment both on an individual
basis and on a collective group basis.

Where impairment is assessed on an individual basis, an
impairment loss in respect of a receivable is calculated as the
excess of its carrying amount over the present value of the
estimated future cash flows (exclusive of future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The Group discounts the carrying amount of the
receivables to its present value and the discounted amount is
recognized as impairment loss of asset, all impairment losses
are recognized in profit or loss.

The assessment is made collectively where receivables share
similar credit risk characteristics (including those having
not been individually assessed as impaired), based on their
historical loss experiences, and adjusted by the observable
figures reflecting present economic conditions.

If, after an impairment loss has been recognized on receivables,
there is objective evidence of a recovery in value of the financial
asset which can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss will not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognized in prior years.

. o
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Significant single acc

single bad debt provision:
Judgment basis or criteria for receiv:
individually significant

@  type of trade receivable (trade receivables): criteria:
RMB7,000,000 for single accounts receivable;

@  type of other receivable (other receivables): criteria:
RMB3,500,000 for single accounts receivable;

® type of personal accounts receivable (other
receivables): criteria: RMB100,000 for single accounts
receivable.

Method of provision for bad and doubtful debts for
receivables that are individually significant and assessed
individually

The bad debt provision made for individually significant
accounts receivable adopted both on individual basis
and on collective combination basis. First by individual
impairment test, if the present value of estimated future
cash flows (exclusive of future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the original effective
interest rate is less than its carrying value, the difference
should be recognized as impairment loss and should make
provision. If the impairment not being incurred after the
individual test, the accounts receivable should combine
with other receivables to provide bad debt provision by
credit risk characteristic combination (see (b) below).
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Bad debt provision for accounts

combination:

receivable by

For accounts receivable not impaired after individual
test which stated in (a) above, the Group will include it
in the accounts receivable combination with credit risk
characters to do the test again.

Divide the accounts
receivable into two
groups based on
companies’ nature

Basis for
determining groups

Receivables from third parties
Receivables from related parties

Group 1
Group 2

Methods for providing bad debt
provision by different groups

Ageing analysis
Individual assessment

Group 1
Group 2

In group 1, provision for bad debts made by ageing
analysis:

Percentage Percentage
of provision  of provision
for accounts for other

Ageing receivable (%) receivables (%)
Within 1 year (including 1 year) 5% 5%
1-2 years (including 2 years) 30% 50%
2-3 years (including 3 years) 60% 100%
Over 3 years 95% 100%

In group 2, individual impairment test will be conducted
to accounts receivable of related parties at the end of
the year. Should objective evidence shows that it incurred
impairment, according to the difference between the
present value of future estimated cash flow and the book
value, assets impairment should be recognized. Should
no objective evidence show that it has impairment, no
bad debt provision should be made.

-
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11.

Inventories

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

Classification and Cost

Inventories include raw material, work in process, semi-
finished goods, finished goods and reusable materials.
Reusable materials include low-value consumables,
packaging materials and other materials, which can be
used repeatedly but do not meet the definition of fixed
assets.

Inventories are initially measured at cost. Cost of
inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other expenses that to help deliver the
inventories to the current location and situation. In
addition to the purchasing cost of raw materials, work in
progress and finished goods include direct labour costs
and an appropriate allocation of production overheads.

Determination of cost of inventories

The actual cost of inventories is calculated using the
weighted average method.

Consumables including low-value consumables and
packaging materials are amortized in instalments when
they are used. The amounts of the amortization are
included in the cost of the related assets or profit or
loss.

The underlying factors in the determination of net
realizable value of inventories and the basis of provision
for diminution in value of inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realizable value at the balance sheet date.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
normal course of business less the estimated costs to
completion and the estimated expenses and the related
taxes necessary to make the sale. The net realizable value
of materials held for use in the production of inventories
is measured based on the net realizable value of the
finished goods in which they will be incorporated. The
net realizable value of the quantity of inventory held to
satisfy sales or service contracts is based on the contract
price. If the quantities of inventories specified in sales
contracts are less than the quantities held by the Group,
the net realizable value of the excess portion of inventories
shall be based on general selling prices.

Any excess of the cost over the net realizable value of
each item of inventories is recognized as a provision for
diminution in the value of inventories and charged to
profit or loss.

Inventory system

The Group maintains a perpetual inventory system.
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12. Long-term equity investments
Initial investment cost

Long-term equity investments acquired through a
business combination

The initial investment cost of a long-term
equity investment obtained through a
business combination involving entities under
common control is the Company’s share of the
subsidiary’s equity at the combination date. The
difference between the initial investment cost
and the carrying amounts of the consideration
given is adjusted to share premium in capital
reserve. If the balance of the share premium is
insufficient, any excess is adjusted to retained
earnings.

For long-term equity investments obtained
through business combinations involving
enterprises not under common control, the
initial investment cost represents the aggregate
of the fair values of assets transferred, liabilities
assumed, and equity securities issued by the
Company, in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For a long-term equity investment
obtained through a business combination
not involving enterprises under common
control and achieved in stages, the initial cost
comprises the carrying value of previously-held
equity investment in the acquiree immediately
before the acquisition date, and the additional
investment cost at the acquisition date.

I
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-~ An investment in a subsidiary
than through a business combination

recognized at actual payment cost if the Group

acquires the investment by cash, or at the
value stipulated in the investment contract or
agreement if an investment is contributed by
shareholders.

(2) Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit and

loss

(a) Investments in subsidiaries

In the Company’s financial statements, long-term
equity investments in subsidiaries are measured
subsequently by using the cost method. Cash
dividends or profit distributions declared by
subsidiaries and attributed to the Company shall
be recognized as investment income (not identifying
whether it is the net profit realized by investee
before or after investment), except those that
have been declared but unpaid at the time of
acquisition and therefore included in the price paid
or consideration.

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
provision for impairment in the balance sheet.

In the Group’s consolidated financial statements,
long-term equity investments in subsidiaries are
accounted for in accordance with the principles
described in Note Il. 6.
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Investment in jointly controlled enterprises and
associates

A jointly controlled enterprise is an enterprise which
operates under joint control (see Note II. 12(3)) in
accordance with a contractual agreement between
the Group and other parities.

An associate is an enterprise over which the Group
has significant influence (see Note Il. 12(3)).

An investment in a jointly controlled enterprise or an
associate is accounted for using the equity method
when subsequent measurement is made, unless the
investment meets the requirements as held-for-sale
(see Note Il. 26).

The Group makes the following accounting
treatments when using the equity method:

- Where the initial investment cost of a long-term
equity investment exceeds the Group's interest
in the fair value of the investee’s identifiable
net assets at the date of acquisition, the
investment is initially recognized at the initial
investment cost. Where the initial investment
cost is less than the Group's interest in the
fair value of the investee’s identifiable net
assets, the investment is initially recognized
at the investor’s share of the fair value of
the investee’s identifiable net assets, and the
difference is charged to profit or loss.

- After the acquisition of the investment, the
Group recognizes its share of the investee’s
net profit or loss, and the difference is charged
to profit or loss are not quoted in an active
market recognized by the Group before the
first-time adoption of CAS, as investment
income or losses, and adjusts the carrying
amount of investment accordingly. The debit
balance of the equity investment difference is
amortized using the straight-line method over
the period which is determined in accordance
with previous accounting standards. Once
the investee declares any cash dividends or
profits distributions, the carrying amount of
the investment is reduced by that attributable
to the Group.

-
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net profits or losses after making appropriate
adjustments to align the accounting policies
or accounting periods with those of the Group
based on the fair values of the investee’s
identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition.
Unrealized profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its
associates or jointly controlled enterprises
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associates or jointly controlled
enterprises. Unrealized losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its
associates or jointly controlled enterprises
are eliminated in the same way as unrealized
gains but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

The Group discontinues recognizing its share
of net losses of the investee after the carrying
amount of the long-term equity investment
and any long-term interest that in substance
forms part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or the jointly controlled enterprises is
reduced to zero, except to the extent that the
Group has an obligation to assume additional
losses. Where net profits are subsequently
made by the associate or jointly controlled
enterprises, the Group resumes recognizing
its share of those profits only after its share
of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognized.

For other changes of shareholders’ equity other
than net profits or losses of jointly controlled
enterprises or associates, the Group adjusts
the carrying amount of the long— term equity
investment and recognizes it in shareholder’s
equity.
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Other long-term equity investments

Other long-term equity investments refer to
investments where the Group does not have
control, joint control or significant influence over
the investees, and the investments are not quoted
in an active market and their fair value cannot be
reliably measured.

Other long-term equity investments are accounted for
subsequently using the cost method. Cash dividends
or profit distributions declared by subsidiaries and
attributed to the Group shall be recognized as
investment income (regardless of whether it is
the net profit realized by investee before or after
investment), except those that have been declared
but unpaid at the time of acquisition and therefore
included in the price paid or consideration.

Basis for determining the existence of joint control or
significant influence over an investee

Joint control is the contractual agreed sharing of control
over an investee's economic activity, and exists only when
the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to
the activity require the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing the control. The following evidences shall be
considered when determining whether the Group can

I8 exercise joint control over an investee:

- RAEA-—ERETHTEE -
BIEBIREEEVNEERE
E

- YREREAEUEREEED -
MAKRDBEEREN —

FIE :

- WMREBFRETEBERLDBE -
M ERERN—EARES
HEREBEUNBAEESETT
B AEREMAGESRE
TEE-RRABTHNTHMEL
BUREE AT E IR E

no single investor is in a position to control the
operating activities unilaterally;

operating decisions relating to the investee’s
economic activity require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing the control,

if the parties sharing the control appoint one investor
as the operator or manager of the jointly controlled
enterprises through the contractual arrangement, the
operator must act within the financial and operating
policies that have been agreed by the investors in
accordance with the contractual arrangement.

MEEEERARKEROERLE 2013 FHHE




4)

ERFERHRREEMNIMHME
ERRELERKOES - BATEE
%#ﬂ&%ﬁﬁ@ﬁ AR RESE
LE AR AV I TE o AN S 7 ) B 8 1 3R
BEURSA TEEK%% BRE
BT —RBXZRIGHE

- RAERKREBENMNESZTEX
BUENIHERRERE

- REZ2EBREFEMOHBERS
EBIE

- REOEEREBUNC MELE
E X%

2
ﬁw&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁA

\
il Hm

\
”

- REARAWKREBMREHBERR
MERF

JBIE R 7702 KB (B E et HE 0%

HTY AR AERAMBENGRE
BRE R B A MR EE BT IR A
2HKFE=19-°

HNEMREBRERE  ®EERE
xA - ANEEHEBRAREREN
FEHEBEEETRE AEHIEER
A% IR B B RE R - 2R (AR
FRETHE - ZRERENEREE
EeRRRELEREEERTISI
o iT*XiﬁimuE?ﬁiﬁﬁ@ﬁEmfﬁfﬁ
B MEZENER  ERRRER
K- FHAEHER - ZREBKXTR
(g o

H & B R % B 4 PR AR SR (E
EEREEERARKRAIR -

(4)

financial and operating policy decisions of an investe
but is not control or joint control over those policies. The
following one or more evidences shall be considered when
determining whether the Group can exercise significant
influence over an investee:

- representation on the board of directors or equivalent
governing body of the investee;

- participation in policy-making processes;

- material transactions between the investor and the
investee;

- interchange of managerial personnel;
- provision of essential technical information.

Method of impairment testing and provision for
impairment

For the method of impairment testing and provision for
impairment for subsidiaries, jointly controlled enterprises
and associates, refer to Note Il. 19.

For other long-term equity investments, the carrying
amount is required to be tested for Impairment at the
balance sheet date. If there is objective evidence that the
investments may be impaired, the impairment shall be
assessed on an individual basis. The impairment loss is
measured as the amount by which the carrying amount
of the investment exceeds the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
on return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss is not reversed.

Other long-term equity investments are stated at cost
less impairment losses in the balance sheet.
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13.

Fixed assets

(1)

(2)

Recognition criteria for fixed assets

Fixed assets represent the tangible assets held by the
Group for use in the production of goods, rendering of
services or for operation and administrative purposes
with useful lives over one accounting year.

The initial cost of a purchased fixed asset comprises the
purchase price, related taxes, and any directly attributable
expenditure for bringing the asset to working condition
for its intended use. The initial cost of self-constructed
assets is measured in accordance with the policy set out
in Note Il. 14.

Where parts of an item of fixed asset have different
useful lives or provide benefits to the Group in different
patterns thus necessitating use of different depreciation
rates or methods, each part is recognized as a separate
fixed asset.

The subsequent costs including the cost of replacing
part of an item of fixed assets are recognized in the
carrying amount of the item if the recognition criteria are
satisfied, and the carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognized. The costs of the day-to—day servicing of
fixed assets are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation method for fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives on the basis of cost less
estimated net residual value and accumulated impairment
loss, except for those which meet the requirement as
held-for-sale (refer to Note Il. 26).

The depreciation period, residual value rate and annual
depreciation rate of each type of fixed assets are as
follows:

Annual

Useful Residual depreciation

Type life (year) value rate (%) rate (%)
Buildings and structures 40 years 5% 2.38%
Machinery equipment 5-20 years 5% 4.75% - 19%
Transportation equipment 5 - 14 years 5% 6.78% - 19%
Electronic equipment 5- 14 years 5% 6.78% - 19%

Useful lives, estimated residual values and depreciation
methods are reviewed at least each year— end.
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For the method of impairment testing and provis
impairment, refer to Note /I.19.

(3)

(4)

Recognition and measurement of fixed assets acquired
under finance leases

For the recognition and measurement of fixed assets
acquired under finance leases, refer to the accounting
policy set out in Note Il. 25 (2).

(5) Disposal of fixed assets

The carrying amount of a fixed asset shall be
derecognized:

- on disposal; or

- when no future economic benefits are expected to
be generated from its use or disposal.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of fixed asset are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item, and are recognized in profit or loss
on the date of retirement or disposal.

14. Construction in progress

15.

The cost of self-constructed fixed assets includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, borrowing costs that meet the criteria
for capitalization (see Note 11.15), and any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its
intended use.

A self-constructed fixed asset is included in construction in
progress before it is transferred to fixed assets when it is
ready for its intended use. No depreciation is provided against
construction in progress.

Construction in progress is stated in the balance sheet at cost
less provision for impairment (see Note I1.19).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of
the cost of the asset.

Except for the above, other borrowing costs are recognized as
financial expenses in the income statement when incurred.
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During the capitalization period, the amount of interest
(including amortization of any discount or premium on
borrowing) to be capitalized in each accounting period is
determined as follows:

- Where funds are borrowed specifically for the acquisition,
construction of a qualifying asset, the amount of interest
to be capitalized is the interest expense calculated using
effective interest rates during the period less any interest
income earned from depositing the borrowed funds or
any investment income on the temporary investment of
those funds before being used on the asset.

- Where funds are borrowed generally and used for the
acquisition, construction of a qualifying asset, the
amount of interest to be capitalized on such borrowings
is determined by applying a capitalization rate to the
weighted average of the excess amounts of cumulative
expenditures on the asset over the above amounts
of specific borrowings. The capitalization rate is the
weighted average of the interest rates applicable to the
general-purpose borrowings.

The effective interest rate is determined as the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash flow through the expected life
of the borrowing or, when appropriate, a shorter period to
the initially recognized amount of the borrowings.

During the capitalization period, exchange differences related
to the principal and interest on a specific— purpose borrowing
denominated in foreign currency are capitalized as part of the
cost of the qualifying asset. The exchange differences related
to the principal and interest on foreign currency borrowings
other than a specific-purpose borrowing are recognized as
a financial expense in profit and loss in the period they are
incurred.

The capitalization period is the period from the date of
commencement of capitalization of borrowing costs to the date
of cessation of capitalization, excluding any period over which
capitalization is suspended. Capitalization of borrowing costs
commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities of acquisition
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use are
in progress, and ceases when the assets become ready for their
intended use. Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended
when the acquisition, construction activities are interrupted
abnormally and the interruption lasts for over three months.

B
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16.

17.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated amortization and impairment losses (see
Note I1.19). Intangible asset’s cost less estimated net residual
value and accumulated impairment losses is amortized on
the straight-line method over its estimated useful life, except
that the intangible asset match the conditions of held for sale
(refer to Note 11.26).

The respective amortization periods for such intangible assets
are as follows:

Items Amortization period
Land use rights 50 years
Various software 3 - 10 years
Others 5 - 10 years

Expenditures on an internal research and development
project are classified into expenditures on the research phase
and expenditures on the development phase. Expenditures
on research phase are recognized in profit or loss when
incurred. Expenditures on development phase are capitalized
if development costs can be measured reliably, the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible, and the
Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete
development. Capitalized development costs are stated at cost
less impairment losses in the balance sheet (see Note 11.19).
Other development expenditures are recognized as expenses
in the period in which they are incurred.

Goodwill

The initial cost of Goodwill caused by business combination
not under common control is the excess of combination cost
and the fair value of obtained identifiable net assets obtained
from the acquiree.

Goodwill is not amortized. Goodwill is stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses in the balance sheet (see
Note I1.19). Goodwill is transferred when its related assets or
assets group is disposed, and recognized in profit or loss for
the period.
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18.

19.

Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses are amortized in equal installments
over the period that it enjoys benefits. Amortization periods
for expenditures are:

Item Amortization period

Decoration 5 years

Impairment of assets other than inventories,

financial assets and other long-term equity
investments

The carrying amounts of the following assets are reviewed at
each balance sheet date based on the internal and external
sources of information to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment:

- Fixed assets

- Construction in progress

- Assets acquired under finance lease

- Intangible assets

- Long-term equity investments in subsidiaries, jointly
controlled enterprises and associates

- Goodwill
- Long-term deferred expenses

- Other non-current assets etc.

f any indication exists that an asset may be impaired, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. In addition,
whether impairment evidence exists, the Group assesses the
recoverable amount of goodwill at the end of each year. The
Group amortizes the book value of goodwill based on benefit
from the synergies of the business combination on its related
asset or combination of assets, and on this basis conducts
impairment test for goodwill annually.

The recoverable amount of an asset, asset group or set of asset
groups is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its
present value of expected future cash flows.
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20.

An asset group is the smallest identifiable groﬁp’ of

that generates cash inflows that are largely mdepenen

of the cash inflows from other assets or asset groups. An
asset group is composed of assets directly relating to cash-
generation. Identification of an asset group is based on whether
major cash inflows generated by the asset group are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or asset
groups. In identifying an asset group, the Group also considers
how management monitors the Group’s operations and how
management makes decisions about using or disposing of the
Group’s assets.

An asset’s fair value less costs to sell is the amount determined
by the price of a sale agreement in an arm’s length transaction,
less the costs that are directly attributable to the disposal of
the asset. The present value of expected future cash flows of
an asset is determined by discounting the future cash flows,
estimated to be derived from continuing use of the asset and
from its ultimate disposal, to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate.

If the result of the recoverable amount estimation indicates the
recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. That reduction is recognized as an impairment loss
and charged to profit or loss for the current period. A provision
for impairment loss of the asset is recognized accordingly.
For impairment losses related to an asset group or a set of
asset groups, first reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the asset group or set of asset groups, and then
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the asset
group or set of asset groups on a pro rata basis. However,
the carrying amount of an impaired asset will not be reduced
below the highest of its individual fair value less costs to sell
(if determinable), the present value of expected future cash
flows (if determinable) and zero.

Once an impairment loss is recognized, it is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Provisions

A provision is recognized for an obligation related to a
contingency if the Group has a present obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Where the effect of time value of money is material, provisions
are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows.
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21.

Revenue

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefit arising in the
course of the Group’s ordinary activities when the inflows result
in increase in shareholder’s equity, other than increase relating
to contributions from shareholders. Revenue is recognized in
profit or loss when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group, the revenue and costs can be measured
reliably and the following respective conditions are met.

(1)

(2)

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all of
the general conditions stated above and the following
conditions are satisfied:

- The significant risks and rewards of ownership of
goods have been transferred to the buyers;

- The Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvements to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold.

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair
value of the considerations received or receivable under
the sales contract or agreement.

Rendering of services

Revenue from rendering of services is measured at the
fair value of the considerations received or receivable
under the contract or agreement.

At the balance sheet date, where the outcome of a
transaction involving the rendering of services can be
estimated reliably, revenue from the rendering of services
is recognized in the income statement by reference to
the stage of completion of the transaction based on the
progress of work performed or the ratio of cost happened
to the proportion of total estimated cost.

Where the outcome of rendering of services cannot be
estimated reliably, if the costs incurred are expected to be
recoverable, revenues are recognized to the extent that
the costs incurred that are expected to be recoverable,
and an equivalent amount is charged to profit or loss as
service cost; if the costs incurred are not expected to be
recoverable, the costs incurred are recognized in profit
or loss and no service revenue is recognized.
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22.

(3)

(4)

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis

with reference to the principle and the applicable effective
interest rate.

Royalty income of intangible assets

Royalty income of intangible assets is calculated based
on the agreed charging time and method in the relevant
contract or agreement.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of considerations given and
other relevant expenditures incurred in exchange for services
rendered by employees. Except for termination benefits,
employee benefits are recognized as a liability in the period
in which the associated services are rendered by employees,
with a corresponding increase in cost of relevant assets or
expenses in the current period.

(a)

(b)

Social insurance benefit and housing fund

Pursuant to relevant regulations of PRC, the Group has
joined a social insurance system established and managed
by the government organization. At the applicable rates
based on the amounts stipulated by national government,
the Group has joined housing fund and made contributions
to the basic pension insurance, basic medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, injury insurance and maternity
insurance. The contributions to social insurance and
housing fund mentioned above are recognized as cost
of assets or charged to profit or loss on an accrual basis.
The Group will have no further payment obligations
after periodic contributions mentioned above pursuant
to national regulations.

Termination benefits

When the Group terminates the employment relationship
with employees before the employment contracts have
expired, or provides compensation as an offer to encourage
employees to accept voluntary redundancy, a provision
for the termination benefits provided, is recognized in
profit or loss when both of the following conditions have
been satisfied:

- The Group has a formal plan for the termination of
employment or has made an offer to employees for
voluntary redundancy, which will be implemented
shortly.

- The Group is not allowed to withdraw from
termination plan or redundancy offer unilaterally.
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23.

24,

(c) Early retirement benefits

The early retirement is recognized only when the Group
has clear commitment to provide benefits to the staff
who initially retire early and the commitment cannot be
withdrawn unilaterally. If the related payment is over one
year and the amount is significant, the amounts should
be measured at discounted value.

Government grants

Government grants are transfers of monetary assets or non-
monetary assets from the government to the Group at no
consideration except for the capital contribution from the
government as an investor in the Group. Special funds such
as investment grants allocated by the government, if clearly
defined in official documents as part of “capital reserve”
are dealt with as capital contributions, and not regarded as
government grants.

A government grant is recognized when there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to the grant.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a monetary
asset, it is measured at the amount that is received or receivable.
If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a non-
monetary asset, it is measured at its fair value.

A government grant related to an asset is recognized initially
as deferred income and amortized to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset. A grant that
compensates the Group for expenses or losses to be incurred
in the subsequent periods is recognized initially as deferred
income and recognized in profit or loss in the same periods in
which the expenses are recognized. A grant that compensates
the Group for expenses or losses incurred is recognized in
profit or loss immediately.

Income tax

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to business combinations or items
recognised directly in equity (including other comprehensive
income).

Current tax is the expected income tax payable calculated at
the applicable tax rate on taxable income for the year, plus
any adjustment to income tax payable in respect of previous
years.

-
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At the balance sheet date, current tax assets and liabilitie are

offset if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set them

off and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their
tax bases, which include the deductible losses and tax credits
carried forward to subsequent years. Deferred tax assets are
recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax is not recognized for the temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (or deductible loss).
Deferred tax is not recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of goodwill.

At the balance sheet date, the carrying amount of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the expected
manner of recovery or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates that are expected to
be applied in the period when the asset is recovered or the
liability is settled in accordance with tax laws.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date. The carrying amount of a deferred tax
asset is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the benefit
of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and liabilities
are offset if all the following conditions are met:

- the taxable entity has the legal rights to settle the income
tax assets and income tax liabilities for the current period
by net amount;

- they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority
on either the taxable entity has a legally enforceable
right or set off current income tax assets against current
income tax liabilities, and different taxable entities which
either intend to settle the current income tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realize the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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25. Operating and finance leases

A lease is classified as either a finance lease or an operating
lease. A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of a leased
asset to the lessee, irrespective of whether the legal title to
the asset is eventually transferred or not. An operating lease
is a lease other than a finance lease.

(1)

(2)

Operating lease charges

Rental payments under operating leases are recognized
as costs or expenses on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss when actually occur.

Assets acquired under finance leases

When the Group acquires an asset under a finance lease,
the asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of
its fair values and the present value of the minimum lease
payments, each determined at the inception of the lease.
The minimum lease payments are recorded as long-term
payables. The difference between the value of the leased
assets and the minimum lease payments is recognized as
unrecognized finance charges. Initial direct costs that are
attributable to a finance lease incurred by the Group are
added to the amounts recognized for the leased asset.
Depreciation and impairment losses are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policies described in
Notes I1.13 (2) and 11.19, respectively.

If there is a reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain
ownership of a leased asset at the end of the lease term,
the leased asset is depreciated over its estimated useful
life. Otherwise, the leased asset is depreciated over the
shorter of the lease term and its estimated useful life.

Unrecognized finance charge under finance lease is
amortized using an effective Interest method over the lease
term. The amortization is accounted for in accordance
with policies of borrowing costs (see Note 11.15).

At the balance sheet date, long-term payables arising from
finance leases, net of the unrecognized finance charges,
are presented into long-term liabilities and long-term
liabilities due within one year.

R

MEEEERARKEROERLE 2013 FHHE




6 FEREEE

27

v

28 »

AEBEKELELREERS  DREEZE
AR T A BEENEERZ - W AZKRA
BEBE-—FATKNETEE  BFE
E REABRERESHRDEE(TEES
REENBEEMBHREE) SI0ABRAR
- ARBEREEAEEEAGJERFE
WEEAERBAHENERBDEE - FE
BESNEAIZRFEZHNZRER
REEREBEERLX REERERA K
FEMNIFRDEELEEERMNDRIFRN
EEERAH -

R A 2 B

BERERAR KFSMLENFBEOE
ARFEDEOBRFXAE  THEIBRE
EREXRANAE  ENEPEBRE -

BAHE

—HEH - ERAEH S —ARE ST
jJUEj(?/E. L/(&Iiﬁﬁj?‘l}ﬁﬁl%i:ﬂx—
TEES - HRRESR - EAKREE T o B
FaARAStH - EERIZBEIRE %‘Jﬁﬁ
TNEFEEMBER T EENEE  TEAR
SEMEET c ASBERAQE R BT
BEETER :

RARGBAT
RARGFAR

(0 BEARQNRXE—ERAEEHGEMD
g

HBAKBEEEARZEHRERZED

"ED
(e) BARNEEFR TR - KFRZEHH
EEKEA
(f) ZIKEIE’J BhE BRAELEN
NG
(9) ZIKEIE’J%% X BREBELED

N

AEENTEZREEBARBERBE
B K EERK B

(i) AEENBEREEA
PMREXE

BNEHERERE

Ek}

26.

27.

28.

Assets held for sale

The Group has resolved and signed a non-cancellable agreement
on the transfer of the assets classified as held for sale with
the transferee, and the transfer is expected to be completed
within one year. Such non- current assets included fixed assets,
intangible assets, investment property subsequently measured
using the cost model, long-term equity investment (excluding
financial assets and deferred tax assets). Non-current assets
held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and
net realisable value. Any excess of the carrying amount over
the net realisable value is recognised as impairment loss. At
the balance sheet date, non-current assets held for sale are
presented into each asset item by category.

Profit distributions to shareholders

Dividends or distributions of profits proposed in the profit
appropriation plan which will be considered and approved after
the balance sheet date, are not recognized as a liability at the
balance sheet date but disclosed in the notes separately.

Related parties

If a party has the power to control, jointly control or exercise
significant influence over another party, or where two or
more parties are subject to common control, joint control or
significant influence from another party, they are considered
to be related parties. Related parties may be individuals or
enterprises. Enterprises which is under common control only
from the State and that have no other related party relationships
are not regarded as related parties of the Group. Related parties
of the Group and Company include, but are not limited to:

the Company’s parent;
the Company’s subsidiaries;

(c) enterprises that are controlled by the Company's
parent;

investors that have joint control or exercise significant
influence over the Group;

enterprises or individuals under control or joint control
with the Group;

(f)  jointly controlled enterprises of the Group,
subsidiaries of jointly controlled enterprises;

including

associates of the Group,
associates;

including subsidiaries of
principal individual investors and close family members
of the Group;

(i)  key management personnel of the Group and close family
members of such individuals;
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29.

(j).  key management personnel of the Company’s parent;

close family members of key management personnel of
the Company’s parent; and

(I)  other enterprises that are controlled or jointly controlled
by principal individual investors, key management
personnel of the Group, and close family members of
such individuals.

Besides the related parties stated above, determined in
accordance with the requirements of CAS, the following
enterprises and individuals are considered as (but not restricted
to) relate parties of the Group or Company based on the
requirements of Administrative Procedures on the Information
Disclosures of Listed Companies issued by the CSRC:

(m) enterprises or persons that act in concert that hold 5%
or more of the Company’s shares;

individuals and close family members of such individuals
who directly or indirectly hold 5% or more of the
Company’s shares, supervisors for listed companies and
their close family members;

enterprises that satisfy any of the aforesaid conditions in
(a), (c) and (m) during the past 12 months or will satisfy
them within the next 12 months pursuant to a relevant
agreement;

individuals who satisfy any of the aforesaid conditions in
(i), (j) and (n) during the past 12 months or will satisfy
them within the next 12 months pursuant to a relevant
agreement; and

enterprises, other than the Company and subsidiaries
controlled by the Company, which are controlled directly
or indirectly by an individual defined in (i), (j), (n) or (p),
or in which such an individual assumes the position of
a director or senior executive.

Segment reporting

The Group determines the operating segments on the basis
of internal structure, management requirements and internal
reporting system, and determines reporting segments based on
the operating segments. An operating segment is a component
of the Group that meets the following criteria:

- that may earn revenue and incur expenses in daily business
activities;

- whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the
Group's management to allocate its resources and assess
its performance;

-
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30.

AN

~  for which discrete financial information on fina _
positions, financial performance and cash flow
available to the Group.

Two or more operating segments can be aggregated into one
operating segment if the segments have similar economic
characteristics and the segments are similar in each of the
following respects:

- the nature of each product and service;
- the nature of production process;

- the type or class of customers for their products and
services;

- the methods used to distribute their products or
provide their services;

- the influence brought by law, administrative regulations
on production of products and provision of services.

Inter-segment revenues are measured on the basis of actual
transaction price for such transactions for segment reporting,
and segment accounting policies are consistent with those used
for the preparation of financial statements of the Group.

Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. Key assumptions and judgments on
uncertainties related to estimates are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future
periods affected.

Aparting from the information of risk factors and fair value
assumption of the impairment of goodwill, termination benefits
and financial instruments contained in Notes V. 12, 22, other
key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:
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(a)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of receivables

As described in Note I1.10, receivables that are measured
at amortization cost are reviewed at each balance sheet
date to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment loss
is provided. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about loss events such as a significant decline in
the estimated future cash flow of an individual debtor
or the portfolio of debtors, and significant changes in
the financial condition that have an adverse effect on
the debtor. If there is an indication that the receivables
has recovered to its value and is related to the events
occurred after the recognition of the loss, the impairment
loss recognized in prior years is reversed.

Provision for diminution of inventory cost

As stated in Note Il. 11, the Group estimates the net
realisable value of inventories periodically and recognize
the excess of inventory cost over its net realizable value
as diminution of inventory cost. When making estimation
of the realizable value of inventories, the Group considers
the purpose of holding the inventory based on available
information including its market price and previous
operation costs of the Group. The actual selling price,
production costs and sales expenses and taxes may vary
with sales status, production technologies or the actual
usage of the inventories and the provision for diminution
of inventory cost may change accordingly. The adjustments
to the provision for diminution of inventory cost will have
effects upon the profit and loss for the period of change
in estimation.

Impairment of other assets excluding inventories, financial
assets and other long-term equity investments

As described in Note 11.19, other assets excluding
inventories, financial assets and other long-term equity
investments are reviewed at each balance sheet date
to determine whether the carrying amount exceeds the
recoverable amount of the assets. If there are indications
that the carrying amount of the long-term asset cannot
be recovered, the asset is impaired and impairment loss
is provided.

I
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(d)

(e)

AlEsBEREE(REEMA)NA
REEREREERRNFIRREE
(REEMA)BAARKESTRENR
BEREZHANBREE - HRAEET
EAGFESEE(REEMA) N
M{E - BT EER] SEEREMAFTEEN
NREE - EEFARKRERERE
B SEHZEE(REEM)LEE
mES - EE  HBELENAAR
AAERERERNFTRERFFEHEXN
HE - NREBEEGBIG ML EES
RAMBENESNHEBEER - 21
RIFAIEM A X FFH R RPTIEL AR
EE - EEMERKERANTER -

Ef& sy

T EE = 13 e - AEE Y
BETEEMENEESEERERH
RER EERSHAHRTEMNSE
o ARBTHEMNEFEENER
Fa o ORER A BRSO
EMBHERRE BEERASHI
AEERBHRABEENAEERIT
AR E MEEE - MRIA
AR EEHEEERE (L - Al@ERK
HIRE T EMBHERETHE -

Emm B ERE

AP EER - 26FMI - AKREERIFT
HIMERBELER  BROERKRT
EmBREEERENERIEHE
ARG RN RE - ARTHIM#EE
R EEIRREREBEEEM
MEEER  AEEEEEREER
BEHE KA ERER - ERER
BB ISR D - AT RER AR
HiR A 18 aE -

(d)

(e)

| ¥
The recoverable amount of an asset (asset

greater of its fair value net of selling price and its present

value of expected future cash flows. Since the market
price of the asset (the asset group) cannot be obtained
reliably, the fair value of the asset cannot be estimated
reliably. In assessing the present value of expected future
cash flows, significant judgments are exercised over the
asset’s production volume, selling price, related operating
expenses and discounting rate to calculate the present
value. All relevant materials which can be obtained are
used for estimation of the recoverable amount, including
the estimation of the production volume, selling price
and related operating expenses based on reasonable and
supportable assumption.

Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets and
intangible assets

As described in Notes 11.13 and 16, fixed assets and
intangible assets are depreciated and amortized using the
straight-line method over their useful lives after taking
into account residual value. The estimated useful lives
are regularly reviewed to determine the depreciation and
amortization costs charged in each reporting period. The
useful lives are determined based on historical experience
of similar assets and estimated technical changes. If there
is an indication that there has been a change in the factors
used to determine the depreciation or amortization, the
amount of depreciation or amortization is revised.

Product quality warranty

As described in Note V. 26, according to recent
maintenance experience, the Group has made provisions
for providing after-sales quality maintenance to its
customers on the sales of machine tool products. Since
the recent maintenance experience might not reflect
the maintenance information for sold products in the
future, the management needs to apply more judgments
to estimate the provisions. The increase or decrease of
the provisions will affect the profit or loss in the future
year.
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(=) B\ (111). TAXATION

1> EEBERBR 1. Major types of tax and tax rates
BiE BRI BE
Types Tax basis Tax rate
EER BREVERETENHEBE MR S HBUA 17%
Value added tax RERTHIEBAVE - EHRE PR RN

HEIETERE - ZREH D BERXIGER

In accordance with Tax Law, tax on sales
of goods or taxable service income for
the period after deducting the current
allowed deduction of tax, the balance
should be the taxable VAT in accordance
with the policies

EEM RIER & R W AGTHE 3%-5%
Business tax In accordance with taxable operating income

YR T A R SRR T RER N EET MBI ER 1%-7%
City construction tax In accordance with actual business tax paid

and VAT payable

B BN RER N EET MBI ER 3%
Education fee surcharges In accordance with actual business tax paid

and VAT payable

o 75 2B K N RER SN EET MBI ER 2%
Local education surcharges In accordance with actual business tax paid

and VAT payable

REPTIEH RIEMT TSRt it
Enterprise income tax In accordance with income tax payable Note
H: AR ARFHFATALERRER Note: The applicable rate of income tax of the Company and
HEERARI(IBALYER]) AN T the Company’'s subsidiaries Xi‘an Ser Turbo Machinery
NFRARELPEREFIEMER AR K Manufacturing Co., Ltd (Xi'an Ser) and Changsha Ser Turbine
DERDABEROAESHHEE A15% Machinery Co., Ltd. (formerly known as “Changsha Ser Turbo
(2012 :15%) c A AR EMF AT BB Equipment Co., Ltd.”) (Changsha Ser) is 15% (2012: 15%)
TSR & B25% (2012 1 25%) ° and the applicable rate of income tax of other subsidiaries

is 25% (2012: 25%).

Bl ¢ cessEersreERAA 203 FHEE




2\

BRIREZER#t X

M2011F7 8278 » B - BREALEM
Bl R B 15 48 B Bt A B B A R B e 7 2B
AFAZEEA BB EREENBA) (B
#[2011]585%% ) * #E B2011F1H1H i
Z2020%12A31H @ REASDBEASE
HEELERIRIS%HIHEHRDEEMF
o BEBEERRSED2012F4A6 B HYE
20128 B2 2% (EREAERA
HAMEEEEECEMSHREENRE)
UREMEERIMNEZR 8EMN20124F5
A21BAEEMCRER L% S B B AR AR 7D
ERAGEBESENR RSB EEEDN
RE) (Z3 e rmEE2012]3125%) » &
NARHE - AEMBEEEIEHRK RS
MEBHHFEARRERENEZFIFRS(E
EEBAREEF QTR )NEE
fE - S R B Bi[201 11585 X 4 S By &
¥NER AUEREBENLEMSHRM

EEEBEM0B3F2FERNEBEEE
HEFWAEBBEERABLEIOL
& 220136 A30H [-61E A i i # A
15% M) 1 3 BT 15 81 81 & (201296 H30H
\F6{E A EART : 15%)

EXBRWEBNEFRAERIITET ¢

DEER BERE BEERR
[k -1 15% BHREE
ROER 15% BHREE

#HE2013%6 8308 1-61E AHM - AAA
FARIEANRENHEEERRR LF
FHS BE £t -

Preferential tax policies and approvals

As at 27 July 2011, Ministry of Finance, China Custom and
State Administration of Taxation jointly issued the Notice Issues
on Tax Policies for the Implementation of the Strategy Further
Exploration and Development of the Western Region (Cai Shui
[2011] No. 58), according to which, from 1 January 2011 to
31 December 2020, the enterprises of encouraged industries
established in the western regions are subject to an income tax
rate of 15%. In accordance with the Announcement No.12 of
2012 issued by the State Administration of Taxation on 6 April
2012, namely the Announcement Regarding the Implementation
of Corporate Income Tax Policies for the Development of the
Western China, and the Letter of Confirmation Recognising
the Relevant Businesses of Shenji Group Kunming Machine
Tool Company Limited as State Encouraged Industry (Yun
Fagaiban Xibu [2012] No.312) issued by Development and
Reform Commission of Yunnan Province on 21 May 2012,
as our research and development, production and sales of
digital machine tool and high-performance components meet
the relevant criteria as stipulated in Order No.9 of NDRC
(namely Guiding Catalogue for Industrial Structure Adjustments
(Version 2011)) and the requirements regarding the encouraged
industries as set out in Cai Shui [2011] No.58 Notice, the
Company is entitled to a preferential income tax rate.

Management estimated that the Company would derive 70%
or more of its total revenue from the encouraged type business
in 2013 and thus applied for a preferential income tax rate of
15% for the six month period ended 30 June 2013 (for the
six month ended 30 June 2012: 15%).

The subsidiaries that are entitled to preferential tax treatments
are as follows:
Reason

Name of enterprises Preferential rate

Xi'an Ser 15%
Changsha Ser 15%

Hi-tech enterprise
Hi-tech enterprise

There is no change in the applicable tax rates and preferential
tax treatments for the Company’s subsidiaries during the six
month period ended 30 June 2013 as compared with the same
period of last year.
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() - XS RE M BEHRRE

qE

EEFAAER
(1) BHARIEREETXNRFHF
/'\‘57

RERER

MAM AR BRY EeED

(IV).BUSINESS COMBINATION AND CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Background of major subsidiaries

(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or
investment

b
fE  2fEx

FEORRR

RERAR

BR08 WHOEER

BRRR  BRED  RAERH R BREE  RaneR
HES (%) (% &% (ARM7)  (ARER

Reversal of
minority
Minority loss interest
Actual capital interests from
contribution  Proportion of Proportion of at the end minority
Type of Placeof ~ Businessnatureand Organization Registered  attheend shareholding voting rights Consolidated ~of the period interests
Full name subsidiaries  registration ~ scope of business code capital  of the period (%) (%)  statements (RMB) (RmB)
EREREARE ARRELT %A BRZIERR 6ossdp1y  ARH AE% 100% 100% £ - -
ERAF Company with ~ Ching SRR 3,000,000 3,000,000 Yes
(FBRRENE)  lnited EEAHE RVB RMB
Kunming Kunjl General ~ liabilites Development, design, 3,000,000 3,000,000
Machine Co,, Ltd. production and sales of
("General Machine") machine tool series
(note 1) products and accessories
RIER FRERAT A EfgZERR 750011803 ARE AE% 100% 100% £ - -
Changsha Ser Company with ~ Ching [iSER R R 10,000,000 10,000,000 Yes
lmited EEAHE RVB RMB
[iabilties Development, design, 10,000,000 10,000,000
production and sales of
compressor
products and accessories
A1 A2010F108198 » AR 7k Note 1: On 19 October 2010, the Company resolved to

REBRARE YREEEEIEZR
BESRAEENERITEET
B 201111 A8 B R W &
tEEFEEE-_AEH L ARF
REBHBEIRINEE XL ABA
BEFABRRBEERAENRS
% HULCELEETHEBET
{E »

dissolve General Machine and carried out liquidation
in accordance with the requirements under relevant
laws and regulations. However, as approved at the
2nd meeting of the seven session of the Board of the
Company held on 8 November 2011, the Company
decided to transfer its machine tool functions business
unit to General Machine, using General Machine to
continue to develop related business. Therefore, the
liqguidation has been ceased.

R
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ERiH W OEREE B

F0a28 FRAEE  bRER i fiegE rE  EREk -t (%) () A&k (ARET) (\RHW)
Reversal of
minority
Minority ~ interests
Actual capital interests  loss from
contribution  Proportion of  Proportion of attheend  minority
Typeof  Type of Placeof ~ Business nature and  Organization  Registered attheend shareholding voting rights ~ Consolidated of the period interests
Full name subsidiaries  enterprises registration  scope of business code  capital  of the period (%) (%) statements (RMB) (RMB)
ERER)  FERTOE AREERY 4 EEBZERR 263184 ARE AE% 15% 60% & 4557808087 -
YianSerfoote /) Non<ontoling Companywith ~ China REORE 3 50000000 50,000,000 Yes
subsidiary  Imited AEAIRE A3 RMB
liabilities Development, design, 50,000,000 50,000,000
production and sales of
compressor products
and accessories
1 AEEYHELZEBRNRRELFIZ Note 1: The percentage of voting rights of the Group in Xi'an
BREAEBREALERNEESH Ser is determined by the percentage of voting rights of
(R RELL BT - NEBEEN the Group in the board of directors of Xi’an Ser. Xi’an
HAZERNMEMEEREEK Ser was consolidated due to the fact that the Group
ZH o AL ERAAS & has gained control over its financial and operational
° decision making.
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(V). NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1- E¥%ES 1. Cash at bank and on hand
TEEN  ARMT
Unit: RMB
2013%6A30H 20125128318
At 30 June 2013 At 31 December 2012

HESEH fEx AREEE HESE hEE AREEE
Original RMB/RMB Original RMB/RMB
EH Item currency  Exchange rate  equivalents currency Exchange rate  equivalents
Bg: Cash on hand: - - 585,534.19 - - 314,067.72
ARE RMB - - 556,502.98 - - 284,355.04
it HKD 5,132.64 0.7966 4,088.66 5,132.76 0.8108 4,161.80
e UsD 2,186.15 6.1787 13,507.57 2,186.15 6.2855 13,741.05
E EUR 1,419.86 8.0536 11,434.98 1,419.86 8.3176 11,809.83
ROER: Cash at bank: - - 113,452,634.58 - - 89,363,725.11
AEE RMB - - 104,296,643.18 - - 7447745847
it HKD 9,083,072.09 0.7966  7,235,131.69  8,908,052.06 0.8108  7,222,810.21
e UsD 309,719.23 6.1787  1,913,662.21 1,208,691.32 6.2855  7,597,229.29
E EUR 893.70 8.0536 7,197.50 7,962.29 83176 66,227.14
AvE¥Es: Other monetary funds: - - 4,676,693.84 - - 9,209,247.90
ARE RMB - - 4,676,693.84 - - 9,209,247.90
At Total - - 118,714,862.61 - - 98,887,040.73
20136 H308 © A R #4,676,693.847T As at 30 June 2013, other monetary funds of RMB4,676,693.84
(201212 A318 : AR#%9,209,247.907T) (31 December 2012: RMB9,209,247.90) were pledged for the

METEBRESAERSERIRES MR Group's bank guarantees and bank acceptance notes.

ITHGEIEZER -
2 FERE 2. Bills receivable

(1) EWZEESE

(1)

Classification of bills receivable

LB ARBTT
Unit: RMB

201346 H30H 2012%12A31H8
B Type 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
RITHERIESR Bank acceptance notes 91,495,287.49 74,194,825.88

EREWREEA R —FREH -

LR BREFEHFTEARLFS% (B
5% ) A £ ZRORBE R &Y B IR 9 R IR

i -

The above bills receivable are due within one year.

None of the above bills receivable was due from
shareholders holding over 5% (or 5%) shares of the
Company entitling voting rights.

-
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Rl B S4B B R R

IHAFI :

(1) Analysis of accounts rec
customers:

LEEL : AR

Unit: RMB

201396 830H 2012912 A31H

E ]| Type of customers 30 June 2013 31 December 2012

g=7 Third party 528,325,349.35 524,468,635.11

2k Related party 6,395,648.77 4,181,928.75

NEF Subtotal 534,720,998.12 528,650,563.86
o ERERE Less: provision for bad

and doubtful debts 246,990,606.41 231,765,313.91

A& Total 287,730,391.71 296,885,249.95

FEUER FURERE AT T - (2) Ageing analysis of accounts receivable:

2EEMN  ARET

Unit: RMB

201346 H30H 20125124311

BRiER Ageing 30 June 2013 31 December 2012

1EAR(E1E) Within one year (including one year) 161,906,355.57 174,337,635.14

1226 (F25F) 1-2 years (including two years) 119,514,467.75 115,276,294.74

2EEIF(E3F) 2-3 years (including three years) 93,286,957.24 95,221,246.10

3L F Over three years 160,013,217.56 143,815,387.88

WNET Subtotal 534,720,998.12 528,650,563.86
W AR Less: provision for bad

and doubtful debts 246,990,606.41 231,765,313.91

ait Total 287,730,391.71 296,885,249.95

Rk B e W AR R FERR B AR ART E o

from the date of recognition.

The ageing of accounts receivable is calculated starting
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(3) MEUERFIRIE AR EE (3) Analysis of accounts receivable by category
2B ARBET
Unit: RMB
2013%6R308 2012812831R
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
i BRER FanE SRR
Provision for bad Provision for bad
Carrying amount and doubtful debts Carrying amount and doubtful debts
i &% 6(%) i t8i(%) £8 B Bl(%) 48 81(%)
ER Type Note Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)
ERCEERTER Indvidually
SRERERN  significant
and assessed
indivicually for
impairment 4) 41,753,757.01 781 12,425,627.10 29.76 - 41,753,757.01 790 12,425,627.10 29.76
FERHREE  Collctively
EROBIET  assessed for
impairment*
Ba1 Group 1 (3} 48657159234 91.00 234,564,979.31 4821 482,7114,878.10 9131 219,339,686.81 4544
42 Group 2 (1) 6,395,648.77 119 - - 418192875 0.79 - -
BT Sub-total 492,967,241.11 9219 234,564,979.31 4758 486,896,806.85 9210 219,339,686.81 45.05
A Total 534,720,998.12 100.00 246,990,606.41 528,650,563.86 100.00 231,765,313.91
gt HWEeREEBEEISARBARENE Note*: This category included accounts receivable having
U BR ZX been individually assessed but not impaired
BT AR EE DI - FEUR Except for those denominated by functional currency,
ERBEUTEMEE S5 : accounts receivable included the following amounts
denominated by other currencies:
2013564308 2012%128318
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
NeeE HIEES AEELE MecE HEES AEELE
The amount of The amount ~ The amount of The amount
uE Currency foreign currency  Exchange rate of RMB foreign currency  Exchange rate of RMB
eI uso 577,002.10 6.1787 3,565,122.86 248,069.10 6.2855 1,559,238.32
REEIWED il D RHREIRERD The Group did not receive any collateral for the above
FEW R B ERERRD - accounts receivable with provision for bad and doubtful
debts.
(4) HARBBESFEEAWEIRIRERE (4) Individually significant accounts receivable with individual
EE IR - bad debt provision as at the end of the year:
IRE SRR BREE HE3:4!] HH
Provision for Reasons for
bad and making
YRR AT  Type Carrying amount doubtful debts  Proportion provision
FEW & Accounts 41,753,757.01 12,425,627.10 29.76 ERERIAR
receivable FPh - BERE
Impairment
occurred under
individual
assessment
method

.
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(5)

MET - BIRERDITAT IRERER

(5) Provisions for accounts receivable

e

in groups-‘lﬁm a

B R AR K analysis method:
BREEW - ARKT
Unit: RMB
2013F6A30A 2012F12A318
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
i) i)
Carrying amount Carrying amount
8 tA(%) BRER 8 EA(%) BRER
Provision for Provision for
Proportion bad and Proportion bad and
R& Ageing Amount (%) doubtful debts Amount (%) doubtful debts
1ELA Within one year 155,510,706.80 3196 7,378,340.75 170,155,706.39 3525 8,422,640.03
182F 1-2 years 96,286,710.74 1979 28,886,013.23  92,048,537.73 19.07  27,475,061.33
2535 2-3 years 74,760,957.24 15.36  46,264,574.35  76,695,246.10 15.89  47,425,147.66
IENUE Qver 3 years 160,013,217.56 32.89 152,036,050.98 143,815,387.88 29.79 136,016,837.79
ait Total 486,571,592.34 100.00 234,564,979.31 482,714,878.10 100.00 219,339,686.81

7N HAE AN S (B 4R 25 AR B K A FELRBR 5K (6) During the reporting period, no significant bad debt
HEREBE R T o provision for the accounts receivable was reversed or
collected.
7N HARE AN £ (B 4R 25 AR B K O R LRBR 5K (7) During the reporting period, there was no significant
B8 o writing-off for the accounts receivable.
FEWERSEAT AR EMIBR (8) Amounts of top five accounts receivable
2BEN  ARKT
Unit: RMB
1 FE W BR X
BNER BEAR N T BIR X AR BB EEBI(%)
Percentage of
Relationship total accounts
Debtor with the Company Amount Ageing receivable (%)
E—% E=F 23,227,757.01 —F 4.34
1st Third party Over 1 year
B4 E=F 18,526,000.00 —FE 3.46
2nd Third party Over 1 year
E=% E=F 16,380,000.00 —F R 3.06
3rd Third party Within 1 year
Epp E=F 13,976,000.00 —FE 2.61
4th Third party Over 1 year
FERH E=F 12,205,175.14 —F R 2.28
5th Third party Within 1 year
a5t Total

HRE=ZDTEFNERYIEAKHE
MBEEEE  AEEREELAR

HHE e

84,314,932.15

15.75

As names of the third party customers are confidential
commercial information of the Group, we did not disclose

specific names of such customers.
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9)

4\
(1)

ERBREPEREARAS5% (E5%)
VA £ FRORBERLAD /O BCR B0 JE W R -

None of the above accounts receivable was due from
shareholders holding over 5% (or 5%) shares of the
Company entitling voting rights.

JiE 5 B Bk 75 sRIE (10) Accounts receivable due from related parties
FHEM  ARKT
Unit: RMB
i P W AR X
BuERB Hiat iR /NET]- R ER 8 AL BI(%)
Percentage of
Relationship total accounts
Debtor Note with the Company Amount receivable (%)
EREBHMERERAR(TRRABH V)6 /BELE 6,395,648.77 1.19

Kunming TOS Machine Tool V). 6 Jointly controlled
Company Limited enterprise

("Kunming TOS")

201346 A30H » RNEBE ¥ EWE
B 5 OB T EBIRHE - RAEESE
IRIZAREM -

ERBR

AEBENEYERIERERE - R
BREEFPRIMHEESR  BRE—
BMRERTER—FIH - K TEHR
I B IR R 5 7 BV 15 A
RBREFA - REBREE P AEN
NHEBENRHRERER THER
B —kR—==M@A4-

H o WK

Hip U RIR TP ERBIDTAOT

As at 30 June 2013, the Group conducted individual
assessment on accounts receivables due from related
parties and considered that there was no need to make
provisions for bad and doubtful debts.

Credit policy

The account receivables of the Group were mainly in the
form of deposit for warranty, which generally would due
after one year of installation of the products according to
the sales contracts entered into with customers. Except
for deposit for warranty, all payments are payable by
the end of the negotiated credit term. The Group would
grant credit term of one to three months in general
to customers according to their payment records and
transaction performance.

4. Other receivables

(1

Analysis of other receivables by the type of customers:

LB ARBTT
Unit: RMB

201346 A30H 2012%12H31H
HHl Type of customers 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
B=ZH Third party 26,647,052.22 18,107,078.55
) Related party 1,873,650.90 370,448.02
28,520,703.12 18,477,526.57

INE Sub-total
A : EEEY Less: provision for bad
and doubtful debts

Total

5,671,966.62

4,798,674.36

22,848,736.50

13,678,852.21

I -
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) HfE

WREERSFOT: @)

'ge'rg anal

20136 H30H 2012

B Ageing 30 June 2013 31 December
1FEUR(E19F) Within one year (including one year) 20,825,880.96 13,367,793.27
158228 (529) 1-2 years (including two years) 3,512,923.71 2,107,195.48
2FEIF(E3F) 2-3 years (including three years) 1,259,207.65 1,160,952.70
3FPAF Over three years 2,922,690.80 1,841,585.12
NEF Sub-total 28,520,703.12 18,477,526.57
o ERERE Less: provision for bad

and doubtful debts 5,671,966.62 4,798,674.36
A&t Total 22,848,736.50 13,678,852.21

Bk B Ho b FE U R RE R B RE R 4R A

H o
Ea

The ageing of other receivables is calculated starting
from the date of recognition.

EEWFIEEES AT (3) Analysis of other receivables by category:
2REEN  ARBT
Unit: RMB
013%6830A 012E128318
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
i SEER i3 SEER
Provision for had Provision for had
Carrying amount and doubtful debts Carrying amount and doubtful debts
i £8 te (%) k1 tei(%) 48 B (%) £8 £ Bi(%)
E% Type Note Amount  Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)
BESEERUER  Induidually significant
TREREEY and assessed
EfRAR individuelly for
impairment {4 - - - - - - - -
FEGTREEEE  Collectively assessed
GEL e for impairment*
g Group 1 (3 26,647,052.22 9343 5,671,966.62 2129 18,107,078.55 98.00  4,798,674.36 2650
] Group 2 (10) 1,873,650.90 6.57 - - 37044802 200 - -
Aas Sub-total 28,520,703.12 100.00  5,671,966.62 19.89  18,477526.57 100.00  4,798,674.36 597
i Total 28,520,703.12 100.00  5,671,966.62 18.477,526.57 10000 4,798,674.36

A WEeRERARRELRENE
o FEULR

AEEWEL L O FH IR EED
HoAth R A (R K -

Note*: This category included other receivables having been

individually assessed but not impaired.

The Group did not received any collateral for the above
other receivables with provision for bad and doubtful

debts.
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4) BAEBTELESALSEHEEE
Y {1 HL o JEKEK -

(5) #HEF  BEREDIAHRERER

(4) No other receivables was individually significant and
assessed individually for bad and doubtful debts at the
end of the period.

(5) Other receivables in groups with provision for bad and

B EL fth FE K doubtful debts using ageing analysis method:
THEl  ARKT
Unit: RMB
2013%6A430A 2012%12A31H
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
REHE RaBE
Carrying amount Carrying amount
8 HHl(%) BRERE 8 $H1(%) BRER
Provision for Provision for
bad and bad and
R Ageing Amount Proportion (%) doubtful debts Amount Proportion (%) doubtful debts
1ELA Within one year 18,952,230.06 71.12 637,046.61 12,997,345.25 71.78 687,852.53
122% 1-2 years 3,512,923.71 1318 1,353,021.56  2,107,195.48 1164 1,132,434.01
153 2-3 years 1,259,207.65 473 1,059,207.65  1,160,952.70 6.41  1,136,802.70
3FYE QOver 3 years 2,922,690.80 1097  2,622,690.80  1,841,585.12 1017 1,841,585.12
At Total 26,647,052.22 100.00  5,671,966.62 18,107,078.55 100.00  4,798,674.36

(6) AHHEAKEEZLEANHMEWR
FORBREHE R R -

(7) AHEAREEZLEEANHMER
RIS o

(6) During the reporting period, no significant bad
debt provision for other receivables was reversed or
collected.

(7) During the reporting period, there was no significant
writing-off for other receivables.

-
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BEUEE

Relationship Percenté'e' o

with the total other

Debtor Company Amount Ageing receivables (%)

EHBEH RELE 1,873,650.90  1FHA 6.57
Kunming TOS Jointly controlled Within one year

enterprise

ERRAMBRARLA E=H 1,507,922.00  1FUA 5.29
Kunming Yaocheng Hi-tech Co., Ltd. Third party Within one year

ROBERMFEER £=H 1,300,000.00  1FBA 4.56
REERBBRRA Third party Within one year

Changsha Economic and
Technological Development
Zone Investment Guarantee Co., Ltd

RESE(RIE)ELHBRAA £=h 910,000.00 TE LA 3.19
Dalian Jinzhong (Port Arthur)  Third party Within one year

Heavy Industry Co., Ltd.
mERATATERE =7 900,000.00  1FLA 3.16
China machine tool & tool Third party Within one year

builders’ association

X Total 6,491,572.90 22.77
T BREREFEARRFS5%(E5%) (9) None of the above other receivables was due from
DA B RABERR D HY PR 3R A E b fE Uy shareholders holding over 5% (or 5%) shares of the
I o Company entitling voting rights.

H b e U BB 5 BUEE R (10) Other receivables due from related parties

EREMN  ARETT

Unit: RMB

1 Bt B WK

BUER Hiat BN RIBAE &8 BEMEEBI(%)

Percentage of

Relationship total other

Debtor Note with the Company Amount receivables (%)

E R (x) -6 BERE 1,873,650.90 6.57
Kunming TOS Vi). 6 Jointly controlled

enterprise
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5. FEMSFRE

(1) BN ZHESIEI R T

5. Prepayments

(1) Prepayments by category
SHEMN  ARKT

Unit: RMB
20136 H30H 2012%12H31H
EHAB Item 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
TR M EER Prepayment for materials 32,365,791.10 33,630,628.97
Hih Others 5,420,292.10 4,540,029.95
&gt Total 37,786,083.20 38,170,658.92
(2) BAHBERERTIR (2)  Ageing analysis of prepayments
BN ARKET
Unit: RMB
2013 6H30H 2012%12831H
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
-] B Hl(%) &8 B Hl(%)
R Ageing Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)
TEAR(E1E) Within one year

(including one year) 34,545,259.14 91.42 35,678,651.27 93.47

1226 (525) 1-2 years
(including 2 years) 1,180,207.81 3.12 328,263.90 0.86

2E3F(83F) 2-3 years
(including 3 years) 274,066.92 0.73 937,417.42 2.46
3 E Over 3 years 1,786,549.33 4.73 1,226,326.33 3.21
A&t Total 37,786,083.20 100.00 38,170,658.92 100.00

fRik BTN SRIAMER AR FIARTH -

BT ARBRACEHER DI B
BERERATHEMEE SR

The ageing of prepayments is calculated starting from
the date of recognition.

Except for those denominated by functional currency,
accounts receivable included the following amounts
denominated by other currencies:

201356308 2012512831R

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
e g% AR®EH pLES g% ARBEE
The amount of The amount  The amount of The amount
BiE Currency foreign currency  Exchange rate of RMB foreign currency  Exchange rate of RMB
e uso 129,929.14 6.1787 802,793.18 153,002.14 6.2855 961,694.95
B EUR 41,404.79 8.0536 333,457.62 7792123 83176 648,117.63
BT Y 3,550,000.00 0.0626 222,254.85 3,950,000.00 0.0730 288,350.00

- BRI IR L




BEMRE

Fketilidl]
B £H BANFHE tE (%) RAEE REERE
Relationship Percentage of Reasons for
with the total  Prepayment  non-
Name Company Amount prepayments (%)  time settlement
nNTERBYNERAR  E=% 9,366,587.50 2479 1ENR HHERREAZE
Hangzhou Chinen Steam Third party Within 1 year  Prepayment for
Turbine Power Co., Ltd. materials undue
ERANEATREHERRE £=7 1,952,390.00 517 1FME HHERREAZE
Beijing Big Power Industrial ~ Third party Over 1 year Prepayment for
Control Co., Ltd. materials undue
EERELARKERRN E=h 1,870,000.00 495  1FURA HHERREAZE
BRAR Third party Within 1 year ~ Prepayment for
Qingdao Jieneng Steam materials undue
Turbine Group Co., Ltd.
EHERREBRAF F=F 1,310,000.00 347 1EMR MRENREREE
Kunming Tobacco Third party Within 1 year  Prepayment for
Equipment Co., Ltd. materials undue
RFETREMAERAR  £=% 1,164,600.00 308  1FURA HHERREAZE
Shijiazhuang Changhong Third party Within 1 year  Prepayment for
Valve Co., Ltd. materials undue
ast 15,663,577.50 41.39
Total

(4) LB EBENFEARARFS% (&
5% ) LA £ R IRBERAD M B R MY SRR

(4) None of the above prepayments was made to shareholders
holding over 5% (or 5%) shares of the Company entitling
voting rights.

o> I
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(1)

(2)

rE

6. Inventories

ZESE (1) Inventories by category
THEMN  AR¥T
Unit: RMB
20136530 2012%12831R
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
i HEER FEEE FEAE HEER FEEE
Provision for Provision for
diminution diminution
in value of Carrying in value of Carrying
1EH Inventories by category Book value inventories amount Book value inventories amount
FRiTH Raw materials 99,997,991.16  3,065,619.64  96932,371.52  98,920,608.00  3,065619.64  95854,988.36
sk Consumables 4,409,396.38 82,781.00 432661538  4.481378.28 82,781.00  4,398,597.28
EER Work in progress 682,719,549.84  13,237,418.87  669,482,130.97  543,240,944.02  13,237,418.87  530,003,525.15
ERE® Finished goods 299,700,737.38 7,287,560.78  292,413,176.60  377,437,360.82 7,287,560.78  370,149,800.04
ZENINE Commissioned processing
materials 9,229,920.74 - 9,229,920.74  11,520,859.57 - 11,520,859.57
At Total 1,096,057,595.50  23,673,380.29 1,072,384,215.21 1,035,601,150.69  23,673,380.29 1,011,927,770.40

REBHRLEARERNGEE
(20124 : &)

(2012: nil) by the Group.

As at the end of the period, no inventory was pledged

7B R & B &7 5 a0~ (2)  Analysis of the movements of inventories for the reporting
period

BHEEN  ARKT

Unit: RMB

MR KB ME EERLE MR ERE

Increase during Decrease during

ER Inventories by category Opening balance the period the period  Closing balance

R Raw materials 98,920,608.00 233,345,551.07 232,268,167.91 99,997,991.16

BEH Consumables 4,481,378.28 3,979,174.90 4,051,156.80 4,409,396.38

EEm Work in progress 543,240,944.02 330,482,380.61 191,003,774.79 682,719,549.84

EEEm Finished goods 377,437,360.82 191,003,774.76 268,740,398.20 299,700,737.38
ZEMINE Commissioned processing

of materials 11,520,859.57 10,869,263.76 13,160,202.59 9,229,920.74

et Sub-total 1,035,601,150.69 769,680,145.10 709,223,700.29  1,096,057,595.50

B FEREERRE

Less: Provision for diminution

in value of inventories 23,673,380.29

23,673,380.29

Total 1,011,927,770.40

769,680,145.10

709,223,700.29

1,072,384,215.21

R
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e (3' Provision for

MANBE LN HE FHROE

Provision Decrease
made for during
REEE Inventories by category Opening balance the period the period  Closing balance
AR Raw materials 3,065,619.64 = E 3,065,619.64
BEMH Consumables 82,781.00 - = 82,781.00
EER Work in progress 13,237,418.87 = = 13,237,418.87
[T 7 Finished goods 7,287,560.78 - - 7,287,560.78
At Total 23,673,380.29 - - 23,673,380.29
7- HURBEE 7. Other Current assets
BN AR¥T
Unit: RMB
201346 H30H 2012%12H31H
EA Item 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
TEBFTISH Prepaid income taxes 1,495,385.23 1,495,385.23
8 RHIRERE 8. Long-term equity investments

(1) REHERERESHEWIOT (1) Long-term equity investments by category:
THEW AR®T
Unit: RMB
20136 H30H 2012%12H31H
HAB Item 30 June 2013 31 December 2012

HAEEDEMNKRE Investments in jointly

controlled enterprises 42,530,661.47 43,631,371.02
HE R PENIRE Investments in associates 13,582,794.55 14,348,530.66
Hib RERIER E Other long-term equity investments 3,145,000.00 3,145,000.00
INET Sub-total 59,258,456.02 61,124,901.68
B OREER Less: provision for impairment 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00
a5t Total 57,258,456.02 59,124,901.68
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(2) REHBREKREARNBHEZIHBS DU (2) Movements of long-term equity investments during the
B period:
SHEEMN  ARKT
Unit: RMB
ERREENL
FRiH
BRRE  RERE  ERAE
BER  BURAE  HAR-3 Rt 18
REns  BUBE  EER9 BRRE MAW)  HA() WHB  BERR  WERE  RedA
Percentage
Shareholding ~ of voting  Explanation
inthe ~rights in the for Impairment Cash
invested ~invested  discrepancy provision  dividend
Opening  Increase/ Closing ~ company ~ company  between Impairment made during for the
BREEN Invested company  Investment cost halance  Decrease halance (%) (A) (%) () (A)and(B) provision the period period
[ERE-AERT Under equity method:
jointly controlled
enterprise
RHEd Kunming TS 24,739,533.99 43,631,371.02 -1,100,709.55 42,530,661.47 50.00 50.00 - - - 67868842
ERit-BEnT Under equity method:
ass0clate
BRRRREZETE  X'an Ruite Laser
FEERA Prototyping
(IE%HE ) Manufacturing
& Engineering
Research Co., Ltd.
("Xi'an Ruite’) 14,000,000.00 14,348,530.66  -765,736.11 13,582,794.55 B34 B34 - - - -
WAE-Ef Under cost method:
FoRERE other long-term
equity investment
EERETENEE)  Yomnan Cheng Jiang
Copper Products
Plant (note) 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 - 2,000,000.00 40.00 40.00 - 2,000,000.00 - -
fiNER Hangzhou Ser 1,145,000.00 1,145,000.00 - 1,145,000.00 145 145 - - - -
it Sub-tota 3,145,000.003,145,000.00 - 3,145,000.00 2,000,000.00 - -
ait Total 41,884,533.99 61,124,901.68 -1,866,445.66 59,258,456.02 2,000,000.00 - 67868842
o EEBTIMRD Eki AR Note:  Full provision for impairment loss on long-term

51 ANEBEE R19994F H % 1B 1R
BERHETIRT RERBREREBEE
o BIBEAR Tﬁzoogiﬁ%ﬁm%
/\E§$Akk

NSl %TEZIE&éfLﬁ/ﬁ@ B
éﬂﬂ%i&ﬁi&tﬂ B

BEHRE K

ESyeap SAR TR
BB TIEMARTERK ©

investment of Yunnan Cheng Jiang Copper Products
Plant was made in 1999 because the plant has lost the
ability of sustainable operation. In 2009, as approved
at the 7th meeting of the six session of the Board of
the Company, the Company began to dispose of such
investment. As at the date of the financial statement,
the process of disposal is still in progress.

-
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& 3_ :

Information

associates:

S R BRF THER
BEAR BEAH BEAH o8t RER
Total Total Total Total
assets liabilities net assets operating
at the end of  at the end of at the end income for
RREEMER Invested company the period the period  of the period the period Total
— AERE 1. Jointly controlled
enterprise
EHES Kunming TOS ~ 138,416,306.23  53,377,029.34  85,039,276.89  30,503,244.44 -844,042.27
ZoBERE 2. Associate
[iEegites Xi'an Ruite 129,931,756.48  71,736,407.48  58,195,349.00  14,861,307.91 -3,281,726.17
EE&EE 9. Fixed assets
(1) BIELEEIBA (1) Details of fixed assets
BB ARKT
Unit: RMB
EEREEN KRG ERdfh EREL Aif
Building and Machinery Transportation Electronic
ER Item structures and equipment equipment equipment Total
RfE Cost
illaEd Opening halance 339,939,706.20 532,035,259.75 31,993,968.09 14,244,949.74 918,213,883.78
REEN Addition during the period - 1939,941.28 1,181,436.48 475,844.47 3,597.222.23
fRIREL Transfer from construction
in progress - 1,605,262.39 - - 1,665,262.39
KD Disposal during the period - -2,554,060.58 -317,158.00 -3,998.00 -2,875,216.58
HREE Closing balance 339,939,706.20 533,086,402.84 32,858,246.57 14,716,796.21 920,601,151.82
2itihE Accumulated depreciation
illaEd Opening halance 88,757,974.27 259,567,103.15 17,376,758.19 10,010,280.80 375,712,116.41
KEHR Charge for the period 5,048,025.47 15,522,210.72 1,384,455.90 710,224.12 22,664,916.21
KD Written off during the period - -2,388,222.26 -304,471.68 -3,838.08 -2,696,532.02
HREE Closing balance 93,805,999.74 272,701,091.61 18,456,742.41 10,716,666.84 395,680,500.60
AR Impairment provision
BNnE Opening balance - 2,861,408.11 - 41,365.93 2,902,774.04
BRHE Closing balance - 2,861,408.11 - 41,365.93 2,902,774.04
FEERE Carrying amounts
S At the end of the period 246,133,706.46 257,523,903.12 14,401,504.16 3,958,763.44 522,017,877.18
i At the beginning of the period ~ 251,181,731.93 269,606,748.49 14,617,209.90 4,193,303.01 539,598,993.33
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AEBAHMARMNEARR
22,664,916.217T °

AEBAPRERTIREABREEE
H&EAEARE1,665,262.397T °

MR2013F6A308 A5 EEEE
EFFEAEARI,840,486.20
t(2012%12A318B: A R ¥
12,310,969.1270) M EE MZEEY A
EIRITRHBERNERD -

2) EEHEMETEEERN

(2)

During the period, the depreciation of the Group’s fixed
assets amounted to RMB22,664,916.21.

The Group transferred construction-in-progress to
fixed assets at cost during the period amounting to
RMB1,665,262.39.

As at 30 June 2013, fixed assets (buildings and structures)
of the Group with net book value of RMB11,840,486.20
(31 December 2012: RMB12,310,969.12) were pledged
to banks for short-term loans.

Temporarily idle fixed assets

EREEN  ARET

Unit: RMB
RER{E 2t E REER REFE it
Accumulated Impairment Carrying

HE Item Cost depreciation provision amount Remark
wERE Machinery and 2,577,701.07  2,179,236.93 - 398,464.14 ERiE
equipment Temporarily
sealed and
stored

(3) FAMEHEHAARETFEEEIEN (3)  Fixed assets acquired under finance leases

EFEEN - ARKT

Unit: RMB

RERE RIHE EEEE

Accumulated Carrying

R Item Cost depreciation amount

72013F6A308 As at 30 June 2013

FEREEY Buildings and structures 2,592,597.82  2,488,893.91  103,703.91
#2012 12H31H As at 31 December 2012

FEREEY Buildings and structures 2,592,597.82  2,488,893.91  103,703.91

201356 A30H 201212 A31H -
AeEaAREMERANBETEE
EE2EHEENE -

(4) AMEERZFZENETEEGLT

HEAMBRER HER - AEELE
ERIPNEERBEEYPRBAEREFE
Z . REEEFESNRMBUARIERE
BTSN EBALIEFF - 7201356 A
30 - ZEWMEEAEENERRERE
B A AR ¥47,949,566.267T(2012
F12A31H : AR®48,683,361.32
JL) °

ARFREERRAEELRBENGHRE
EREETEVERNOIEERER
WDEO R S EAE o

(4)

At 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012, fixed assets
acquired under finance leases were fully depreciated.

Fixed assets with pending certificates of ownership

As at the date of approval of this statement, the Group
is applying for property certificates for some buildings
and structures. The time of obtaining property certificates
is depending upon the consideration and approval
procedures of the relevant government authorities. At 30
June 2013, the carrying amount of the above mentioned
fixed assets was RMB47,949,566.26 (31 December 2012:
RMB48,683,361.32).

Directors of the Company are of the opinion that pending
the grant of property certificates will not affect the usage
and operation of the buildings and structures.

I -
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(1) EZIEEX

2012%128318

2013564308
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
RESE AEER REFE RE&E AEER REFE
Impairment Carrying Impairment Carrying
B Item Book value provision amount Book value provision amount
BREEAY Heavy casting base 187,055,874.69 - 187,055,874.69  173,621,841.69 - 173,621,841.69
BEATVMGEER VMGG machine tool made by
Schiess, Germany 36,889,554.23 - 36,889,554.23 - - -
HtER Other items 26,109452.80  2,056,931.37  24,052,521.43  10,794,792.43  2,056,93137  8,737,861.06
aif Total 250,054,881.72  2,056,931.37  247,997,950.35 184,416,634.12  2,056,931.37  182,359,702.75
(2) BAEZETIEEHKANEEZE ST (2)  Movements of major construction projects in progress
during the period
BREEL  ARKT
Unit: RMB
TERA Ha:
LEEN 51 HEERl  mERR AR
BB BUME  aESn EREE BMM)  BAME WA IREE  RMOE  EAMGE  EME B0
0f which,
amount of
Transferto Ivestment Acumulated ~ interest ~~ Interest
Additions ~ fived assets percentage amountof  capitalized  Capftalization
Opening during during Other Cosing ~~ tototal Project  interest during rateof  Source of
AR Item Budget ~ halonce  theperiod  theperiod  deceases  balance  budget(h)  progress capialiation  theperod  theyear  thefund
ERBEEN  Meagaing 72956000000 IBENBAE) 134340300 - - 18705587469 56 0% 104818127 386465% 6%%  EEENR
bie HA%E
fiRg
Slinancing
and budgetary
investment o
(ental quement
ERAHINGE WIS machne ool 3688955423 - BRIUD - SO 5 VE I ] 0% - - - BEEf
i mate by Sces, Selfrencng
(B Gomay
) oevs
(1) o)
BfER Other tems 873186106 169799276 166526239 - U8 - - -
aif Tod 18235970275 67130350999 1,663,26239 - W199195035 104818127 386465% 638%

Interim Report 2013 Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited 95 -




(3) BEAEZIEANTIEERIELR

(3) Progress of major construction project during the year

THEENMN AR

Unit: RMB
IRER e
HHE Project Work in progress Remark
BREELN Heavy casting base 40% BRI

1M -BREEE

11.

Intangible assets

Major structure
for the base under
construction

EREENMN  ARET

Unit: RMB
TR RERH Hit At
ER Item Land use rights  Various software Others Total
R{E Cost
BnERERSRE Opening balance and
dosing balance _GIB0ASM 196432742 374628192 8529109280
EHE 35 Accumulated amortization
MR Opening balance 4,557,002.49 11,062,087.63 671,738.67 16,290,828.79
RHGHR Charge for the period 659,267.25 665,468.31 59,613.30 1,384,348.86
MRBE Closing balance 5,216,269.74 1172755594 . 31,3197 17,675,177.65
BFHEERE Carrying amounts
HR At the end of the period 56,674,213.72 7,926,771.48 3,014,929.95 67,615,915.15
547 At the beginning of the period 57,333,480.97 8,592,239.79 3,074,543.25 69,000,264.01

AEBENVEEAREHBRARE

1,384,348.867T °

M2013F6A30H  AEEBREEEBEAS
A B #6,555,818.387C (2012412 A31
H : AR%6,635,282.837T) 8+ i i F#E
FREIRITRE BE SR IR @ -

Amortization for intangible assets of the Group for the period
was RMB1,384,348.86.

As at 30 June 2013, land use rights with the carrying amounts
of RMB6,555,818.38 was pledged to banks for short-term
loans (31 December 2012: RMB6,635,282.83).

-
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12 - 58

12. Goodwill >
EREENL - ARKT
Unit: RMB
HRR
MANBE AL ) MR ERE BXEE
Impairment
Increase Decrease provision
Opening during during Closing at the end
RREENER Invested company balance the period the period balance  of the period
BRER Xi‘an Ser 7,296,277.00 - - 7,296,277.00 -

AEBER2001FREOLERE - &6
XA B 3B 4% Lo 5 15 Y 7 22 B R R) 9 3R
E -RBEAABENERE HIASEAR
ERMAENEE -

AZBERO AT WO EREABET KRR R
EREMNIAEE AKEREEEEMR
JFE B B AT R SRS 4F B 75 TR E A 10% 5% AT 4T
RAEBAZEEANARKRBESRERE -
BESFYBREZRFNHRESTEDR
FIRE - YA KROSBHOEAERLREAE
BH@ABREERK - BEEFZEEEARK
RengREMRENBERERRTES SR
EoE EEERSNRERERELER
mEE - RREEEHARANEKEEE
BeERKEEER -

WA ZEWET AR E R BRENH
SRR T AL L R R T 5 B E A
RREERAMEREABRERR - B2
BRI TR S EARE > B M0 & 4 R R A

B -

When the Group acquired Xi‘an Ser in 2001, the cost of merger
was higher than the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Xi’an Ser corresponding to the interests acquired,
and the difference was recognized as goodwill related to
Xi'an Ser.

The recoverable amount of Xi‘an Ser is determined based on
the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The Group
prepared cash flow forecasts for this asset based on the recent
5 years financial budgets approved by the management and a
10% discount rate before tax. The cash flows after the 5 years
forecast would remain stable. The forecast result imposed no
impairment loss to the recoverable amounts. However, the key
assumptions on which the discount estimated cash flows were
based may vary. The management considered that if negative
change occurred to the key assumptions, the book value of
the Company may exceed its recoverable amount.

The key assumptions for the calculation of the present value
of estimated future cash flows for Xi‘an Ser were the gross
profit margin and the growth rate of operating income of the
turbo machine segment. The management determined these
key assumptions based on the historical information prior to
the estimated period.
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13 REGHER

13. Long-term deferred expenses

EEEMN - ARKT

14 BERSHEE
(1) BARNELEHEELEE

Unit: RMB
HHERER AHRIE AR FEE S R EREE
Increase Amortization
Opening during during Closing
Item balance the period the period balance
Decoration 1,926,385.55 256,437.80 438,396.28 1,744,427.07

14. Deferred tax assets

(1) Reconciliation of composition of deferred tax assets and

BYIAH B TE H liabilities
TERE  ARKT
Unit: RMB
2013F6A30H 2012% 124310
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
AHEN i3 AEN i3
URMER FrEBiEE ERHEE FEbiEE
Deductible Deductible
temporary Deferred temporary Deferred
EH Item difference tax assets difference tax assets
BEFEHEE . Deferred tax assets:
ERERE Provision for bad and
doubtful debts 252,662,573.03 37,899,385.96  236,563,988.27 35,484,598.24
FEMEEE Provision for diminution in
value of inventories 23,673,380.29 3,551,007.04 23,673,380.29 3,551,007.05
EEBEMEEE Provision for impairment
of fixed assets 2,902,774.04 435,416.10 2,902,774.04 435,416.10
T2 TI2R{E%ME  Provision for impairment of
construction in progress 2,056,931.37 308,539.71 2,056,931.37 308,539.71
RERERE Provision for impairment of
REER long-term equity investments  2,000,000.00 300,000.00 2,000,000.00 300,000.00
EitaE Provisions 5,640,920.94 846,138.14 9,921,145.94 1,488,171.89
EEEENE Depreciation of fixed assets 5,365,577.75 804,836.66 5,365,577.75 804,836.66
ERER Accrued expenses 13,475,442.95 2,021,316.44 15,653,693.25 2,348,053.99
KEBRASFE  Unrealized internal profits 4,291,464.15 643,719.62 5,402,946.04 810,441.91
NEREAR Discounted value of retirement
BRBATEZ  benefits for internal staff
under early retirement 6,407,305.84 961,095.88 9,148,819.78 1,372,322.97
TR 4R B Government grants 81,239,838.58 12,185,975.83 65,131,518.00 9,769,727.70
jalifEa Payables overdue for
AXFERR two years 1,276,914.33 191,537.15 1,276,914.33 191,537.15
BREER Deductible tax losses 70,534,165.44 10,580,124.82 40,030,812.98 6,004,621.94
Bt Total 471,527,288.71 70,729,093.35  419,128,502.04 62,869,275.31

s
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(2) REBELZFHEERA

SHEEN : ARKT
Unit: RMB

201346 H30H 2012412H831H
HHE Item 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
FRARIAEKINEE Deductible tax losses of subsidiaries 11,802,710.75 9,918,640.83
(3) KHEZRE AL AT 18 7 B & 7Y 7] B H0 (3) Expiration of deductible tax losses for unrecognized
B8 B 2 B g % deferred tax assets
TEEN - ARMTT
Unit: RMB
201346 H30H 2012%12A31H
F14 Year 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
20154 2015 8,013,861.90 8,013,861.90
20164 2016 836,746.12 836,746.12
20174 2017 1,068,032.81 1,068,032.81
20184 2018 1,884,069.92 -
G Total 11,802,710.75 9,918,640.83
15 HihERBEE 15. Other non-current assets
THEN - ARKIT
Unit: RMB
2013 6A30H 20125128314
BE Item 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
FEM TR Project prepayments 6,359,675.00 6,359,675.00
AN E AR (E) Prepayments for land use rights (Note) 33,410,785.60 33,410,785.60
B & RBEMF & Prepayments for contracted technology
(MfaEN - 53%3) licensing fee (Note (VI). 5 note 3) 39,656,925.20 28,821,962.40
TEIT R AR X Prepayment for purchase of
(HiaE N ~ 5323) equipment (Note (VI). 5 note 3) - 18,844,219.15
A INE LR B Prepayment for design fee 7,051,238.00 3,900,000.00
a5t Total 86,478,623.80 91,336,642.15

i M201346A308 K20129F12A318 -
FENLERAERAAERENGEEE
ERGZARBFAEEGHK TEM2%E—
WL AR RIE - B2013F6H30
H - ZirEAREDEFES -

Note: As at 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012, the prepayments
for land use right was paid to the People’s Government of
Songming City of Yunnan Province for a piece of land in
Yanglin Industrial Development Zone. At 30 June 2013, the
land use right certificate for the land is still being applied.
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16 - EEREEHAA

16. Breakdown of provision for
assets

impairment of

EHEN  ARKET

Unit: RMB
RE rEED
Increase during the period Decrease during the period

i3 B8 e Eft &f B HABE

Opening Charge Closing

R ltem Note balance  for the period Other Reversal Write-off balance
R Accounts receivable () (V)3 231,765313.91  15225,292.50 - - - 246,990,606.41
Efbls Other receivables (Z) W) 4 479867436 873,292.26 - - - 5,671,966.62
& Inventories (Z) )6  23673380.29 - - - - 23,673,380.29
RBRERE  Long-term equity investments (&) (V). 8 2,000,000.00 - - - - 2,000,000.00
HE4E Fixed assets (Z) )9 2,902,774.04 - - - - 2,902,774.04
fETE Construction in progress (). 10 2,056,931.37 - - - - 2,0,93137
At Total 267,197,073.97  16,098,584.76 - - - 183,295,65.73

Please refer to notes to the relevant assets for reasons of
impairment loss recognized for different assets during the

EHEBREEAHBRMERRANRRA
2R AREEERB NN -

period.
17 - FIERZIRFINEE 17. Restricted assets
M2013F6A30H ' FIEEX IR E As at 30 June 2013, the assets with restrictions placed on
EFRIET their ownership as follows:

BHEEM  ARKT
Unit: RMB
fst HO8E KM KHHED HREBE
Opening Increase during Decrease during Closing
EAR Item Note balance the period the period balance

BRERWEE  Assets pledged as

collateral

-BE®Eg - Cash at bank
and on hand (H) (V). 1 9,209,247.90 17,060,947.44 21,593,501.50 4,676,693.84
-BETEE - Fixed assets () (v).9 12,310,969.12 - 470,482.92 11,840,486.20
-BYEE - Intangible assets  (7) * (V). 17 6,635,282.83 - 79,464.45 6,555,818.38
Ch Total 28,155,499.85 17,060,947.44 22,143,448.87 23,072,998.42

MBI TR EIR - PR A X B IR B9 £R
BEEFRREARTER/SZEFRITRAE
B HARIMBITERLEZNHRIESD

FIERZEIRGINEEEEARBILEE
REE TRITEBEROER® - ZRF
RRIBRERI TR AEREERER -

During the financial reporting period, restricted ownership
security deposits are deposited with the bank as security for
the letters of guarantee and bank acceptance notes issued by
the bank for the Group.

Restricted ownership fixed assets and intangible assets were
pledged for short-term loans. After repayment of the short-
term loans, the term of restriction will be released.
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REER D

(1

e oo

(1) Types of short-term loans:

Unit: RMB
2012%12A31H

20136 H30H
HE Item 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
EIHER Secured loans 15,000,000.00 15,000,000.00

ERMER

Guarantee loans

185,000,000.00 90,000,000.00

A5t Total 200,000,000.00 105,000,000.00
(2) M2013F6A30H * REBETFEE (2) As at 30 June 2013, the Group had no short-term loans

DB REEMNCEER -
19 - ENEE

due but outstanding.

19. Bills payable

THEENMN  ARKET
Unit: RMB

201346 H30H 2012512 A31H
BE Item 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
IRITAE R ESR Bank acceptance bills 12,873,820.96 28,693,005.00

RSB S —FRIMOENRE -

20 ~ EMER
(1) ENEZRDBIIRAT :

The above amount of bills payable will be due within one
year.

20. Accounts payable

(1) Types of accounts payable are as follows:

THEN  ARKTT
Unit: RMB

201346 H30H 20125124311

HE Item 30 June 2013 31 December 2012

FE T RAESE A R Accounts payable to related company 24,542,324.93 34,449,887.87
FERT it ERS Accounts payable to suppliers 501,349,717.11 472,312,690.32

B&F Total 525,892,042.04 506,762,578.19

(2) LMl#pBAEERBEAARSY (& (2) There were no accounts payable to shareholders holding

5% ) JA b 3R R HE B 47 /O AR IR O FE

BRAK e

over 5% (or 5%) shares of the Company entitling voting
rights.
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FERBRFULERER S RO T ¢ (3) Ageing analysis of accounts payable:

TEEEN  ARKTT

Unit: RMB
2013%6A30AH 2012%12A31H
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
RHSESE L A(%) EHGBESE EEA1(%)
Book value Book value
BRE Aging Amount  Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%)
TELAR(E14) Within one year (including one year) 387,821,779.13 73.75 452,775,354.00 89.35
1Z22%(82%F)  1-2 years (including 2 years) 118,172,322.28 22.47 38,002,306.15 7.50
2E3E(434) 23 years (including 3 years) 15,685,184.28 298 12,272,909.56 2.4
3FEME Over 3 years 4,212,756.35 0.80 3,712,008.48 0.73
A%t Total 525,892,042.04 100.00 506,762,578.19 100.00
FRéc B IR ER SR B BRI 10 5T E - The ageing of accounts payable is calculated starting
from the date of recognition.
BRTURBRANETEI DI - BN Except for those denominated by functional currency,
ERBENTHEMEE SR - accounts receivable included the following amounts

denominated by other currencies:

2013564308 2012512A318

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
NS wEZ ARBEH NESH RS ARBEH
The amount of The amount  The amount of The amount
KE Currency foreign currency  Exchange rate of RMB foreign currency  Exchange rate of RMB
e usD 71,773.41 6.1787 443,466.37 156,849.27 6.2855 985,876.09
BT EUR 332,563.01 8.0536 2,678,329.46 966,786.00 8.3176 8,041,339.23
B JPY 3,500,000.00 0.0626 219,124.50 3,500,000.00 0.0730 255,500.00

RE BRI B — F RO RBE RN IR
EFBRHAXMNOEERBRE RN
FRHERBK -

The significant accounts payable aged over one year
of the Group mainly represented the outstanding
purchase amounts of ancillary equipment and raw
materials.
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21. Advances from customers >

21 WA
B RIBY AAATIMEETEREEX -

All advances from customers are payment for goods received
in advance from the customers of the Company.

(1) TEWRIEIRE®RIRET : (1) Advances from customers by ageing of accounts are as
follows:
2B ARKT
Unit: RMB
201356 A830H 2012%12A31H
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
EHSESE HAI(%) REHESE HBI(%)
Book value Book value
R Aging Amount  Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%)
TE AR (5 14) Within one year (including one year) 246,733,099.76 63.87  199,856,646.59 58.90
1226 (529)  1-2 years (including 2 years) 89,504,108.58 2317 111,355,965.17 32.82
2E3E(E3%)  2-3 years (including 3 years) 30,574,581.89 7.92 16,609,370.58 4.89
3FPE Over 3 years 19,471,525.98 5.04 11,519,079.93 3.39
At Total 386,283,316.21 100.00  339,341,062.27 100.00
AEEERBB —FHRBEIEWKRIE The significant advances from customers aged over one
FTEAHNALEENTERER - year of the Group mainly represented the receipt in
advance that are not yet settled.
BT ARBRAMETER DI - Al Except for those denominated by functional currency,
ERBREATEMEES accounts receivable included the following amounts by
other currencies:
2013F6A30A 20126125318
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
MEEE nE=Z ARBEH MEEE nE= AREEH
The amount of The amount The amount of The amount
HE Currency foreign currency  Exchange rate of RMB foreign currency  Exchange rate of RMB
e usb 992,115.30 6.1787  6,129,982.81  1,858,298.30 6.2855  11,680,333.97
(2) CFHMBEAEHBFAERARG% (B (2) There were no advances from shareholders holding over

5% ) bA_E 3R IRHERR 19 B AR R A TE 3K
T o

5% (or 5%) shares of the Company entitling voting
rights.

Interim Report 2013 Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited |03 -




22~ FEER T & A

22. Employee benefits payable

LHEN - AR¥ET

Unit: RMB
BARE REEM KHED b R3]
Opening  Accrued during Paid during Closing
1EH [tem balance the period the period balance
— I8 #5 2% 1. Salary, bonus, subsidy
Me(:1) and grants (note 1) 8,204,110.11  102,419,090.59 93,744,449.89 16,878,750.81
Z BIGHE 2. Staff welfare - 2,157,814.01 1,619,376.77 538,437.24
= HeRRE 3. Sodial insurance - 15,138,484.18 15,138,484.18 -
B BERKRE Including: (i) Medical insurance - 4,914,340.95 4,914,340.95 -
2 BREERRE (ii) Basic retirement insurance - 7,616,318.85 7,616,318.85 -
3 KERRE (iii) Unemployment insurance - 1,575,412.16 1,575,412.16 -
4 IERKE (iv) Work injury insurance - 401,213.91 401,213.91 -
5 AERRE (v) Maternity insurance - 631,198.32 631,198.32 -
RN 4. Housing fund 1,846,656.72 7,871,249.25 6,483,485.45 3,240,420.52
T BRER 5. Termination benefits
(RREER)(H2) (including early retirement
fee) (note 2) 9,148,819.78 236,136.69 2,977,650.63 6,407,305.84
N IEBENBIHELE 6. Union expenses and employees
education expenses 6,300,815.07 2,115,511.89 3,806,310.76 4,610,016.20
ait Total 25,500,401.68 129,944,286.61 123,769,757.68 31,674,930.61
71 BRERNFRESI  ENIE - #E - Note 1: Except for accrued year-end bonuses, the Group paid the
SERLFIFERL - BER2013F7 A 25K accrued salary, bonus, subsidy and grants in July 2013. As
BN o M2013F6A30H F AEEEBR at 30 June 2013, the Group did not have any accrued salary
o R 1 8 BB TR A o in arrears.
Z2: M2013F6A30H L[ EERBA |H Note 2:  As at 30 June 2013, the above termination benefits did not

REEERARREDHES TOMIE

AREEFD B TRIETRKNFiRMEE
RRIR - IRIBASE B E e B T A BRI
SEIRE - ARESERE T ERE
R B ETERNAEE - BXHHRR
ABETENMBMNHERRESRTH
B - ArREM S EERAR/A BE - A
AZEHERBER(TNRER]) - KEER
FREYITIR R B EARE B AR E B HR
R EEHE -

include the compensation for termination of labour service
contract.

Some employees of the Group retired from employment
prior to their statutory retirement age. According to the
requirements of the early retirement plan of the Group,
from the date of ceasing service provision up to their
respective statutory retirement dates, such employee salary
as proposed salary and social insurance for early retirement
employees were recognised at their discounted present value
as provisions and were included in current administrative
expenses (“early retirement expenses”). The discount rate
selected by the Group represented the interest rate of
national bonds having the same credit term with early
retirement plan of the Group.
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23 - EXTHE 23. Taxes payable
SEREE :
Unit: RMB
20136 H30H 2012%12H31H
HE Item 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
EEM Value added tax 7,175,864.61 8,657,696.02
B Business tax -85,782.80 29,904.30
EMEH Corporate income tax 194,784.65 337,754.29
EAh Others 2,504,247.59 3,297,485.55
A&t Total 9,789,114.05 12,322,840.16
24 - BB 24. Dividends payable
TEEEMN AR®T
Unit: RMB
BB1F
201346 A30H 20125128318 X%ZHEE
Reasons
for unpaid
over one
HH Item 30 June 2013 31 December 2012 year
EEHE M AREFR Cash dividends declared 135,898.49 135,898.49 BEEEE
B3R & AR but outstanding i R B
Has been
declared
but
outstanding
25 HMEA K 25. Other payables
(1) EfENFKIELNT (1) Other payables are as follows:
TREEN AR
Unit: RMB
201346 H30H 2012%12A31H
EH Item 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
JEfT T2 Payable for projects 51,211,611.87 37,848,515.07
IRRRES Secured deposits for projects 2,330,800.00 3,020,058.50
He Leasing expenses 3,544,193.65 5,563,318.96
Bt B Auditor’s fee 500,000.00 2,160,000.00
ReEREBHEES Commissions and business
promotion fees 8,863,815.00 8,863,815.00
Hi Others 34,623,525.90 15,963,501.61
=X Total 101,073,946.42 73,419,209.14
(2) LUBBEAPEHFTEARTS% (& (2)  There were no other payables due to shareholders holding
5% ) LA £ FORBERR 17 1 AR 3R & H b FE over 5% (or 5%) shares of the Company entitling voting
IR o rights.
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(3)

H A e SIRBRER SR AT

(3) Other payables by ageing of accounts are as follows:

LHEN - AR¥T

Unit: RMB
2013%6H30H 2012%12A31H
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
RESESE o Al(%) RESESE EE (%)
Book value Proportion Book value Proportion
BR R Aging Amount (%) Amount (%)
TEAR(E 1) Within one year
(including one year) 81,658,300.19 80.79 53,811,347.81 73.29
1224 (&2%)  1-2 years (including 2 years) 14,099,243.68 13.95 14,958,695.50 20.37
2E3E(E3%)  2-3 years (including 3 years) 1,131,136.72 1.12 1,163,850.00 1.59
3FMF Over 3 years 4,185,265.83 4.14 3,485,315.83 4.75
CH Total 101,073,946.42 100.00 73,419,209.14 100.00

HN20135F6A30H © NEBREEHBRB
—FHARBEHEMENREZEARTIER
FERATHHEERS -

A2013F6A30H » REBEHZANE
HWENREZEAEMNEEFNTRER
N ERBE 3R -

26~ HFtAE

As at 30 June 2013, the significant other payables
aged over one year of the Group mainly represented
secured deposits for projects and outstanding sales
commissions.

(4) As at 30 June 2013, the significant other payables of
the Group mainly represented construction projects
payment to the contractors and payment for equipment
purchasing.

26. Provisions
BN ARKEIT

Unit: RMB

20136 H30H 2012%12831H

HH Item 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
EnEERE Product quality warranty 5,640,920.94 9,921,145.94
AEE—RenEERRKERNEEEIR Generally, the Group provides after-sale quality service
HEBBE/EBER  HFRERELE guarantee to its customers who buy machine tool products
—FARRIEBIINEFENNHENEE from the Group. If the products have malfunction caused by
BB AEEREEBERE - LilERE non-accident or quality problems within one year after sale,
ERBEEAEE AR AAHME K& AR H the Group will provide free maintenance. The above product
HEXYNEREEAENELREERESE quality warranty was made based on the Group's forecasted
Fatigr - product quality warranty expenditures needed to be undertaken

for products sold during the period and prior periods.
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27 —HRIHMHFERBDER

28

v

—FRIHNERDEBELIBEEBRAN

Information of non-current liabilities due within one year is

S as follows:
TEHEMN  AR¥T
Unit: RMB
HaE 201346 H30H 20125 12A31H
HH Item Note 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
ENREREER Obligation under (&) 28
finance lease (V) 28 213,209.00 213,209.00
E&ME Sales and lease back (&) 30
V) 30 205,300.00 205,300.00
&a&t Total 418,509.00 418,509.00
REIEMARK 28. Long-term payables
THEMN AR¥T
Unit: RMB
20136 H30H 2012%12H31H
HH Item 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
ENEEHEER Obligation under finance lease 1,812,277.40 1,918,881.90
B —F AR EAR Less: obligation under finance
BEHREN lease due within one year 213,209.00 213,209.00
&5t Total 1,599,068.40 1,705,672.90

ERNmERERREHNZARNEENR20014
ERALBHEREBMEEKHNKERAE
NHREMNEE ZHEERBERE
EHA206F -

M2013F6830H » AEBAHEAREE
FerzE A AR®1,096,159.187T (20124
12A31H : AE¥1,160,639.127T) °

ElsREPEHRFEARAS% (55%) MK
EFRORER MR AR B o

Obligation under finance lease reflected the present value
of minimum lease payments caused by the Group’s lease of
some workshops and factory buildings after sale in 2001. The
lease constituted finance lease and the term of lease was 20
years.

As at 30 June 2013, the balance of unrecognised finance
expenses of the Group was RMB1,096,159.18 (31 December
2012: RMB1,160,639.12).

There were no long-term payables due to shareholders holding
over 5% (or 5%) shares of the Company entitling voting
rights.
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KREFER2013F6 A308 LB EX M &
EREHENZEDT

The minimum finance lease payment of the Group payable
after 30 June 2013 is as follows:

THEl  ARKT

Unit: RMB

20136 H30H 2012512A31H

BEBEEFR Minimum lease payments 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
15 AA(E14E) Within one year (including one year) 342,168.88 342,168.88
1FEAE2FURN(E2F) 1-2 years (including 2 years) 342,168.88 342,168.88
2F LA E3FLAR(E3IF) 2-3 years (including 3 years) 342,168.88 342,168.88
3FLAE Over 3 years 1,881,929.94 2,053,014.38
/NEE Sub-total 2,908,436.58 3,079,521.02
W RERMEEA Less: unrecognised finance charges 1,096,159.18 1,160,639.12
CEn Total 1,812,277.40 1,918,881.90

bt —F AR R EVE &SRR
BRREERENFESENIR - 279

The above amount of finance lease payment due within one year
after deducting unrecognised finance charges was disclosed in

WER o note V. 27.
29 - HIFERK 29. Special payables
EREE - ARKTT
Unit: RMB
MR ENERp) I XHHED MR R
Opening Increase during Decrease during Closing
EHH Item balance the period the period balance
WRBRZTIHHED  Tax refund for import tariff
BRI QIRES and import VAT for key parts
BEWMRBT () of machine tools (note 1) 15,167,565.87 - - 15,167,565.87

d1 BRE(MBIERERAEZTHERER
RE TS 48 BRI H TR B B B o0 R i B2 2
EEEENETELBEBEDORKBER
KB (BTRITI[2007]1115%) « R R
EBEIREERE  EERTHREANEE
BREAS - MEDEREIZBBRFE
FEERREARD BRI LER
ERE - BIE2010F8 16 B BHME N
EEZEEFETNLAGHERE  ARASHE
B FRB AR FERBEREREG KK
RIREBFEREA TERETHBEITR
Z ERBZERREERRERASHIRE
F e E%Zﬁ RAFHRBEEHER] - 1
W B R B RA AR BER K -

Note 1:

Pursuant to the stipulations of the “Notice from the Ministry
of Finance, National Development Reform Commission,
China Customs, State Administration of Taxation on Import
Duties Policy Related to Several Opinions on the Acceleration
of Revitalising the Equipment Manufacturing Industry” (Cai
Guan Shui [2007] No. 11), the tax refund will be treated
as state investment, and should convert into state capital
within the specified time. If an enterprise cannot convert
the tax refund into state capital within the specified time,
it should return the refund to state treasury on time.
According to the resolution passed at the 19th meeting
of the sixth session of the Board of the Company held on
16 August 2010, the Company would directly issue shares
to its state-owned substantial shareholders Shenji Group
and Yunnan Industrial Investment within two years after
receiving the tax refund and complete the procedure of
converting tax refund into state capital. Before that time,
the Company will treat it as special payables according to
accounting standards.
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30. Other non-current liabilities

30 HtpERBEE

SEHE : ARKT
Unit: RMB

20136 H30H 2012%12A31H

EHAH Item 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
IR E W 7= Deferred income

—EBME(5FT1) — sales and lease back (note 1) 1,539,752.91 1,642,402.91

— BB (E2) — government grants (note 2) 81,239,838.58 65,131,518.00

&3 Total 82,779,591.49 66,773,920.91

B —EREREARNEEN2001F
HESOEEEEYM L FEAEE O
HEKEEHE - AL EREMN T E
AEMNBAEFREOEENEZFKE
W= E20F HEHRNIZER ZHERE
e M2013F6A30H KX2012%12A31
A AEEBBEF—FABAFNBRNE
W= A —FRIBENIERDERE

Note 1:

Deferred income-sales and lease back were caused by the
Group's lease of some buildings and structures and land use
rights after sale in 2001 and the lease constituted operating
lease. Therefore, the difference between the income of
selling premises and land use rights and the original book
value formed deferred income and would be amortised by
straight-line method within 20 years of leasing period. At 30
June 2013 and 31 December 2012, the Group treated the

deferred income which was forecasted to be transferred to
income statement within one year as non-current liabilities
due within one year (see Note (V). 27).

(R 27)5R »

2 201346 A308 r HE#HBHTIERENT
HWYES -

Note 2: As at 30 June 2013, the government grants mainly
included:

1) BEIRAMIPLEMmaFTEE 1)
FTGK46100F 5| /= % £ 4l 8% #% IR
MEMREFEENEREBHHES
DR AEANRELS34BTREAR

specific state grants of RMB19.534 million and
RMB7.835 million for developing technology innovation
platform for precision horizontal and vertical products
machining center and TGK46100 series high-tech

#783.587T ; boring and milling machine tools respectively;
2) AQmBHEEFEEMW(MER - 10) 2)  government grants of RMB29.743 million for land

MEtEEIRZHBLTERENRED
Ee ANR#E2,97438 7T °

formation, civil construction and equipment purchasing
and installation for the heavy casting base (see Note

(V). 10).
31 B& 31. Share capital
SRE - ARKT
Unit: RMB
B R B R R
Opening and

closing balance
390,186,228.20

AR L BEIREA ETWAR  Ordinary domestic A Shares

AN ETRIINE AR Overseas foreign H Shares listed
B LETHR in Hong Kong 140,894,874.80
CEn Total 531,081,103.00
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32 EXNE

32. Capital reserve

EHEEM - ARKTT

Unit: RMB

¥ R H R ERER

Opening and

EHH Item closing balance
PR (8 Share premium 19,206,777.12

HpEARRNTE —HA

33 BERATE

Other capital reserves — others

Total

33. Surplus reserve

8,096,544.60

27,303,321.72

BREEL  ARKT
Unit: RMB

¥ R R ERER
Opening and
closing balance

EEBBATE

34 - RO EAHE

v

1HH

Statutory surplus reserve

34. Retained earnings

Item Note

116,508,002.60

THEENMN  ARET
Unit: RMB
£

Amount

¥R 0 BCFE

m:ABBERGAT

PR B B 18

HIR R D ECHE

(1) DB EBERF

BEEeRZTKERHZ201346 7
308 It6fE B EARI M P B B (& &
201296 A30H It6M@A : #) -

201395 A1H B MR K&
RN K % 5B N2012F B MR
M e2012658158 &8 B & I &
AERZREFEBR20NEES
ARKCRTESERARE
10,621,622.06 TCHIAZF] °

Retained earnings at the beginning
of the period
Add: net losses attributable to shareholders
of the Company for the period

Retained earnings at the end of the period 2)

643,404,128.51

-43,609,779.31

599,794,349.20

(1) Distribution of dividends on ordinary shares

The Directors of the Company did not recommend the
payment of an interim dividend for the six months ended
30 June 2013 (six months ended 30 June 2012: Nil).

The Annual General Meeting held on 15 May 2013
approved not to distribute a final dividend in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2012. The Annual General
Meeting held on 15 May 2012 approved the payment
of a final dividend of RMB 0.02 per share amounting to
RMB10,621,622.06 in respect of the year 2011.

(2) BIARK 7B EE 3 A (2)  Retained earnings at the end of the period

FRABIABIERMBEENET ATNE
BATEAARKEOT(HE20124E6 A
30H F6fER « #&) -

H £2013F6H30H A&EBHE
RERRNAPEFBEFERSTARD
ANTFARRIMNAHBATBARE
6,907,902.557t (20124128318 :

30 June 2012: nil).

AE#6,907,902.557T) ©

RMBO of surplus reserve attributed to the Company was
made by subsidiaries during the period (six months ended

As at 30 June 2013, the Group’s retained earnings
attributed to the Company included RMB6,907,902.55
of surplus reserve drawn by subsidiaries of the Company
(31 December 2012: RMB6,907,902.55).
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(1)

2)

(3)

ERUA - EFEHK

| 35 EEWA - EEmA

TR mgTee

(1) Operating income anb’ 6pe ' ng «

BZ6H300L6EAME

For the six months ended 30 June
20135 20125
BH Item 2013 2012
FEEBRA Operating income from
principal activities 352,302,726.52 629,624,131.99
Heh o HEEBUA  Including: income from sales of goods 338,267,136.57 609,246,115.33
REBBEWA income from services 14,035,589.95 20,378,016.66
E A ZEFHA Other operating income 914,312.09 2,053,170.96
BHERAEET Total of operating income 353,217,038.61 631,677,302.95
S %N Operating costs 292,319,064.12 478,647,251.40
B2 A (5 HEFE) (2)  Principal activities (by industry)
BB ARKT
Unit: RMB
HZ6A30ALL6EALMA
For the six months ended 30 June
2013% 20135 2012
2013 2013 2012
BEWA EES R EEWA EER K
Operating Operating Operating Operating
E3 24 Industry income costs costs
WRER Machine tools 277,856,434.48  232,827,799.10  534,101,907.97  397,009,155.98
IEZAL W Turbo machines
FE#ER 75,360,604.13 59,491,265.02 97,575,394.98 81,638,095.42
At Total 353,217,038.61  292,319,064.12  631,677,302.95  478,647,251.40

BHAEERTRMRTIRNINE R
PRARMESZEKEN - 2(2) -

(3) Please refer to note (IX). 2 (2) for information regarding
income from external customers as set out by different
areas by the Group.
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(4) ZKAIE T 75 EF A& F A (4) Operating income from top five customers in the

= period
BB - ARKTT
Unit: RMB
HEZEWA
EEWA BEERYEEBI(%)
Proportion to
Operating total operating
EEEB Name of customers income income (%)
F—% 1st 29,487,179.40 8.35
F-£ 2nd 15,641,025.64 4.43
E=% 3rd 10,427,350.43 2.95
FN% 4th 10,017,094.02 2.84
FERE 5th 7,692,307.69 2.18
aF Total 73,264,957.18 20.75
BREFPHNEBYRAEENMEHE As names of customers involve the commercial confidential
W NEBRBEEHZ201356 A information of the Group, we did not disclose the specific
30 L6E A BB AR R P AL names of the top five customers in the period for the six
27 e months ended 30 June 2013.
36 - EEHRESRHM 36. Business taxes and surcharges
THE N  ARKT
Unit: RMB
HZ6A30AL6EAHM
For the six months ended 30 June
20135 2012F  FEEE
EH Item 2013 2012 Taxation basis and rates
BET Business tax - 7,048.24  HEWAKZ% - 5%
3% - 5% of operating income
Y 4 2R T Urban maintenance and 828,965.37 1,365,567.97  BUMEEFREERN1% - 7%
construction tax 1% - 7% of paid VAT and
business tax
B EM M Education surcharges 341,846.50 590,859.91  HANIEENKREENN3%
3% of paid VAT and business tax
WwHHEM M Local education surcharges 257,984.45 393,906.60  HANEER L EERN2%
2% of paid VAT and business tax
At Total 1,428,796.32 2,357,382.72
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38

v

BZE6A30H L6MEAS
For the six months ended

K et 20135
EHE Item Note 2013 2012
EmEAZENRH Income from long-term
IR 1% & W as equity investments
accounted for using
the equity method (#) -8
(v).8 -1,187,757.24 617,934.94
BERIARERE Income from disposal of
EAMEENS long-term equity
investments - 1,408,054.17
Hitb Others - 533,000.00
A5t Total -1,187,757.24 2,558,989.11
(1) EREDEZZENRHRERERGS (1) Information on income from long-term equity investments
ST accounted for using the equity method is as follows:
BRRE  ARBT
Unit: RMB
B ZEZ6H30H -6fE B HIM
For the six months ended 30 June
2013F 2012%F
WIREEN Invested companies 2013 2012
ERREH Kunming TOS -422,021.13 1,065,821.94
Fil-SiLas Xi'an Ruite -765,736.11 -447,887.00
A&t Total -1,187,757.24 617,934.94
EEREEBRX 38. Asset impairment losses
2RBEN  ARKT
Unit: RMB
BZ6A30H 1L6{EAHAM
For the six months ended 30 June
2013%F 20125
HE Item 2013 2012
JRE U BR X Accounts receivable 15,225,292.50 23,207,093.40
H {th & Wk Other receivables 873,292.26 1,440,054.74
A&t Total 16,098,584.76 24,647,148.14
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39~ BEIBA

(1)

2)

ERIMRADHBERIT -

39. Non-operating income

(1)

Non-operating income by item is as follows:

EREEN  ARET

Unit: RMB
STAEHE
REMEBERNEHE
Amount
included in
B Z6H30H 1L6{E A H/ extraordinary
For the six months ended 30 June gains or
Mtat 20134 2012%F losses for
HE Item Note 2013 2012 the period
ERBEE Gain on disposal
BEMNF of non-current
assets 66,329.06 - 66,329.06
T B Government grants (2) 405,000.00 13,142,000.00 405,000.00
EAh Others 128,650.00 822,629.08 128,650.00
= Total 599,979.06 13,964,629.08 599,979.06
B JFF 7 BhBA 4 (2) Breakdown of government grants
wHEEN  ARKT
Unit: RMB
BZ6A30HL6EA MM
For the six months ended 30 June
2013F 20125 #t B
HE Item 2013 2012 Explanation
THMEZIFEZBAR THM series precision
I horizontal products
machining center - 8,142,000.00 #t(Note)
REVIE T 8% Large Precision CNC boring
S and milling machines
(TKS6916) (TKS6916) - 2,600,000.00
Hity Others 405,000.00 2,400,000.00
aat Total 405,000.00 13,142,000.00

RIE(RIMR2009F B BREMIE) (T
= 504 9[2009]6195% ) LA R AN /A R] B2 H
BIEBEMMHE ARFEAFRBEEMTE
iz - BHMAIEEMHARROMEEE
(THM R ZFE 2 EA R 0 T A 0 ) AT LA & 15 R
R ARK8148 T - RARIN2010F
12 A AR 201167 BURE) T 48 B8 A9 R AT 4
By WHEBRBARELE WD - H220124F
6A30B AR MN » ZEIEE BBHA
BT ERPI 0 Bk - R i A A &) 5 4R 2 B9 8
VIR IE U 25 8 A 2N ©

Note:

Pursuant to the Written Reply Regarding Research Subjects
for 2009 (Gongxinbu Zhuang Han (2009) No.619) and
the agreements entered into by the Company and other
cooperation units, the research project (THM series precision
horizontal products machining center) jointly submitted by
the Company (as the subject responsible unit) and other
cooperation units is expected to receive government grants
in an amount of RMB8.14 million. The Company received
the government grants in December 2010 and July 2011,
which were recognized as deferred gain. In period six months
ended 30 June 2012, the research project has received the
approval from the relevant government authorities. Therefore,
the grants received were transferred from deferred gain to
non-operating income by the Company in the same period.
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included i

HZ6A30H 1t6EA MM extraordinary
For the six months ended 30 June gains or
20134 20125 losses for
EHA Item 2013 2012 the period
EEEERERX Losses on disposal of
fixed assets 115,863.64 - 115,863.64
H Others 216,781.78 277,374.85 216,781.78
CEl Total 332,645.42 277,374.85 332,645.42
41 FREHEHR 41. Income tax expenses
BB ARKT
Unit: RMB
B Z6H30H L6{EHAHME
For the six months ended 30 June
F 2013%F 2012F
EHE Item Note 2013 2012
EHANMBERETER  Current tax expenses for
EHIFTIS AL the period based on tax law
(FBEMBEH) and related regulations
(China income tax) 118,110.29 2,219,735.27
ARTSFE DTS Under provision for income tax
in respect of preceding years 479,139.00 1,681,073.04
RIEFFSTHEVE S Changes in deferred tax assets (1) -7,859,818.04 -3,168,400.77
CEl Total -7,262,568.75 732,407.54
HRAEBEREE2013E6 4308 72012 During the 6 months ended 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012,
F6H30H IE61E A AL £ B I E B S H the Group did not have assessable profits subject to Hong
MERTEF BT RREEFESB Kong Profits Tax. Therefore, no provision has been made for
REE - Hong Kong Profits Tax.
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(1) BEFEHBAESTLOT - (1)

(2)

The analysis
below:

of changes in deferred tax is set out

THENMN - ARKET

Unit: RMB
B Z6H30H1L6{EA MM
For the six months ended 30 June
20134 201245
EHE Item 2013 2012
TR ERD Origination and reversal of
B A FnEE o] the temporary differences -14,187,267.70 -5,066,160.98
Tk = R Effects of different tax rates
BRI 2 on deferred tax 5,486,500.10 2,112,267.23
RIERE A HEINEE  Unrecognised deductible losses 471,017.48 486,902.46
MAARIFE Using unrecognised deferred
RIERHIRIE tax assets in prior years
Fristi& E - -701,409.48
SB [8] LA BT 4F fE Reversal of deferred tax assets
B EREELE recognised in prior years
Fristi & E 369,932.08 -
a5t Total -7,859,818.04 -3,168,400.77

¢ B A FIEAIBEELT - ()

accounting profit:

The relationship between income tax expenses and

EREEN  ARET

Unit: RMB
B Z6H30H 1L61E A HIME
For the six months ended 30 June
2013%F 2012F
HAB Item 2013 2012
754 31 A1 Profit before tax
(EBLAT— 5 ES) ("=" for loss) -50,588,126.91 4,188,220.23
BEENBEEA Expected income tax under
MERNBETIE tax rate applicable to relevant region -12,647,031.73 1,047,055.06
me AEER Add: Non-deductible expenses 603,037.35 102,005.82
N BN non-taxable income - -154,483.73
RIERH Unrecognised deductible losses
AEMEE 471,017.48 486,902.46
FAAAIFE Using unrecognised deferred
REREET tax assets in prior years
PRISTiAE - -701,409.48
HEARIFE Reversal of deferred tax
EHRRHRLT assets recognised in prior years
PRIST A B 369,932.08 -
MEEZRY Effects of different tax rates
EEHBENTE on deferred tax 5,486,500.10 2,112,267.23
MEHBRIEBEENTE Effects of items eligible
for additional deduction -1,420,970.57 -2,361,179.29
FriS iU Effects on preferential income tax
BENTE -604,192.46 -1,479,823.57
VAR E DTG H Under provision of Income tax
in respect of preceding years 479,139.00 1,681,073.04
REFTEHER Income tax expenses for the period
Yz bAT — J5%3E51) ("=" for income tax credit) -7,262,568.75 732,407.54
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42 - EXgRUBENFREBSRKREZNTE

BRE

(1) BAXSRY

(2)

EXRGHRYmARBRAREEEBK
BREROAEHHENBRIARRBETE
S 3B R R I BET

EH Item

42. Calculation of basic earnings per share an  di

earnings per share

(1)

Basic earnings per share

The basic earnings per share was calculated by dividing
the consolidated net profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of the outstanding ordinary shares of the
Company:

TREN  ARKT
Unit: RMB
2012%F12A31H
31 December 2012

201346 H30H
30 June 2013

BN AARE®A  Consolidated net profit

PRER & & OF % 1B
(BN — I5R1E51))

(AR¥TT) Company
("~" for loss) (RMB)
PN/ E: ST R Weighted average number
=g ilibg ok of the outstanding
FHE(KR) ordinary shares of
the Company (share)
BRI Basic earnings per share
(BELAI— I5%4E%]) ("~ for loss)
(7t 1% (RMB/share)

H E2013F M2012F6 A30H 1t61E
AERE - AR BBEITENIN T BRI
UL B HEEMEE - Mt HIR AR
RNAFITEINE BIROMETEHEE
R2012F 1 B1BERE BAIE -

HESK Mz

#H E£2013F M2012F6 A30H 1F61E
AHRE » RAR TN FEBREENEBE
TREK BESERNGEHERTRIK
#=AEE o

attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the

(2)

-43,609,779.31 3,592,495.24

531,081,103.00 531,081,103.00

-0.0821 0.0068

For the period six months ended 30 June 2013 and
30 June 2012, there were no changes in the number
of outstanding ordinary shares of the Company. The
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
for such period was the same as the number of ordinary
shares as at 1 January 2012.

Diluted earnings per share

For the period six months ended 30 June 2013 and 30
June 2012, the diluted earnings per share was the same
as the basic earnings per share, because the Company
did not have any potentially dilutive ordinary shares.
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43 - MERERER

HBRBERTHERREEDE

43. Income statement supplementary information

Classifying expense in the income statement by its nature:

TREENMN  ARKET

Unit: RMB
HZE6H30R L6ME A HMR
For the six months ended 30 June

2013%F 20125

1HH Item 2013 2012
BEMBTHNE B Staff cost incurred 129,944,286.61 151,499,612.58
MR E Depreciation expenses 22,664,916.21 21,972,886.15
EmEEEHE Amortization of intangible assets 1,384,348.86 1,021,699.39
EETB Auditor’s fee 71,698.11 40,000.00

44 - RERERFEBTRE

44. Notes to cash flow statement

(1) ANEJREIU T B9 B b BAAE & T B B (1) Cash received relating to other operating activities during
B & the period
THE AR
Unit: RMB
&5
= Item Amount
I T #66 Bh E o B 8% Government grants for R&D
EOF/QE] of products 16,410,670.58
HAt, Others 1,023,778.06
R Total 17,434,448.64
(2) ANEIRE S B E B4R & B (2) Cash paid relating to other operating activities during
3R & the period
THE AR
Unit: RMB
&5
= Item Amount
EnZEREE Product quality warranty expenses 5,733,786.71
Hitb Others 10,900,184.34
R Total 16,633,971.05
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45 ~ iﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ*ﬁ%)‘ﬂ
(1) BerEEEAEN

(1) Supplementary information on cash flow statement

EHEN - ARET

Unit: RMB
EHZ6A30HL6EAHE
For the six months ended 30 June
2013F 2012F
BrER Supplementary information 2013 2012
1. BRFERGRLE 1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash
EBHRERE flows from operating activities:
ANE (BRIl - J57E5)) Net profit ("~" for loss) -43,325,558.16 3,455,812.69
n:EEREEE Add: Provision for impairment of assets 16,098,584.76 24,647,148.14
AEEENE Depreciation of fixed assets 22,664,916.21 21,972,886.15
B EESH Amortization of intangible assets 1,384,348.86 1,021,699.39
REGEBREH Amortization of long-term deferred expenses 438,396.28 191,156.49
B g Amortization of deferred income -102,650.00 -102,650.10
REETEERNB. Loss on disposal of fixed assets ("~ for profit)

(s bAT — I5%5831) 49,534.58 -
BB RSN - HE) Finance expense ("~" for profit) 1,336,063.44 3,589,547.70
REBK W& - HIE5) Investment loss (*~" for profit) 1,187,757.24 -2,558,989.11
BRFEHEERD Decrease in deferred tax assets ("~ for increase)

(SEIAAT - [5%3831) -7,859,818.04 -3,102,600.08
FEMRAEIAL - $I8F) Decrease in inventories ("~" for increase) -60,456,444.81 -71,452,906.12
LERICER MR Decrease in operating receivable (=" for increase)

(SEIAAT — I5%5831) -128,127,947.63 -7,577,064.32
TE M EIER Mg Increase in operating payable ("~" for decrease)

(R IAT - J5RE51) 156,393,590.07 26,671,332.67

RERHEANBLRETE Net cash flows from operating activities -40,319,227.20 -3,244,626.50
2. RERFEEENFLHER: 2. Net change in cash and cash equivalents:

RENBRBE
B R R E

RERBEEBWEENE
(R SAT — 573851

2) BeMHE2FEYHEL

Cash balance at the end of the period
Less: cash balance at the beginning

114,038,168.77 127,911,036.52

of the period 89,677,792.83 175,808,019.62
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
("-" for decrease) 24,360,375.94 -47,896,983.10

(2) Composition of cash and cash equivalents

THEENMN  ARKET
Unit: RMB

20136 H30H 2012512A318
EHH Item 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
B Cash
Hep: BFRE Including: cash on hand 585,534.19 314,067.72
e A Bank deposits available

BRI on demand

RITIFE K 113,452,634.58 89,363,725.11

HARIA & 4 8R Cash balance at the end of the period 114,038,168.77 89,677,792.83

Cash disclosed above does not include the amounts of
monetary funds with restricted usage and short- term
investments.

i RERENReNRSEFEBN T SE
AEZBHHEEES RBRENKE
S o

Note:
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) BABAREBRS (VI).RELATED PARTIES AND TRANSACTIONS

1 AATWE—KBREREBER 1. Information on the largest shareholder of the
Company
BREEN  ARKT
Unit: RMB
F-ARFHANT  E-ARFHRLE
#-rREgE iy 41 i EARR FHKE ift&s BERUEA(%)  NRRERA(N) ADIRAENG AERERE
Ultimate
controlling
Name of the Place of Legal Business Registered Percentage of Percentage of  shareholder of Organization
[argest shareholder ~ Type registration  representative  nature capital shareholding (%) voting rights(%)  the Company code
TR&E BREELT 9 Bk BREEHE  1,556480,000 25.09% %% EETEEEE 243381258
Shenji Group Limited libilty ~ China Guan Xiyou ~ Production an EHEEZEE
company sales of Shenyang State-owned
machine tools Assets Supenvision
and Administration
Commission
2y XQAFRWFARER 2. Subsidiaries of the Company
BREARRATRARNEELZ2 RN - Please see Note (IV) for information of subsidiaries of the
Company.
3 KXAAMNEENBE LS 3. Jointly controlled enterprises and associated
companies of the Company
L% KiARRRE
RREENER txEE i EARR FhtE Fidl-0 RREA) ERNRRELA%)  AREERE
Place of Legal Percentage of Percentage of  Organization
Name of investee Type registration  representative  Business nature Registered capital  shareholding (%) voting rights(%) code
- RERR
EES BRAT o g loRYDL  BRERIEHE BITS00ET 50 0 77266099
1. Jointly controlled enterprise
Kunming T0S Limited liabiity ~ China Production and sales of EURS,000,000
company machine tools
o BERR
[ BRAT o BEL RERVBLERE ARE6000E T B BA 791667804
2. Associated company
Xi'an Ruite Limited liabiity ~ China Tian Huisheng  Production and sales of RMB60,000,000
company [aser prototyping machine
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H {th B Rt 07 B A

Name of other related parties

Related relationship

EHEREEELOARAA
(TE#ERD ]

Yunnan Yun Ji Group Import
and Export Co., Ltd.
("Yun Ji | & E Co.")

EFCYEERQFA
Yunnan CY Group Co., Ltd.

EBARHER QT
(IBEREE LA ])

Kunming Kunji Group
Co., Ltd. (“Kunji Group Co.")

EHEENEEEARAR
(IEmEEMER])

Yunnan State-owned Assets
Property Management
Co., Ltd. ("Yunnan State-
owned Assets Property”)

EMCYEBESIEREMR
([EEBEH])

Yunnan CY (Group) Company
Jinhui Spraying Factory
("Jinhui Spraying Factory”)

EHCYREAAREER
BHHRL([ESH0])

Yunnan CY Group Co., Ltd.,
Products Trading Centre
("Trading Centre”)

EEHARROBR AR
Shenyang Machine Tool
Company Limited

ERFIAREERF
(IERFHT])

Shiess GmbH, Germany
("Shiess™)

RABE—ARRZFRAA
Subsidiary of the largest

shareholder of the Company

KRRBE-ABREZFRAF
Subsidiary of the largest
shareholder of the Company

ARAEZRBEZFAF

Subsidiary of the second largest
shareholder of the Company

ARBEZRBEZFAF

Subsidiary of the second largest
shareholder of the Company

KRRBE-ABRREZFRAF
Subsidiary of the largest
shareholder of the Company
KRRBE-ABREREZFRAF
Subsidiary of the largest

shareholder of the Company

KRRBE-ABREREZFRAF
Subsidiary of the largest
shareholder of the Company

ARRE KRR ZFRA]

Subsidiary of the largest
shareholder of the Company

919190831

216547232

291887852

99211416-5

292147185

24340683-0

TaEm

Not applicable
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5- BEEXEZER 5. Related party transactions
(1) BEXZI5EEAAR (1) Summary of related party transactions
NEE The Group
SHEE c ARK T
Unit: RMB
HZ6A30RL6EAHE
For the six months ended 30 June
2013% 2012%
2013 2012
BBERSTE ERERS ERER S
BEA BHRERE  FARRRER S8 SEHLA(%) 8 SEMLHI(%)
Pricing
method and
decision making Percentage Percentage
Nature procedures of same type of same type
of connected  of connected of transactions of transactions
Related party transaction transaction Amount (%) Amount (%)
RRER 1) HERAM B-REREZEEN 1,892,068.40 0.56 - -
Kunming TOS Sales of goods  Based on normal
(note 1) commercial terms
Ef#ELO HERR B-REBEELR - - 256.41 0.00
Yunji I & E Co. Sales of goods  Based on normal
commercial terms
EHCYERAT HERmM E-REREEER 7,798.28 0.00 - -
Yunnan CY Group  Sales of goods ~ Based on normal
Co., Ltd. commercial terms
EHCYEEAT B4 B-REREZEEN - - 64,485.48 1.78
Yunnan CY Group ~ Provision of Based on normal
Co., Ltd. services commercial terms
EREENT BR4H RIEBHE G - - 112,158.00 3.09
Kunji Group Co. Provision of Based on relevant
services terms of agreement
BEAN(H3) EX4B RIEBmE G 2,462,037.00 777 - -
Schiess Provision of Based on relevant
(note 3) Services terms of agreement
EREH(H1) BEER B-REREZEEN 13,803,418.80 307 42,390,209.23 12.25
Kunming TOS Purchase of Based on normal
(note 1) goods commercial terms
EREENT il o RIEBHE G 2,625,000.00 73.66 2,625,000.00 72.33
(7 502)i#2)
Kunji Group Co. Leasing Based on relevant
(VI 5(2) note 2) terms of agreement
TEERM(H2) BESY B-RESHEEN 440,821.16 0.10 2,071,874.16 0.60
Jinhui Spraying Purchase of Based on normal
Factory (note 2) goods commercial terms
EHEENE BHHE BRI i Kt 607,435.50 41.69 9,000.00 0.25
(7% 52)#1)
Yunnan State-owned Leasing Based on relevant

Assets Property
(VI'5(2), note 1)

terms of agreement
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o

HEZ6A30A L6BAN
For the six months ended 30

20135
2013
BRRZEE HEAERS HERERS
BYA BERZNE  FARARER 28 SEMLA(%) 8 SEMLAI(%)
Pricing
method and
decision making Percentage Percentage
Nature procedures of same type of same type
of connected  of connected of transactions of transactions
Related party transaction transaction Amount (%) Amount (%)
EEAEG(:3) BER BRAHBEER 18,045,335.08 7742 18,844,219.15 38.30
Schiess Purchase of Based on relevant
(note 3) equipment terms of agreement
ELRKRR BER RIAERZ R - - 663,172.91 135
BRAF
Shenyang Machine  Purchase of Based on relevant
Tool Company Ltd.  equipment terms of agreement
RRE BERR RIEBBEER 2,239,385.71 100.00 - -
Kunming TOS Other expenses ~ Based on relevant
on behalf of terms of agreement
related party
REBH(3) Haf AR e A 10,834,962.80 100.00 - -
YR
Schiess Payment of Based on relevant
(note 3) contracted terms of agreement
technology
license fees
AATE The Company
EREN(Z1) HEHM B-REZBEHN 1,892,068.40 0.72 - -
Kunming TOS Sales of goods  Based on normal
(note 1) commercial terms
EHELD HERM B-REREEER - - 256.41 0.00
Yunji | & E Co. Sales of goods  Based on normal
commercial terms
ERCYEEARA HEHM B-RERBERR 7,798.28 0.00 - -
Yunnan CY Group  Sales of goods ~ Based on normal
Co., Ltd. commercial terms
EBCYEERR EX5% B-RERBERR - - 64,485.48 1.95
Yunnan CY Group  Provision of Based on normal
Co., Ltd. services commercial terms
EREELF EX%% RRAHBERER - - 112,158.00 3.39
Kunji Group Co. Provision of Based on relevant
services terms of agreement
EEAE(:3) EXY% RRAHBERER 2,462,037.00 8.35 - -
Schiess Provision of Based on relevant
(note 3) services terms of agreement
ERENR(ZT) BESY B-RERBERR 13,803,418.80 418 42,390,209.23 15.42
Kunming TOS Purchase of Based on normal
(note 1) goods commercial terms
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EHEEN  ARET

Unit: RMB
EZ6A30AL6EANE
For the six months ended 30 June
2013% 20126
2013 2012
BHRZER ERERS ERERS
BEA BBERZNE  HARARER 8 SEMA(%) 2B SEMHLH(%)
Pricing
method and
decision making Percentage Percentage
Nature procedures of same type of same type
of connected  of connected of transactions of transactions
Related party transaction transaction Amount (%) Amount (%)
EREELA BBNE RIAE R AR 2,625,000.00 78.55 2,625,000.00 79.29
(v 52),i#2)
Kunji Group Co. Leasing Based on relevant
(VI 5(2) note 2) terms of agreement
TERRE(E2)  BEE B-REXBEER 440,821.16 0.13 2,071,874.16 0.75
Jinhui Spraying Purchase of Based on normal
Factory (note 2) goods commercial terms
BR%ME BiEE B-REXBEER 22,000,000.00 6.66 - -
General Machine Purchase of Based on normal
goods commercial terms
EHEENE BHAEE RIABHE RN 607,435.50 49.18 9,000.00 0.27
(7 52),1)
Yunnan State-owned Leasing Based on relevant
Assets Property terms of agreement
(VI 52) note 1)
EEAE(3) BERME RRAHERR 18,045,335.08 85.29  18,844,219.15 38.80
Schiess Purchase of Based on relevant
(note 3) equipment terms of agreement
EGRERD BERME RRAHERR - - 663,172.91 137
BRAR
Shenyang Machine  Purchase of Based on relevant
Tool Company Ltd.  equipment terms of agreement
BB L e RIAE R AR 2,239,385.71 100.00 - -
Kunming TOS Other expenses  Based on relevant
on behalf of terms of agreement
related party
BRI (73) XA gL R 10,834,962.80 100.00 - -
SUEDES
Schiess Payment of Based on relevant
(note 3) contracted terms of agreement
technology
license fees
BREM RESH RIAERE R 36,545.07 0.26 - -
Xi'an Ser Provision of Based on relevant
services terms of agreement

21 RRAR2013FERHEHEE
2013FERBEY  EXBY - i
ERY  RHUSBSAEFALE
ERBE - HR MR 82013547
25AZE2013F12A318 1L -

Note 1: The ordinary business framework agreement was
entered between the Company and Kunming TOS
regarding the purchase of goods, receipt of services,
sales of goods and provision of services etc. in 2013
with effective from 25 April 2013 to 31 December

2013.
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F2. ARRIR201MFEHESEBEREREE Note 2: The framework agreement was entere

TREEHE IR EE mm B R M RHAE 2R 1 - the Company and Jinhui Spraying Factory regarding

W R B52011F9A821H B & the purchase of machine tool’s packing material in

20134 12HA31HLE ° 2011 with effective from 21 September 2011 to

31 December 2013.
i3 #£8201147H188 B F ®20114F Note 3: As reviewed and approved by the first extraordinary

F-RBEREASEZBRB & general meeting of 2011 of the Company held on

A HERAERETER MM 18 July 2011, the Company and Schiess entered

ERNFAER - EEEFE TS into the Proprietary Technology and Patent Licensing

2000mmiE R ERLFEFIEIK([E R Contract to introduce the proprietary technology for the

EmBRs  2ENTENESs design, manufacture and installation of double column

BT WESBRAEENES 2000mm-crossrail machine (”contract products”), and

B {58 F 43 L HR A A AR A A RN AE 20 M obtain the exclusive and non-transferable license

HEAREMNER - for the production in PRC and sale in Asia of these

contract products.

BEE—FEBEREMMENTTAE According to the Proprietary Technology and Patent

[ &REAEHE : Licensing Contract, contractual expenses include:

. —RMHEHFATBAA: . License Fee in one lump-sum: EUR6,600,000;
6,600,000 7T

. BIEWHEIIEA : 700,000 . Technical training fees: EUR700,000; and
BT &

e  HEHMAERSN AYMGEH . Technical service fees for the first two prototype
VM8 R Bl 4 PR 12 £ 12 i AR 75 machines of machine models VMG6 and VMS8:
H)EF : 200,0008T; EUR200,000;

MR2013F6HA30H + &N A & B & As at 30 June 2013, under the terms of the contract,

SRER ERFANEEE A the Company has paid 70% of the contract technology

ARBAERMT T ENTO% - A license fee to Schiess, in total which amounted to

4,620,000 ;t( £ E A R A EUR4,620,000 (equivalent to RMB39,656,925.20), and

39,656,925.207t) © W& WH|IE— received the technical documents (including design

& RA IR 69300 B g g (B iR ER drawing, process and content) of the first prototype

B TEFRMBEGEE) - B machine. As at 31 December 2012, the accumulated

2012912 A318 * AR AR X payment of the contract technology license fee was

T FEFR] £ 53,300,000t (5B EUR3,300,000 (equivalent to RMB28,821,962.40).

AR %28,821,962.407T) ° Ll 78 The aforementioned prepayments were included in

NHeBESBEMIEREBEE(RK the balance sheet as other non-current assets (refer

H(R) IS EAEBBRIIT - to note (V). 15).

R2011F 118 FM2013F6H + &K The Company paid technical training fees of

AT AERZE S R B TR EUR400,000 (equivalent to RMB3,483,152.00) and

3 E 400,000 T (ZEARE A EUR300,000 (equivalent to RMB2,462,037.00) to

3,483,152.007T ) 1300,000E 7T Schiess respectively in November 2011 and June

(5B AR K2,462,037.007T) ° 2013.

2011128 - KA R 7] B & In December 2011, the Company and Schiess entered

FEHEIT AR mHEEBEVMGe into a contract to purchase assembly components

FRRERNERELHE €585 of VMG6 prototype machine from Schiess with an

4,481,309.00B0 st 201244 amount of EUR4,481,309.00. In April 2012, under

R AARRBEERKER 95l the terms of the contract, the Company prepaid

A 128 B & B S VMGG R A IR 3R EUR2,261,256.83 (equivalent to RMB18,844,219.15)

2,261,256.83 t(FEARE A to Schiess for VMG6 prototype machine. As at 31

18,844,219.157L ) » 12012412 December 2012, such amount of prepayment contract

A31H &= NS BIIEAEM technology license fee was included in the balance

FRBEE(RWE(R) - 15)EE& sheet as other non-current assets (refer to Note (V).

EBERIIR - 15).

MR2013F67  BEFHE LT HE In June 2013, Shiess has arranged to transport VMG6

EVMGERAHE KRB ARA T RIES Prototype machine to the Company. According to the

BHE  ZEKEENEZRRD agreement, the main risks related to the machine have

EBEARNA - HiflA201356 A been transferred to the Company. Thus, at 30 June

30H © AR AHEVMG6R R # R 3k 2013, the total amount of VMG6 of EUR4,481,309.00

184,481,309.00 T (ZEEARE A (equivalent to RMB36,889,554.23) was included in
36,889,554.23 7L ) ERTERETRR(R the balance sheet as construction in progress (refer

s (R) 10 EEEABRIIT to note (V). 10)
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(2)

B HE -

(2) Leases:

AREERAR B FABBRE Leasing information of the Group and the Company
REEN c ARKT
Unit: RMB
HER EB AELERE HEXEERE HEEHKA HELKILLR HEEEERE FENHEE
Type of Inception Maturity Basis of Lease fee
Name of Name of lease date of date of determining recognised
leaser lease assets lease lease lease fee in the year
EHEENE ALRA THREE 20114 2013% REBAH® 1,196,871.00
1A1R 12A31H R (et 1)
Yunnan State-  The Land and 1 Jan. 2011 31 Dec. 2013 Based on relevant
owned Assets ~ Company premises terms of agreement
Property (note 1)
123 £ =1V B YN THREE 20014 20214 mEBAH® 5,250,000.00
118128 11 A118 R (a2)
Kunji Group Co. The Land and 12 Nov. 2001 11 Nov. 2021 Based on relevant
Company premises terms of agreement
(note 2)
g1 WRGDIENEEREEMERE Note 1: The transactions were about rental fees for land
EERIGHHER - and premises paid to Yunnan State-owned Assets
Property.
RAER2011F7A28H EHERH The rental agreement for land and premises was
BYEREIIEERSGHWHEERE - entered between the Company and Yunnan State-
E—FHE A AR, 1507 owned Assets Property on 28 July 2011. The rental
BE_FHE A ARK088,065 for the first, second and third year amounted to
T B=FHEAARE,196,871 RMB989,150, RMB1,088,065 and RMB1,196,871,
TC e WEHR B2011F1ATHER respectively. The agreement was effective from
201312 A31H1E © 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2013.
22 WRGDHEZFHEERER DT H Note 2: The transactions were about rental fees for premises and

%&ii‘@@iﬁ%ﬁ’ﬁﬁ BB
SERFREREARBFRE -

EEE ﬁéAEﬁﬁmmiﬂﬂ
NREBEARABEZBMNEERE

7l >>ﬂ<<j:iﬁ@iﬁﬁ$2£ﬁ%/\ ) EI’J
REMFIE -

ARQABR2011F2A18 2 E# &
BARBHEEARE R AL
& A AR #4,457,3407C
EmEHAe A ARK792,6607T °
WERAEZBASONITHR AR
2010F 11 A128 # =2013F11H
1MHLE

o]

land use rights paid to Kunji Group Co.. Kunji Group
Co. who was authorized by the People’s Government of
Yunnan Province to succeed the rights and obligations
of the “The Premise Rental Agreement” and “The
Land Use Rights Rental Agreement” signed between
the People’s Government of Yunnan Province and the
Company on 12 November 2001.

On 1 February 2011, the Company entered into an
agreement for rental adjustment with Kunji Group
Co.. The annual rent of land use rights was adjusted
to RMB4,457,340, and the annual rent of premises
was adjusted to RMB792,660. The adjusted annual
rent was effective from 12 November 2010 to
11 November 2013.
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) ST
6. Receivables and payables from/to related pa

The Group

Receivables from related parties

201356 A30H
30 June 2013

2HEEl - ARKT
Unit: RMB
20126128318
31 December 2012

HE AR )yl HRE R %E HIREE IR EREE HIREE

Provision for Provision for

bad and bad and

Carrying doubtful Carrying doubtful

Name Related parties amount debts amount debts

eSS HEHH0 - - 160,000.00 -

Bills receivable Trading Center

FEUBR TR ERREH 6,395,648.77 - 4,181,928.75 -
Accounts receivable Kunming TOS

H A & WK ERREH 1,873,650.90 - 370,448.02 -
Other receivables Kunming TOS

R RIE EHBEEmE - - 9,000.00 -

Prepayments Yunnan State-owned
Assets Property

HdEReEE AETEE 39,656,925.20 - 47,666,181.55 -
Other non-current assets Schiess
rEH The Group
FE 1 BB 75 SR8 Payables to related parties

SHEEN  ARKET

Unit: RMB

HEEM b 20136H30H 2012%12H31H
Name Related parties 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
JE 1~ BR 3K BB 23,506,917.45 33,230,241.15
Accounts payable Kunming TOS
& BR X TIERER 909,766.45 1,094,005.69
Accounts payable Jinhui Spraying Factory
TR RIR BP0 5,000.00 5,000.00
Advances from customers Trading Center
H A K EREET 2,625,000.00 5,250,000.00
Other payables Kunji Group Co.
JE 1~ BR 3K EERKRNDABRAR 125,641.03 125,641.03
Accounts payable Shenyang Machine Tool Company Ltd.
H A K EHEEYE 598,435.50 -

Other payables

Yunnan State-owned Assets Property
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The Company

FE Uk BE RS 5 =08 Receivables from related parties
wHEEN  ARKIT
Unit: RMB
201356 H30H 2012%12H31H
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
HEEB )yl AREERE BERER ARE BR 3R BIREE
Provision for Provision for
bad and bad and
Carrying doubtful Carrying doubtful
Name Related parties amount debts amount debts
W RE EH5H 0 - - 160,000.00 -
Bills receivable Trading Center
JE U BR X EAREHT 6,395,648.77 - 4,181,928.75 -
Accounts receivables Kunming TOS
JE U BR X ROER 244,000.00 - 244,000.00 -
Accounts receivables Changsha Ser
H o AR B AR B AR 1,873,650.90 - 370,448.02 -
Other receivables Kunming TOS
H o AR ALER 7,257,291.38 - 7,220,746.31 -
Other receivables Xi'an Ser
R RE BARE 22,000,000.00 - - -
Prepayments General Machine
R FRIA EHEEME - - 9,000.00 -
Prepayments Yunnan State-owned
Assets Property
HiIEme & E EE A 39,656,925.20 - 47,666,181.55 -
Other non-current assets Schiess
P& LS A ) ALER 11,000,000.00 - 11,000,000.00 -
Dividends receivables Xi'an Ser
KRF The Company
FE ST RE R 5 2B Payables to related parties
BEEN  ARMT
Unit: RMB
BEE®E S 20136 H30H 2012%F12A31H
Name Related parties 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
JE& 1 BR K EERE AT 23,506,917.45 33,230,241.15
Accounts payable Kunming TOS
JE& 1 BR K BIERER 909,766.45 1,094,005.69
Accounts payable Jinhui Spraying Factory
TR FRIA B 5H 0 5,000.00 5,000.00
Advances from customers Trading Center
T FRIA RO ER 9,120.67 9,120.67
Advances from customers Changsha Ser
JE TR K BERKROBRIT 125,641.03 125,641.03
Accounts payable Shenyang Machine Tool Company Ltd.
H{th & 5 5K E#EEANR 2,625,000.00 5,250,000.00
Other payables Kunji Group Co.
H{th & 5 5K EEEEYE 598,435.50 -

Other payables

Yunnan State-owned Assets Property
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(t)-HAEEE

ARFBHBEENIEEERAMBER
=

AN 7] B2 B8 I T A 15 A R AR RR (A T
TEIEEHW )N 2002E6 A B THEN
BRARASBHAARELI190BTHE
[ - FHREMN A KRS R2003F10 ARIESR
ZB MM - 2009F6 7 - EEHEMGEARQ
AIEEEE  RAZEAAFERE B
JREEY  RARNEXRAQRRREEFMNE
HAREE1,0708 0 WX AMEBEIIRA
REI30B TMMEARKI708 T - AR
BIBRRT 2N RFEEHEN - 2R
EfEARIKBIB6FE A EFREMELRET
AE TEKRZARBENGBERARE
1308 7T °

201258 18H » EEW AR B ARERIE
=R BEARREERECHE
AIARB 237 SBILUANAERGZEEY
ARME2 68T ° RABFRZHER - IR
2012F7R20HMIEHEm R ARERIE
R LEFF - ZARAAE A ZRPEER -

EAPBHRERBLEA - ALFRIDE-F
BREP - KEBERER  BEEEAR/MN
LFHRBHOERTERALEHEBANKLE
MR AR - B R %R AT B
Bl EERERE -

(VII). CONTINGENCIES

Contingent liabilities arising from outstanding litigations
and arbitration and related financial effect

The Company signed a sales contract with Yancheng Xinde
Oil Machine Company (“Xinde Machine”) in June 2002 for
sales of four machine tools with an aggregate amount of
approximately RMB11.9 million. The four related machine
tools have been delivered to Xinde Machine before October
2003. In June 2009, Xinde Machine filed a lawsuit against the
Company alleging that the goods delivered by the Company
were unqualified and sought for return of goods, refund of
advances paid of RMB10.7 million and payment of penalty
and compensation of RMBO0.3 million and RMB3.7 million
respectively. The Company has denied the claim and filed
a counter claim against Xinde Machine alleging that it was
unreasonable for Xinde Machine to claim for return of goods
after use of the Company’s products for more than 6 years
and requesting Xinde Machine to repay the unpaid amount
of RMB1.3 million for the goods.

The Intermediate People’s Court of Yancheng City made a
ruling in relation to the aforesaid litigation on 18 May 2012. It
was ruled that the Company should refund the advances paid
of RMB2.375 million and bear the costs of the action in the
amount of approximately RMB26,000. The Company refused
to accept the ruling and appealed to the Higher People’s Court
of Jiangsu Province on 20 July 2012. The case has entered the
second-instance stage.

Up to the date of the financial statements, the above case
is still under the second-instance stage. In consultation with
legal counsels, the management considered it may not be
quite probable that a significant outflow of economic benefits
would arise from the outcome of the above case. Therefore,
no provision has been made in respect of the above pending
case in the financial statements.
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(VII).COMMITMENTS
1. Significant commitments

(1) Capital commitments

201346 H30H
Item 30 June 2013

EHEEN  ARKET

Unit: RMB
2012%12A31H

31 December 2012

B AT i R BT
ok 5% 2 BT
ERIEAR

B R R AT
RIS
522 BATH IR
TRAR

BHITEASER
BATOEE R
MEFFT AR

(2) ESEEFRE

RETARBGENEAREELEME D
& ARERARAREXNHRE

Construction contract signed
but not implemented or
not fully implemented
Construction contract authorized
but not signed or not
implemented or not
fully implemented
Proprietary technology and patent
licensing contract signed and
implementing or
proposed to implement

168,180,729.73

270,638,170.29

51,269,359.46

167,161,428.53

273,919,396.41

70,113,578.61

Total 490,088,259.48

511,194,403.55

(2) Operating Lease commitments

According to the irrevocable lease agreement of premises,
the minimum lease payments after the date of the reporting

HBEMNZBEOT : period that the Group should pay are as follows:

2REE N - ARKT

Unit: RMB

20136 H30H 20125F12H31H

HHE Item 30 June 2013 31 December 2012

1FLAR(ET1F) Within 1 year (including 1 year) 7,135,848.33 7,878,041.00
1A E2F AR 1-2 years

(82%F) (including 2 years) 5,509,800.00 5,941,200.00
2F A E3FA 2-3 years

(&3%F) (including 3 years) 5,315,250.00 5,250,000.00

3FELE Over 3 years 28,000,000.00 30,625,000.00

&t Total 45,960,898.33 49,694,241.00

- IRt R
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=8 28KE(R) 28

DEBEHE

AEERBAABEE  BEERERA
HB R 5 I W E T PR 5675 A & BE B B
BREEEEMERS DR - SEHREDH
REBOERBELE  RETANERNS
% AREEDEHE SRR kTS
REMEELETERNERE - AEEERE
EXecHEH TR ENTBEES AR
EMEREER  FHEXE -

(1) MEDTEHBAFIELE R - EER
B EHEE

RTAEZEIBNEERAARE
BR AEBEEEgTHENER
RESEEE - BFE WA - BRK
KEKR SEEEENREERQ
T

DHEEBREBERE DM AER
BREE  BREERBEFE - B
NRELRGFESRPDEE  BETEE
SENIFRZRERBRELNEREL
PIEHEE  REBRBREREER
DENBHEE - D HAERERE
RED BRI MK - TRWFE - 8R1T
tEREBEFAES -

DEHREERREESEOHELN
WA(BIEEINZ B A Ko B fE A
RPEA) > MBEEESBELENE
B BEREIBNEERLENTE
MEHLRERL  BEERRBNR—
7 HBESRITIF SR M RTT SR EE £ 9
MEBFXHREFRE - D EFZ A
MBETEERREETCHINZ ZHEMU
MG E - AREARAHHREN
mREEHFMORESOE -

(1X).OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS
1.

Leases

Please refer to note (V).28 for information of amounts payable
of the Group in respect of finance lease.

Segment Reporting

According to the internal organization structure, the
requirements of management and internal reporting system,
the Group defined its business into two reportable segments
— boring machine and turbo machines. Each reportable segment
is a separate business unit and provides different goods and
services. As each segment needs different technology and
marketing strategy, it needs separate management. The
management of the Group will review the financial information
of different segment regularly for the purpose of resources
allocation and assessment of segment performance.

(1)

Information of gain or loss, assets and liabilities for the
reporting segments

In order to assess the performance of each segment and
to allocate resources, the management of the Group will
review assets, liabilities, income, expenses, and operating
results which attribute to each segment. The preparation
basis of these information is as follows:

Segment assets include current assets of all tangible assets,
intangible assets, accounts receivable, prepayments,
and inventories attributable to each segment, but not
including deferred tax assets caused by the unrealized
gains and losses of the Group’s internal transactions,
long-term equity investment and other undistributed
assets of headquarters. Segment liabilities include
accounts payable, advance from customers, bank loans
and expected liabilities attributable to each segment.

Segment operating results is about the income generated
by each segment (including income from transactions
with outside parties and income from transactions
between segments), deducting expenses caused by each
segment, depreciation, amortization and impairment
losses attributable to assets of each segment, and the
net interest expense arising from between bank deposit
and bank loans attributable to each segment. The pricing
of transactions between segments is similar to that of
transactions with outside parties. The Group did not
allocate investment income and directors’ remuneration
to each segment.
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The information of each reportable segment of the Group
disclosed below is the data for the management of the
Group to calculate the profit (loss), assets and liabilities
of each segment or data not being used but provided

EH : to management regularly:
201346 H30H 30 June 2013
wREEN  ARKT
Unit: RMB
FEZE I
BREEAD  EBEREEAD g RHRER fif
Business Elimination
Business segment of segment of between Undistributed
ER Item boring machines  turbo machines segments items Total
HIMEARA Revenue from external customers 277,856,434.48 75,360,604.13 - - 35317,03861
BEIRGLON Inter-segment revenue - - - - -
bl i L Investment loss from jointly controlled enterprises
and associated companies - - - -1,187,751.24 -1,187.751.24
EMERNEER Impairment loss of assets for the period 16,098 584.76 - - - 16,098,584.76
nENREER Depreciation and amortization expenses 20,515,485.89 3,533779.18 - - 24,049,265.07
FOREHEMA Interest income from bank deposis 118318.43 7125787 - - 195576.30
fExH Interest expense 299218.04 885,053.78 - - 1,184,27182
HEAE(SEEEN - IT)  Total profit (*-" for total loss 53,971,902.64 78172081 - 2,602,049 -50,588,126.91
fEHER Income tax expenses
(FiEBbEN - ) (*~" for income tax income) 1,694,246.12 264,955.08 - 166,722.29 1,62,568.75
FHR(EERM - IT) Net profits (*-" for net loss 46,277,656.52 516,765.73 - 2308 4330555816
EEug Total assets 2,059,346,677.52 416,855,140.76 -40,510,412.05 57,902,175.64  2,693,593,581.87
Bl Total liablities 107985323371 33398590280 -40,510412.05 - 13133872448
RHEENEREEE Other significant non-cash items:
-REENERENM - other non-cash expenses other than depreciation
EpIRLER and amortization 17,552, 146.47 - - - 751647
-RERERE - long-term equity investment - - - 57,258 456.02 57,258 456.02
-RARERE MM - other increment of non-current assets other
AERGERENE than long-term equity investment 66,546,265.32 488,000.94 - - 67,034,266.26

- IR rE I R




BrERD

BREBOS  ESHERRE 48R %9maE

Business Elimination
Business segment of segment of between Undistributed
i Item boring machines  turbo machines segments items Total
HIRAHA Revenue from external customers 534,101,90797 9757539498 - - B3ETING
BERGLIN Inter-segment revenue - . = 2 =
HRenagrsnRils Investment loss from jointly controlled enterprises
and associated companies - - - 617,934.94 617,934.94
SREENERL Impairment loss of assets for the period 24,647,148.14 - - - 24,647,148.14
FENEHER Depreciation and amortzation expenses 19,369,080.57 3,605,504.97 - - 22,994,585.54
SRFHEMA Interest income from bank deposits 30944482 67,055.90 - - 396,500.72
HExH Interest expense 3,512,150.42 75,183.08 - - 4,264,333.50
HEaE(SEaEN - BIR)  Total profit (*-" for total loss) 8,113,756.51 71588743 - 46042371 4,188,203
fEHER Income tax expenses
(FERIEM - ) (*-" for income tax income) M9 44125710 - 1987747 731,407.54
FHECEERN - AT) Net profits (*-" for net loss) 4,521,468.96 27463033 - -1,340,286.60 3,455,812.69
BEis Tota assets 24070629683 42065388823 1785344680 5954242506 2,607,049,16330
BR4E Total liabiltes 85351203616 322,04825070  -17,853446.82 - 1,157,706,840.06
EHEENHREER - Other significant non-cash items:
-REENELENM - other non-cash expenses other than
EHHREER depreciation and amortization 30,478.256.73 - - - 304782573
-RERERE - long-term equity investment - - - 58,687,515.89 58,687,515.89
~RARERE MM - other increment of non-current assets
EfEnEREng other than long-term equity investment 48,700,686.82 500,140.71 - - 4920082153
(2) M=z 8 (2) Geographic Information

TRINRT ARBEIZ TR ES TR
BRNMEPWANES  EhEP
PITE B 40 [ R AR 1R 8 W0 38 B 3 AR 7%

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of the Group's revenue from external
customers. The geographical location of customers is

BT based on the location at which the goods delivered or
the services were provided.
THEEN  ARETT
Unit: RMB
B Z6H30R L6ERAHMA
For the six months ended 30 June
2013 % 20124
HAE Item 2013 2012
B K B China 342,799,423.77 613,916,717.28
B3lEN International 10,417,614.84 17,760,585.67
&a&t Total 353,217,038.61 631,677,302.95
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) B AR MBREREEEEFE (X). NOTES TO PRINCIPLE ITEMS OF THE PARENT
COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 EWERR 1. Accounts receivable
(1) BWERFIEZFERSWAT : (1) Analysis of the accounts receivable in accordance with

the type of customers:

THEENM - ARKT

Unit: RMB

201356 A30H 2012%12A31H

L] Type of customers 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
£=5 Third parties 399,860,107.88 394,118,535.57
i) Related parties 6,639,648.77 4,425,928.75
15 Sub-total 406,499,756.65 398,544,464.32
B IEEEE Less: provision for bad and doubtful debts 200,772,650.29 185,547,357.79
CH Total 205,727,106.36 212,997,106.53

(2) BEUWERFIZERRS TR (2) Ageing analysis of the accounts receivable:

EHRENMN  ARKT

Unit: RMB

2013%6A30A8 2012%12831H

iR Ageing 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
1ELAR(R1EF) Within 1 year (including 1 year) 124,055,163.46 135,923,002.67
TE22F(825) 1-2 years (including 2 years) 79,537,063.45 73,253,832.15
2FEE3F(F3F) 2-3 years (including 3 years) 64,967,977.28 68,656,121.72
3L Over 3 years 137,939,552.46 120,711,507.78
0N Sub-total 406,499,756.65 398,544,464.32
B R Less: provision for bad and doubtful debts 200,772,650.29 185,547,357.79
CH Total 205,727,106.36 212,997,106.53
IR B EWERRFER B REHABTE - The ageing is calculated from the date accounts receivable

is recognized.
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2013564308

30 June 2013
i SRR EanE SRR
Provision for had Provision for bad
Book balance and doubtful debts Book balance and doubtful debts
i £ $i(%) ki 5eBi(%) f1] (%) £1] B Bi(%)
E§ Type Note Amount  Proportion (%) Amount ~ Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)
EEEEEAY  Indvidually signifcant
BERSE  and assessed indiidualy
EENENER  for impaiment ) - - - - - - - -
BEAHRER  Collectively assessed
ERNEKER  for impaimentt
£a1 Group 1 (3 399,860,107.88 98.37200,772,650.29 50.21 394,118,535.57 98.89  185,547357.19 47.08
G Group 2 19 663964877 163 - - 4459875 1.1 - -
e Sub-total of groups 406,499,756.65 100.00  200,772,650.29 4939 398,544 464.32 100.00  185,547,357.79 46.56
) Total 406,499,756.65 100.00  200,772,650.29 398,544,464.32 100.00  185,547,357.79
A EeEEEASRELRENE Note*: This category included accounts receivable having
U BR 2 been individually assessed but not impaired
BT ARRRACLEEABE D 5N - UK Except for those denominated by functional currency,
ERBEUATHMERKSE - accounts receivable included the following amounts by
other currencies:
2013%6A30A 20125128318
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
BE HNELE il ks ARBEHE ML hEE ARBEHE
The amount of Exchange The amount ~ The amount of Exchange The amount
Currency foreign currency rate of RMB  foreign currency rate of RMB
e usD 577,002.10 6.1787 3,565,122.86 248,009.10 6.2855 1,559,238.32
AREFEWER Fil D HRERERBN The Company did not have any collateral for the above
JEUEE RIS B MR - accounts receivable with provision for bad and doubtful
debt.
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(5) et IREREBEDITETIRZEREE (5) Accounts receivables provided for bad debt using ageing

M EUREBE 2K - analysis method:
THE - ARKTT
Unit: RMB
201368308 20125125318
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
RERE RERE
Book balance Book balance
8 H6l(%) BRER k] HH1(%) BRER
Provision for Provision for
Proportion bad and Proportion bad and
R Ageing Amount (%) doubtful debts Amount (%)  doubtful debts
[ Within one year 117,659,514.69 2943 5,688,475.73  131,741,073.92 33.43 6,501,908 41
1525 1-2 years 79,537,063.45 1989 23,861,119.04  73,253,832.15 1859 21,976,149.65
153% 2-3 years 64,967,977.28 16.25  40,388,786.37  68,656,121.72 1742 42,601,673.03
3ERE Qver 3 years 137,695,552.46 3443 130,834,269.15  120,467,507.78 3056 114,467,626.70
At Total 399,860,107.88 100.00  200,772,650.29  394,118,535.57 100.00  185,547,357.79
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(6) ZANHARZA R A3 4 E AR EUWER K (6) There was no significant provision for bad £
EERERE O KD -

for the period.

(7) ANEAEARRREEEE NSRRI (7)  There was no significant writing-off for the accounts
HIAZ 38 o receivable for the period.
(8) EWEN TR AL EMIFEL (8) Amounts of top five accounts receivable
2HEN  ARKT
Unit: RMB
1 P UK BR X
BuEE BEAR N T B R -] IR HEBHIEL (%)

Percentage to

Relationship total accounts
Ranking with the Company Amount Ageing receivable (%)
F—% F=F 13,976,000.00 1M E 3.44
1st Third party Over one year
F-F F=F 12,205,175.14 T AR 3.00
2nd Third party Within one year
E=% F=F 10,668,000.00 1M E 2.62
3rd Third party Over one year
Eyuig F=F 10,386,199.29 T AR 2.56
4th Third party Within one year
FRE E=H 8,177,400.00 TF £ 2.01
5th Third party Over one year
&5t Total

55,412,774.43 13.63

HRE=-FREFPHNEBIRAEERN As names of third party customers involve the business
EEMRT  AQRRABEEEAESR secret of the Company, we did not disclose the specific
T e names of the customers.

(9) LB EEUFEEARANAS% (5 (9) In the above balances, there were no accounts receivable
5% ) LA EFRIRBER DB AR A FRIE - due from shareholders holding over 5% (or 5%) shares
of the Company entitling voting rights.

(10) fEW BFRETT 50 R

(10) Accounts receivable from related parties

EREEM - ARKT

Unit: RMB

1t FE WL BR X

BuEE Bt = BEA N TR &8 HBEARYELBI(%)

Percentage to

Name of the Relationship total accounts

related party Note with the Company Amount receivable (%)

E R (x) -6 BEDE 6,395,648.77 1.57
Kunming TOS (VI). 6 Jointly controlled enterprise

A ER (x) -6 FRAF 244,000.00 0.06
Changsha Ser V). 6 Subsidiary

A&t Total 6,639,648.77 1.63
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2 HEWR 2. Other Receivables

(1) HthEWFIREFERISTAT : (1) Analysis of other receivables by the type of customers:

wHEE  ARKT

Unit: RMB

201346 A30H 20125128314

Bl Type 30 June 2013 31 December 2012

E=ZH Third parties 20,406,264.83 15,620,182.68

BAE Related parties 9,130,942.28 7,591,194.33

/INET Sub-total 29,537,207.11 23,211,377.01
R RS Less: provision for bad

and doubtful debts 5,122,067.47 4,248,775.21

CE Total 24,415,139.64 18,962,601.80

(2) EHiEWEIRER ST (2) Ageing analysis of other receivables:

DHE  ARKET

Unit: RMB

20136 A30H 20125F12A31H

BR#R Ageing 30 June 2013 31 December 2012

1FAR(E1F) Within 1 year (including 1 year) 15,128,441.36 12,054,246.27

152290 (52F) 1-2 years (including 2 years) 4,159,346.23 4,246,989.15

2FE3IF(F3F) 2-3 years (including 3 years) 3,379,624.95 3,268,260.68

3E F Over 3 years 6,869,794.57 3,641,880.91

NEE Sub-total 29,537,207.11 23,211,377.01
W AR Less: provision for bad

and doubtful debts 5,122,067.47 4,248,775.21

CE Total 24,415,139.64 18,962,601.80

IR e EMmERERE EHLG The ageing is calculated from the date other receivables

e are recognized.
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4)

01368308
30 June 2013

gEEE

REAE REEE i
Provision for bad Provision for bad
Carrying amount and doubtful debts Carrying amount and doubtful debts
i 1] (%) 8 BeBi(%) fi] AI(%) £ ] Bi(%)

B Type Note Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)
EESEEAT  ndividually significant and

BEHREE  assessed indiidually

EEMEMENZ  for impairment 7 - - : . . - - .
BEAFRES  Collctively assessed

EBMEMBRG for impaiment*
i Group 1 3 20,406,204.83 69.09 51206747 2510 15,620,182.68 6730 42487751 2.0
4 Group 2 (1) 913094228 30.91 - - 759119433 3210 - -
Ba Sub-total of groups 29,537,207.11 100.00  5122,067.47 1734 232113717.01 10000 4,248775.21 18.30
i Total 29,537,207.11 100.00  5122,067.47 2311377.01 100.00 4,248 775.21
A MBEeEBEEARREARENE Note*: This category included other receivables having been

fth F& W R individually assessed but not impaired.
AREBWER Fall B EHIREREERH The Company did not have any collateral for the above
oA FE UG R A KR S o other receivables with provision for bad and doubtful
debt.
HMARBEESHEEALBEEIRIBE (4) As at the end of the period, there was no individually

TR B A PRI -

significant other receivables assessed individually for bad

and doubtful debts.

Interim Report 2013 Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited |39 [




(6)

(7)

2013%6A308
30 June 2013
REGR
Carrying amount
8 EA(%) BRER

Provision for

-----------

eEEL

CARET
Unit: RMB
0125128318
31 December 2012
RERR
Carrying amount
&8 EAI(%) BRER

Provision for

Proportion bad and Proportion bad and
R Ageing Amount (%) doubtful debts Amount (%) doubtful debts
1EIR Within one year 13,218,245.39 64.78 589,036.65  11,027,548.68 70.60 620,840.87
152F 1-2 years 3,503,096.66 1717 1,348,108.04  2,087,071.85 1336 1,122,372.19
183F 2-3 years 1,219,707.65 598  1,019,707.65  1,121,452.70 718 1,121,452.70
3ENE QOver 3 years 2,465,215.13 1207 2,165215.13  1,384,109.45 8.86  1,384,109.45
At Total 20,406,264.83 100.00  5,122,067.47 15,620,182.68 100.00 4,248,775

AHREAEEEZEBANE MR

FORAREFE R SR -

AHE AR B EZFEBANE MR

FRHIAZEH o

(6) There was no significant provision for bad and doubtful
debt to be reversed or collected for the other receivables

for the period.

(7)  There was no write-off for the other receivables for the

period.

Il 0 rusmesssnesRAR 2005 FHEs




o (8' Amounts of 1

BuHE b NET]RER ok | IR  EEB(%
Percentage t
Relationship total other
Name with the Company Amount Ageing receivables (%)
AZER A 7,257,291.38 —FE 24.57
Xi‘an Ser Subsidiary Over one year
EE A8 A BEMRE 1,873,650.90 —FLAA 6.34
Kunming TOS Jointly controlled enterprise Within one year
BRI E=F 1,507,922.00 —F LA 5.11
BRAFA Third party Within one year
Kunming
Yaocheng
Hi-tech Co., Ltd.
ANESLE(KRIE) F=H 910,000.00 —F LA 3.08
ETHRAHA Third party Within one year
Dalian Jinzhong
(Port Arthur)
Heavy Industry
Co., Ltd.
PEEEKTA E=F 900,000.00 —FUR 3.05
T Third party Within one year
China machine
tool and tool
builders’
association
CEn Total 12,448,864.28 42.15
(9) LiuigpFEREEWRZEERNAFS% (B (9) In the above balances, there were no other receivables

due from shareholders holding over 5% (or 5%) shares
of the Company entitling voting rights.

5% ) A R IRBERD M AR R A FIA -
(10) Other receivables from related parties

(10) B At fEW BT T 50 R

EHEN - ARET

Unit: RMB

1 L i P& L 3K

BuEHE BtaE BEARQ T BE S8 HWEHEBI(%)

Percentage to

Relationship total other

Name Note with the Company Amount receivables (%)

L ER (~)-6 /A 7,257,291.38 24.57

Xi'an Ser wi). 6 Subsidiary

EEREHT ()6 AEME 1,873,650.90 6.34

Kunming TOS Vi). 6 Jointly controlled
enterprise
A& Total 9,130,942.28 30.91
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3 >

REBRERE

3. Long-term equity investments

(1) RHRERESFEWOT : (1) Long-term equity investments by type:
SHE AR
Unit: RMB
20136 H30H 20129 12H31H
HE Item 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
HFRAIEE Investment in subsidiaries 24,693,265.85 24,693,265.85
HEEPENRE Investment in jointly
controlled enterprises 42,530,661.47 43,631,371.02
HEEPENRE Investment in associated companies 13,582,794.55 14,348,530.66
Hib REREIRE Other long-term equity investments 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00
/Nt Sub-total 82,806,721.87 84,673,167.53
B OREERE Less: impairment provision 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00
CEl Total 80,806,721.87 82,673,167.53
2) FREAKRERERNBPEHBFTROM (2)  Analysis of changes of long-term equity investment for
N the year:
2EE - ARKT
Unit: RMB
ERREEN
FiltL bl
TRREEN ARREEM  RAEMH LY g 54
REAR  BURE  ERR® BRBE  GRRO RMEMA(N T-RNE® REEE RERR B
Percentage of  Percentage of
sharcholdingin  voting rights  Explanation
the invested in the invested  for difference Impairment
Investment Opening Increase/ Closing ~ company ~ company ~ between  Impaiment provision (Cash dividend
fiRegn Invested company ot balne  decease  balance (6)A) (%)@  (Mand(B) provision forthe period for the period
BEE-RENT Under equity method:
jointly controlled enterprises
RHE Kunming T0S AU73953399 4363137100 110070955 42,530,66147 5000 5000 - - - 67863842
BEE-BENT Under equity method:
associated company
B Xian Ruite 1400000000 1434853066 76573611 13582,794.55 B B - - - -
g - FA7 Under cost method:
subsidiary
FZER Xian Ser 2169326585 21,693.265.85 - 21,693,258 500 60.00 3 - - -
BRE General Machine 300000000 3,000,00000 - 3000,000.00 100.00 10000 - - -
gt Sub-otl 7 247,6?%2@5;8? 7 247,6?%2@5;8? 7777777 - 247,6?%2@5;8? - - -
AAE-EARERERE  Under cost method: other
long-term equity investment
EBRTHNE Yunnan Cheng Jiang Copper Products Plant 2,000,00000  2,000,000.00 - 200000000 4000 4000 2,000,000.00 - -
hl Totdl 0543279984 8467316753 -1.866,44586  82.806,72187 2,000,00000 - 67868842
P ARFREHAZERNRRELLD Note:  The percentage of voting rights of Company in Xi‘an

ERBEARBEARERNESS
FRE B RORIELL BIRETE - ANAA)BE
MR BEBRNTBNEERRE
MeiEs B AR B HELERE
ERRBZFRF - LERALAE

%8 -

Ser is determined by the percentage to total voting
rights in the board of directors of Xi‘an Ser. The
Company can have control to Xi'an Ser’s finance and
operating decisions. Therefore, the Company treated
Xi'an Ser as a subsidiary and adopts cost method for
accounting.
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~ (3) Information major join
associated companies:

EERECENBMECRESFAL Please refer to note (V).8(3) for inform

BMFE(R) « 83) jointly controlled enterprise and associated
4 EHEWA - EERK 4. Operating income and operating costs
(1) BREWLA - EXHLX (1) Operating income and operating costs
BHEL  ARKT
Unit: RMB
BZ6A30HL6EAMM
For the six months ended 30 June
2013%F 2012%F
HE Item 2013 2012
FEEBRA Operating income 276,942,122.39 531,027,425.05
He : $§EEMAUEA  Including: Income from
sales of products 262,906,532.44 527,174,013.39
RELBRA Income from
rendering services 14,035,589.95 3,853,411.66
H B UA Other operating income 914,312.09 2,053,170.96
BHERAEET Total operating income 277,856,434.48 533,080,596.01
EE SN Operating costs 232,827,799.10 396,054,285.03
(2) BEIWA(SEF) (2) Operating income (by business line)
BRRE AR
Unit: RMB
B Z6H30H L6/ A HIM
For the six months ended 30 June

2013F 2012

2013 2012
EERA EERAE =EL 0N EERAE
Operating Operating Operating Operating
ERER Business income costs income costs

HIRE RIS MRS Sales and service of
boring machines  277,856,434.48  232,827,799.10  533,080,596.01 396,054,285.03
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(3) AEFILEEFEFHERRAEL

(3) Operating income from the top five customers in the

period
SEHE W - ARKTT
Unit: RMB
EE=E LN
EEWA HERRIEE B1(%)
Percentage to
Operating total operating
BuEE Ranking income income (%)
EF—% 1st 15,641,025.64 5.63
£ 2nd 10,017,094.02 3.61
B=4 3rd 7,521,367.52 2.71
FN% 4th 6,605,128.21 2.38
ERA 5th 6,581,196.58 2.37
a5t Total 46,365,811.97 16.70

HRBEFNEBS R ANEB R E#
B ARNRARBEEEZE2013F6A30
Hire@A MMM AREFPNARZ

The Company has not disclosed the specific names of the
top 5 customers for the period six months ended 30 June
2013, which involved commercial secret of the Group.

78 o
5 BEWZ Investment income
TEEEMN - AR¥T
Unit: RMB
B Z6H30H 1L61E A MM
For the six months ended 30 June

Mtat 2013%F 20124
HE Item Note 2013 2012

EHEZENRS Income from long-term

M1 & W a equity investment

under equity method +(X). 3 -1,187,757.24 617,934.94

(1) BREDEZENRBBRBRERGS

(1)  The amount of long-term equity investment income under

oy N equity method:
HZEZ6H30R L6EAHA
For the six months ended 30 June

201345 201245
WIREEN Invested company 2013 2012
ERRE Kunming TOS -422,021.13 1,065,821.94
(iR ik Xi'an Ruite -765,736.11 -447,887.00
=18 Total -1,187,757.24 617,934.94
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6 BERBRMEER
(1) BenBEbzan

6. Related information of cash flow state

A -

EHEN - ARET

Unit: RMB
BZ6A30H L6fEAHIMA
For the six months ended 30 June

20135 2012

HrER Supplemental information 2013 2012
1LEZANBATBLLTHRESRE . 1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows

from operating activities:
ERE (BT — I5%3E5) Net profit ("=" for net loss) -43,932,956.37 7,028,991.92

e BEREER
BEEENE
BV EESHN
REGREREH

Rz 5
REBRTEENER

(Yezs AT — 5% 4E51)
MIEE M (s bAl — 157 1851)
REBK (Al - 157851)
BEEREHEERD

(S SAT — JSRE31)

(S SAT — JSRE31)
RRURYKAR RS

(S IAT — JSRE31)
B2 EMER MM

CRLA BAT — ISR 851

REfPELNREREFE

LASRRESEMFEBER
RENARGE
W RENEBNSRE

ReRRALEENFENE
CRA AT — 157451

Add: Provision for impairment of assets
Depreciation of fixed assets
Amortization of intangible assets
Amortization of long-term

deferred expenses
Amortization of deferred income
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
("=" for gain)
Financial expenses ( “=" for incomes)
Investment loss (“=" for incomes)
Decrease in deferred tax assets
("=" for increase)
Decrease in inventories
("=" for increase)
Decrease in operating receivable
("=" for increase)
Increase in operating payable
("=" for decrease)

Net cash flows from operating activities

2. Net movements in cash and cash equivalents:

Closing balance of cash
Less: Opening balance of cash

Net increase of cash and cash equivalents
("=" for decrease)

-132,631,612.20

16,098,584.76
19,405,182.25

23,517,148.14
18,620,743.12

1,242,820.08 880,170.61
384,228.28 146,016.49
-102,650.00 -102,650.10

49,534.58 -
344,405.16 2,838,665.44
1,187,757.24 -617,934.94
-8,026,540.33 -3,292,613.83
-26,852,600.94 -56,415,206.90

-103,615,327.31

117,775,225.76 113,802,893.94

-55,058,621.73 2,790,896.58

78,019,783.77
71,927,250.50

116,368,718.87
143,087,572.52

6,092,533.27 -26,718,853.65
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(2) BHeofiBEoZEYRIEL (2) Composition of cash and cash equivalents
TEHE - ARETT
Unit: RMB
201346 H30H 2012%12831H
HAB Item 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
— - B& 1. Cash
Hep: BEfFR& Including: cash on hand 565,613.49 295,446.95
e R A bank deposits
REAAH available on
RITER demand 77,454,170.28 71,631,803.55
HIRIR R oA EE Closing balance of cash 78,019,783.77 71,927,250.50
i NEEEMReNREEEDTE Note:  the above disclosed cash and cash equivalents do not

ERAXRINEEES RAREW
BEMDE -

(- - BREBEE

include the amounts of monetary funds with restricted
usage and short-term investments.

(XI).NET CURRENT ASSETS

EFEEM - ARKT

Unit: RMB

201356H308 20125128318 201368308  2012%12A31H

bS] iS-3] N LN

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December

2013 2012 2013 2012

BH Item The Group The Group The Company The Company
REEE Current assets 1,632,454,961.95 1,535,239,783.32  1,294,695,247.14  1,222,382,929.57

W OREaR Less: current liabilities

FRBEE Net current assets

o -BEERRBEE

1,268,141,577.78

1,091,593,503.93 952,666,087.01 797,303,103.68

364,313,384.17

443,646,279.39 342,029,160.13 425,079,825.89

(XI1). TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

EREENMN  ARET

Unit: RMB
2013F6A308 20124128318 2013%6A308 20125128318

biN-c | bS] N AN

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December

2013 2012 2013 2012

EHE Item The Group The Group The Company The Company
BELL Total assets 2,693,593,581.87  2,548,752,225.10  2,310,318,248.35  2,187,269,380.31

wORBAaE Less: current liabilities

REERRDAR

Total assets less
current liabilities

1,268,141,577.78

1,091,593,503.93 952,666,087.01 797,303,103.68

1,425,452,004.09

1,457,158,721.17  1,357,652,161.34  1,389,966,276.63
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BREE

1 FFEFMHRZFAX

#

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

1. EXTRAORDINARY GAINS AND LOSSES

EHEN - ARKET

Unit: RMB
BZ2013%F
6H30H LL6{E A HAM
For the six
months ended
HE Item 30 June 2013
ERNBEERERTD Disposal of non-current assets -49,534.58
FFAEHEENBE Government grants recognized through
B (B> FE T profit and loss (excluding those
EYAE - RR having close relationship with the
BERG—IZHETFERR Group’s operation and enjoyed in
W ZXHBT fixed amount or quantity according
HENERSN) to uniform national standard) 405,000.00
Br it & 18 2 ShEY Other non-operating income and
E b2 2N AT ST expenses besides items above -88,131.78
FriStis &% Effect of income tax -40,100.05
DERERER LR (F1%)  Effect of minority interests (after tax) -22,091.00
At Total 205,142.59
2 JEEBEINZGZRNGEKIKE 2. RETURN ON NET ASSETS AND EARNINGS PER SHARE

AR LB e D IONGEE
8% 0 A B 5B A H A B 5 0% —
BATE S E NSRS OHE R
) (20109 £5]) A REHEANEH
RIS R R A E NG A R

The return on net assets and earnings per share prepared
in accordance with No.9 of Rules for the Compilation
and Submission of Information Disclosure by Public
Offering Companies issued by China Securities Regulatory
Commission (2010 revised) and regulations of relevant

wm accounting standards are as follows:
BRkE
oS Earnings per share
FEERZEE(%) HEARGR K mResRkE
Weighted average of Basic Diluted
Earnings during the return on net earnings earnings
HEEAE reporting period assets (%) per share per share
I ANIR=S L Net earnings attributable
[PEX=0D=wbE to the ordinary
shareholders of
the Company -3.36% -0.0821 -0.0821
MEIFLEFHERR Net earnings attributable
BERARL B to the ordinary
[PEX=0p=wbE shareholders of the
Company excluding
extraordinary gains
and losses -3.38% -0.0825 -0.0825
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EUBBOMBEE

(=) REHRENEBSERIETRE FABR
BBMFT A AR N EARAS R
(=) 2013 X EERE

(M) B SREEABH2013FFFERSE
MEEERER

(h) EFeHEFTERUEMNQIIBFXFER
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(5)

Original copy of all documents and the drafts of announcements
as disclosed in newspapers as specified by the CSRC during
the reporting period

2013 Interim Report

Written confirmation for the 2013 Interim Report by directors
and senior management officers

Written approval by supervisory committee for 2013 Interim
Report prepared by the Board

Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited
Wang Xing Chairman
29 August 2013
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